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|, RANDALL SCOTT KELLEN, of Burnaby, British Columbia, SWEAR AND SAY THAT:
1. | am 60 years of age, a self-employed sub-contracting superintendent, who

since 1974 has been a member of St. Luke Lutheran Church in Surrey British

Columbia.

2, In 1985 | joined the building committee of my St. Luke Lutheran congregation
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which had contracted the construction of a new church building. Our

congregation was in the process of applying for a church construction loan from

the Church Extension Fund (“CEF") operated by the Lutheran Church—

Canada--Alberta-British Columbia District (“District”) of the Lutheran Church
Canada ("Synod”).

] believe it was Pastor Ruf from District who came tfo visit the building site as
part of District's due diligence in approving a CEF mortigage that St Luke
Lutheran had applied for. When in 1986 problems arose concerning the
general contractor's fees | volunteered to take over management of the
construction of the church building and succeeded in bringing it to completion
under our budgeted cost allowance. As a result of this exercise, | came to
understand that the amount a congregation could borrow depended to a great
extent upon how much it supported the CEF.
J CEF PURPOSES

As a result of my congregational experience with the CEF, by the mid-1990s |
learned that the CEF was a major factor in the Lutheran Church's church
planting program as described at page 10 of the February 1995 ABC District
News advertisement (attached to my affidavit as EXHIBIT 1) soliciting Church
Extension Fund deposits at favorable rates of interest on “family savings
which then “...are loaned to buy sites and to build churches and schools--

places where the Gospel of Jesus Christ can be shared.” (my emphases)

f am a believer in Christ and his church, of which | believe the Lutheran Church
is an agency for the spreading of His Word and the Christian faith. | take to
heart the great commission as set out in Matthew 28 and was therefore
interested in spreading the Word by helping found new congregations. | was
impressed with the management of the Church Extension Fund and became

very interested in the church building program.

Because of my enthusiasm for church building and congregational growth
projects, | was recruited by the District to become our congregation’s Church

Extension Representative (“CER”) as described in the copy (attached hereto as



EXHIBIT 2 to my affidavit) of letter dated November 6, 2001. | discharged that
commission to my congregation at St Luke from that day to mid-2010 and, as such,
_ 1 have personal_knowledge of the matters hereinafter deposed, except where
stated to be based on information and belief, and where so stated, | verily
believe them to be true.

CEF FINANCING METHODS
| was provided with a March 2000 Church Extension Manual (“the Manual’, a
copy of which is attached as EXHIBIT 3 to my affidavit) which confirmed the
CEF purpose as set out at page M-1 as, “The primary goal of Church Extension
is to provide loans with reasonable interest rates to congregations that need
property/buildings in order to carry on the ministry of reaching souls for Christ.”
The Manual became the principal information source for my “Church Extension
ministry” as therein described. | was given a package or set of resource
“materials in a special bag stamped “Church Extension Representative”, but no
formal training as to how to fill out forms though the package included some
“sample forms” already filled out for me to follow.
| read the Manual and had no hesitation about raising money for the CEF from
members of my congregation, since | believed | could rely on the following

representation at page M-2:

“Investments in Church Extension are guaranteed by the ABC District
of Lutheran Church — Canada which has in excess of 30 million dollars of
assets, Church Extension has a proven record of security. Since the
beginning of its operation in 1921 no one has ever lost a penny of their

investment.”

| also believed members’ savings would be applied only in approving mortgages
to congregations that were authorized borrowers to ensure that the toans would
be repaid and the depositors’ interests were protected and: properly secured,
since the District's CHURCH EXTENSION POLICY which formed a part of the
Manual had express provisions set out at pages 5 and 6 under:
‘A. “Loan Eligibility” that “All congregations of [District], in good standing are
eligible to apply for a Church Extension loan. Congregations in good

standing are congregations which support the mission and ministry of the
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District and Synod in a responsible way ... and comply with the policy and

practice established by Lutheran Church—Canada.”

‘B. “Loan Criteria” that include paragraph “8. Ability of congregation to
service debt.” and
‘D. “Loan Conditions” that include paragraph “1. Security documentation

appropriate to the size and conditions of the loan.”

The “safe” aspect of the District's investment offerings were regularly repeated
in advertisements appearing in the District's official newsletter to church
members:
Attached hereto as as EXHIBIT 3-A to my affidavit is page 4 of the March
4,1994 issue of ABC District News in which are the following statements:;
“The reality is that one of the best investment opportunities lies within our
own church: The Alberta-British Columbia District Church Extension Fund.
One would be hard pressed to find a safe, no risk, non-locked-in
investment that pays 5% for 1 year, 5 1/2% for 3 years or 6% for 5 years.”
(my emphasis)
“Many people still have the misconception that putting money in CEF is
making a gift. Investing in CEF is like buying a GIC (Guaranteed
Investment Certificate) or similar no risk investment instrument.” (my
emphasis) and
“PROMOTION IS THE KEY - Aggressive promotion of the Church
Extension Fund ministry is important if CEF is to be able to meet the
projected needs of congregations. Please help us promote CEF in your
congregation.”
Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 3-B to my affidavit is page 4 of the March 4,
1995 issue of ABC District News, in which a large advertisement offers
“Safe Investments” “Attractive Rates”
Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 3-C to my affidavit is page 4 of the October
1997 issue of ABC District News in which are the statements:, "ABC
District Investments retirement fund is a group RRSP plan which provides a
safe investment vehicle for individuals and an opportunity to put savings to

work in the Lord's service.”



10.

11.

12.

Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 3-D to my affidavit is page 3 of the June 1999
issue of ABC District News in which are the statements: “A reasonable
(market and sometimes a little higher than market) rate of interest is paid on
loans to the CEF and funds are only used to enable our sister
congregations to acquire land, build church buildings and/or schools,
purchase major pieces of equipment and make major emergency
repairs....” (my emphasis) and _
“..CEF loans to congregations total twenty million dollars and funds on
deposit in CEF total $26,000,000.” And
“No one has ever lost money by investing in Church Extension Fund.”
In April 2002 after becoming a CER | attended the Cahmore, Alberta annual
CEF conference, which consisted primarily of sessions led by several
motivational speakers regarding our service to our Lord by promoting the CEF.
Other speakers at the conference and thereafter the people at head office who
offered advice to and corresponded with the CERs constantly exhorted the

CERs to greater efforts and encouraging them to also make financial

- investments with CEF in support of the Church Extension ministry. Attached

hereto as EXHIBIT 4 to my affidavit is a May 12, 2007 letter to my wife and | as
term deposit holders indicating that our investments were supporting a well-

diversified mortgage loan portfolio made to “over 69 congregations”.

As a result of my ori'ginal efforts, members of our congregation still had deposits
totaling $769,189.15 with the CEF and District Invesimentis Ltd ("DIL") as at
November 30, 2014, in addition to which our congregation diligently and duly

succeeded in fully paying out our original mortgage several years ago.

In or about 1993 my 5 year old daughter, Cherise, began Sunday School where
she was persuaded to invest part of her weekly allowance in the purchase of the
District's Tracky Stamps, an investment that was held for her in the name of my
wife, Debbie, in a CEF account that had a balance of $153.34 at February 23,
2015, as indicated in the [ast statement (attached hereto as EXHIBIT § to my
affidavit) received from District. The At page 10 of the Manual, District
represents that, “The Tracky Stamp program aflows children to participate in
Church Extension, helps them learn about stéwardship and basic money
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13.

14.

15.

management, allows them to save for future education, etc....”

{

In or about 2001 | also became a Depositor to both the CEF and the DIL. At

~*February 27, 2015, the date of the last statements (attached hereto as EXHIBIT

6 to my affidavit) received from CEF and DIL, my CEF term deposits totaled
$90,553.06 and my DIL RRSP December 31, 2014 balance of $26,105.49,
which District had arbitrarily wri’{t'en down 24% $19,849.54, with the further
caveat that “...DIL does not represent or warrant the amount that will ultimately
be payable to you pursuant to any plan of arrangement” My CEF and DIL
deposits constitute a significant portion of my retirement savings. | have never
withdrawn any contributed principal nor any interest that accrued on my
deposits as they matured, but allowed all interest accruals to be reinvested in
new deposits as the existing ones matured. | have not agreed to any write-

down of my claims against the CEF and the DIL.

DEPARTURE FROM PURPOSES OF CEF
The Monitor's reports appear to indicate that 90% of CEF funds, including the

childrens’ Tracky money deposits, and 24% or more of DIL Depositors savings

~ have found their way into support of the badly managed Prince of Peace

Development, a real estate speculation and “Village” development that includes
a church that certain directors, officers and others involved with District attend
as members of the Prince of Peace congregation, and residences in which
certain members of District management reside, such as the following directors:
(a) Bill Morgan, 607 Advent Bay, Calgary, Alberta T1X 1N8
(b) Dave Schoepp, 900 — 285030 Luther Rose Blvd, Calgary, Alberta T1X 1M9
PROMOTION
CEF promotional materials that | received from District as both CER and
“investor” became principally about the great success and growth of the CEF as
indicated by the following statements in correspondence such as the July 2,
2002 circular letter {(a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 7 to rhy
affidavit):
“Since 1995 total investments have grown over 230%, from $16.81
million in1995 to $56.14 million in 2001. Much of the recent growth

resulted from the 80" Anniversary campaign {in 2001], during which



16.

17.

. 18.

over $27.5 million was invested.” and
In the service of a growing number of congregations “Over 95% of
congregations within ABC District have, at some time in the past 80

years' history of Church Extension, benefited from a CEF loan.”

The District provided CERs and sent to church members many promotional
materials that mixed money-raising with spreading the Gospel as illustrated in
the brochure (attached hereto as EXHIBIT 7-A to my affidavit) in which the CEF
offered many financial products, including K.1.D.S. Stamps and registered plans
of DIL, described as its “sister company”, and the assurance that, “Church

Extension is managed prudently and built on solid financial principles.”

This material was supplied to me at a time when the District was already
embarked on a land development scheme focused not on traditional church
planting aimed at reaching more people, but rather on serving the interests of
only those few pérsons involved in the real estate speculation and condominium
development called the “Prince of Peace Village” near Calgary, Alberta, which is
and has always been of little or no benefit to British Columbians or, indeed,

anyone outside the Calgary, Alberta area.

When | became a CER, application forms and instructions for their completion
to open RRSP and RRIF accounts (the first page of which is attached hereto as
EXHIBIT 8 to my affidavit) were provided to me containing a representation in
the first paragraph of the cover sheet that, “In addition, ABC District
Investments is registered through its Trustee, Co-operative Trust Company of
Canada, to manage locked-in funds within Alberta, British Columbia,
Saskatchewan, Manitoba and federal jurisdictions.” To the best of my
knowledge, neither District nor DIL is not now and never has been registered to

manage investment and trust funds.

When offering other members of my congregation investments in the CEF and
in making our own investments in the CEF and DIL, | and my wife relied on the
stated assurances that the deposits were guaranteed by District and that no
one had ever lost money on their investment in the CEF. 1 also relied on written

materials and verbal information provided me as a CER by District as to the
7



19.

20.

21.

22.

good (actually better-than-market) returns on and safety of investments in their

CEF and DIL deposit accounts and other offered securities, as advertised in the

_June 2002 issue of ABC District News (attached hereto as EXHIBIT 9 to my

affidavit) is page 9 announcing, “A new Rate Schedule was approved for
implementation on June 1, 2002, with increased rates for 3-year, 4-year, and 5-
year term investments. Church Extension rates are, on average, higher than

commercial bank rates.” and

Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 10 to my affidavit is page 9, a full page item
“Church Extension Announces Interest Rate Increase” that appeared in the
April 2006 issue of ABC District News with the claim that its rates were as
much as 0.45% to 0.9% higher than those offered by the “Big Five” commercial
banks on March 20, 2006.

BREACH OF SECURITIES REGULATIONS
] was not a trained, licensed or certified investment advisor and | was unaware
the deposits offered by District were securities that required licensing on the
part of representatives such as me. No one in management at District ever
indicated that | needed to be trained, licensed or certified by any governmental

authority.

| received no instructions and no warnings from District and its representatives
concerning the risk associated with making unsecured deposits in the CEF and
contributions to the DIL registered fund or in the District's other offered
securities, such as bonds, though | never persuaded anycne to buy bonds that

may have been issued by District.

When first making and thereafter from time to time renewing deposits to the
CEF, the District representative(s) never enquired as to my total asset holdings
or net worth, nor as to the details thereof. Neither the Manual nor any of the
later promotional and offering correspondence, circulars and other sales aid
materials contained any warnings or mention of risk attached to the CEF and

DIL investments and deposits.

When first making and thereafter from time to time renewing deposits to the
CEF, the District representative(s) never enquired as to my level of risk
8



23.

24.

25.

26.

tolerance or whether | could afford to lose any or all of my deposits and
contributions and never suggested that | make similar enquiries of those to

whom | recommended CEF deposits.

BREACH OF TRUST & FIDUCIARY DUTY

| have read the affidavit of Kurtis Robinson dated January 23, 2015 in this
matter and the last available 'audited’ financial statements of District made up to
January 31, 2012 (a copy of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 11 to my
affidavit), in respect of which, notwithstanding the title "INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT”, the auditor said,

“Because of the matter described in The Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

paragraph [referring to the $69,737,136 loan to “sister company” Encharis

Community Housing Services (sic)], however, we were not able to obtain

sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit

opinion.” [my emphasis]
| believe the Robinson affidavit and 2012 financial statements referred to in
paragraph 23 make only part disclosure of a serious breach of trust by District
and DIL directors or officers or both in that, on August 11, 2008 Disfrict “took a
loan” from the DIL fund without providing any mortgage security for the
approximately $6 million that appears to have been used in connection with the
Strathmore lands, a college property that EnCharis purchased a year earlier in
August 2007 for $5,891,315.
In sub-paragraph 79.1 of its second report, the Monitor says "CEF collects
monthly lease payments of approximately $29,000 ($28,000 plus GST) for a
lease on a property in Strathmore, Alberta (the “Golden Hill Property”). CEF
granted a mortgage on the Golden Hill Property in favour of DIL and makes
monthly payments to DIL of approximately $29,000 per month....”
According to paragraph 35 of District Officer Kurtis Robinson’s January 22,
2015 affidavit, “On December 23, 2014, the District executed a legal mortgage
pledging the Strathmore property as security for the loan to the DIL Porifolio.”
That would require District to have title to the Strathmore lands, on which the

Monitor says CEF granted a mortgage.

It appears that, when in 2014 management of District discovered it would be

forced into bankruptcy unless it took refuge under the CCAA, someone in
9




management contrived a story about intending to give security for a-six-year-oid
plundering of the DIL, by preparing and filing a form of mortgage, then hurriedly
_ made a last minute Land Registry filing of it on December 23, 2014, before
taking refuge from the victim CEF Depositors under the CCAA. Acco.rd-i-ng .to
section 27 of the First Report of the Monitor, “Two of the DIL mortgages
...against the Prince of Peace Propetties ... were registered in second position
behind the District-ECHS mortgage and are not estimated to have any
realizable values.” In subparagraph 27.3.3 the Monitor notes that, “...the DIL
mortgages also include the mortgage on the Strathmore Property, the security
of which could potentially be challenged by the District.” Apparently, District
and CEF granted two different mortgages on the same property, which gives
rise to the question: which of them owned the property.

The answer to that question should be available from the person or persons
who prepared the late or deficient morigage security and who are now, or at the
material fimes were, involved in the District either as directors or officers and,

possibly, others as indicated in the following documents:

Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 12 to my affidavit is page 1 of the May 1999 issue
of ABC District News in which counsel to the District in this matter, Francis
Taman, was identified as a member of the Prince of Peace Lutheran Church in
Calgary who, at the 1999 Chufch Extension Conference in Banff, Alberta, “...
informed everyone of the need and opportunities to minister to seniors.” At the
close of that meeting, attending CEF representatives “...were also assured that

no one has ever lost a penny in Church Extension....”

ih Exhibit “L" to the March 19, 2015 affidavit of Kurtis Robinson in this matter
that, on August 16, 1999, Unit 25, a condominium in the Prince of Peace
“Village”, was sold for $179,900.00 for “seniors’ occupation”. The landlord
owner was “Lutheran Church-Canada, Alberta-British Columbia District”, for

whom a “Francis N. J. Taman” was the officer who executed the document.

In paragraph 57 of Kurtis Robinson’s March 19, 2015 it is stated that ECHS, i.e.
Encharis Community Housing and Services, is the owner of Unit 25.

In paragraph 42 of District Officer Kurtis Robinson’s January 22, 2015 affidavit
he says, “In 2008, the District transferred title to the entire POP Development to

10



27.

28.

29.

ECHS”, which explains how ECHS came to be the owner of this Unit 25, but not
‘why' the CEF did not retain first mortgage security on the property, nor ‘why’

 CEF did not receive the proceeds of sale of the life leases of the condos in

reduction of the mortgage debt due it, since the POP Development was paid for
by the CEF.

Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 13 to my affidavit is page 1 of the September 1996
issue of ABC District News is an item announcing the Grand Opening of the
Prince of Peace Village the Lutheran Church-Canada is described as the
reversionary owner on return of the leases in this 160 unit community.

Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 14 to my affidavit is page 3 of the December 1998
issue of ABC District News, in which appears a half-page advertisement for
Prince of Peace Village indicates that it was “DEVELOPED BY PRINCE OF
PEACE CHURCH AND LUTHERAN CHURCH-CANADA, ALBERTA—BC
DISTRICT".

Since Encharis Community Housing and Services ("ECHS" or “Encharis”) was
not incorporated until 2005, it appears that District was the owner and that it
directly financed construction of the Prince of Peace Village condominiums out
of the CEF. Only later in 20086, after the project was well advanced, title was
passed by District to Encharis and immediately thereafter began involving
Encharis’ “sister compa‘ny" [Exhibit 7], ABC District Investments [DIL], in
financing the POP Development. In the financial statements of Distribt that |
have seen, those costs seem to have appeared on the books of Encharis as
loans from District of about $69 million. Those loans must, or should, have first

appeared as loans from CEF to District.

What is unclear in the financial statements of District and in the unconsolidated
summaries of Encharis’ financial statements that appear only as notes in the
District's financial statements, is where the money from the sales of life jeases
went. [If the 160 units were all sold only as life leases for the “start” prices of
$179,000 or $159,000 per unit, at least some $25,000,000 ought to have been

realized and returned to the CEF, but that appears nof to be the case.

Because the financial statements of Encharis were not consolidated with those

of its de facto parent, District, there has been no accounting to the CEF for the
11



30.

31.

32.

33.

sale of the Prince of Peace Village units, all of which were built with CEF

monies and mortgaged to CEF. | believe that the reason there has been no

accounting is that District chose to engage in_property speculation and

development, the details of which were hidden from view as “off-balance-sheet”
items appearing only on the unconsolidated financial statements of Encharis
and its other ‘sister company' Encharis Management and Support Services
(EMSS). It appears the District failed to report and its auditors failed to make
the appropriate enquiries necessary to ensure the financial statements provided

full, true and plain disclosure to the CEF depositors.

The 2012 financial statements of District discuss risk, but do not disclose that
District made an unsecured loan to itself for the purchase of the Strathmore
property. In fact, quite the converse appears the case, since the auditor does
not disagree with the statement in Note 6 that, “The [District] mortgage payable
to [DIL] is secured by property in Strathmore. Alberta”, despite there having
been no mortgage filed until December 23, 2014, long after the 2012 audit was
completed. _

] received no audited financial statements or other financial reports during the
years 2013 and 2014. When | last renewed my deposits in the CEF on July 1,
2012, 1 did not receive audited financial statements for 2012 and received no
warning that District had in any prior period suffered operating losses on its
mortgages, loans and other investments made with my life savings. Quite the
contrary, as herein elsewhere described, | received repeated assurances that
the CEF was safe and no one had ever lost money on a CEF investment.

| was very distressed to learn in January 2015 that District and its affiliates, the
other Applicants had departed far from the represented practice of making only
widely diversified loans to many individual churches and had embarked on very
localized and highly risky land speculation and building schemes in an area in
which certain of the directors and officers of the District had personal, conflicting
interests.

Instead of the roughly $143 million in deposits received by CEF being invested
in a properly vetted and well secured mortgage portfolio diversified among a

large number of congregations in Alberta and British Columbia as described in
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34.

35.

36.

the Manual and other literature of District, District management had, contrary to
the criteria District represented would be applied, invested more than 90% of
the CEF assets in land speculation, a residential condominium building scheme
and poorly vetted and poorly or completely unsecured mortgages, second
mortgages and mere promissory notes of the Prince of Peace congregation and
the so-called ‘Prince of Peace Development’, a pet project of Encharis and the
other Applicants .

EARLY WARNINGS OF FINANCIAL DISASTER
In or about mid-February 2015 | received two felephone calls, one of which was
a four-person conference call, from David Robak, CMA, a financially
knowledgeable former member of the Prince of Peace congregation, the church
at the nexus of the POP Development scheme. Mr. Robak had been doing the
congregational accounting since 2003 and was invited in 2004 to become the
Director of Finance for the Prince of Peace congregation. | believe his
information that, when as early as 2005 he warned District President, Rev
Donald Schiemann, also a member of the church and its then sometime pastor,
that the management of the congregation’s finances were in a “bloody mess”
and that it could not meet its loan obligations to the CEF. Mr. Robak stated that
the school attached to the Prince of Peace Church had suffered an operating
loss of $1.2 miltion in 2005 and the Prince of Peace congregation received an
$8 million unsecured operating loan from CEF and, though it was at that time
not able to meet its existing obligations to the CEF, no one involved in the
decision asked where the money was coming from.
As Director of Finance, Mr. Robak said he knew it was CEF money, but did not
know who authorized the loan. However, when challenged on the deficit
operations issue by Mr. Robak, Rev Schiemann is said to have responded that
he was prepared to “err on the side of ministry”. Mr. Robak said, “I left in 2005
and went to another church, St Maftthew. Later, about two years, | was
disgusted to learn that $6 million of the Prince of Peace’s $8 million loan from
CEF was lifted from the balance sheet.”
Though Mr. Roﬁak informed Rev Schiemann about the financial mess in 2005,
in a January 23, 2015 CBC (a print of which is attached hereto as EXHIBIT 15

to my affidavit) is a copy of a CBC interview in which Rev Schiemann is
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38.

30.

reported to have said, he realized how serious the financial situation was about

a year and a half ago. This is also contrary to the evidence of Pastor Vic

Esperanza, a current director of District, who on Saturday February 14, 2015
met with me, Donald Specht and Grant McMasterA, a member of the Board of
Encharis, at Ricky's restaurant in Surrey, BC, informed me that, when he joined
the board of directors of District in 2010, the District financial operation was in a
mess. {my emphasis) :

In the same CBC interview with Rev Schiemann, it is reported of him that “...he
is still trying to understand how the district (sic) landed in such financial trouble.
The financial crisis was caused by what he describes as a “perfect storm” of
factors, including: investors withdrawing, outstanding loans, including the one to
Prince of Peace that in 2012, the last audit available, shows it was worth 70
million dollars....”

This is expressly contrary to what the District’s auditor of the 2012 financial
statements (Exhibit 11) said of the 70 million dollar loan, which was made not to
Prince of Peace but to “sister” company, Encharis, which loan the auditor
describes thus in Note 7 to the financial statements: “There have been
significant principal repayment shortfalls and continual interest payment
shortfalls. As such the foan to ECHS could potentially be impaired. However,
due to lack of information, it could not be determined whether an impairment
exists. Principal repayments of $2,000,000 each were required to be made
annually in 2007 through 2009 with the remaining to be negotiated. These
principal repayments have not been made. Management has allowed for the
unpaid interest of $5,176,000.”

In addition to failing to make the principal repayments since inception, the
interest charges ‘were not paid but simply accrued and added to the debt,
bringing it to over $90 million.

| believe the facts set out in these 2012 financial statements show that Rev
Schiemann and the District board of directors at the time knew very well that the
loan to Encharis was impaired and that the auditor’s statement that “due to lack
of information, it could not be determined whether an impairment exists” is
disingenuous at best, at worst indicates that the auditor did not make due

enquiry, preferring fo take the word of the management that the loan was not
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40.

41.

42.

impaired. This conclusion is supported by other observations of the auditor, in
its report where, for example, it states that, “The District's portfolio investments
are carried on the financial statement at cost. Management has not stated the
investments at market value which constitutes a departure from Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles.”

Lack of due enquiry on the part of the auditor in respect of the 2012 financial
statements would also appear apparent in its statement in Note 7 that
“Management has allowed for the unpaid interest [on the Encharis loan] of
$5,176,000.” In fact examination of the balance sheet of this financial
statement shows that the unpaid $5,176,000 of interest does not appear as an
asset on line item “Accrued interest on loans and mortgages receivable (Note
7)" which shows only $117,799 in accrued receivable interest, but as an
expense in the Statement of Operations Expense. District simply wrote off the
CEF interest receivable, presumably as uncollectible.

Rev Schiemann also said in the CBC interview that, “In March 2014, the

investment fund at the centre of the problem stopped accepting deposits.”

- Contrary to Rev Schiemann’s claim, | am personally aware of a number of

elderly persons from whom renewal deposits were accepted as late as
December 23, 2014. One 87 year old lady at the first “information” meeting at
Trinity Lutheran Church in Abbotsford, BC on January 15, 2015 informed Pastor
Dressler, the board of directors member speaking to the meeting, that she had
had a note come due December 23, 2014 and District accepted not only a
renewed deposit of the principal but also reinvestment of most of the accrued
interest, leaving the lady in a financial mess when Rev Schiemann pulled the
rug out on January 2, 2015. Since then, | have spoken to a number of persons
who had a similar experience during the latter part of 2014 and believe all to be
telling the truth.

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT ATTITUDE TO CEF VICTIMS
An attitude of recklessness on the part of District management concerning my
and all the other victims savings‘in the CEF and the DIL was confirmed by Rev
Schiemann in the same January 23, 2015 CBC interview where he is reported
to have stated, “We made decisions in favour of ministry, and as a result there

were some poor financial decisions,” [and that he] has no regrets over the
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44,

45,

ministerial work done at the Prince of Peace development east of Calgary.

Most of the persons who have deposited monies with the CEF are much more

“elderly than |. Many of those who have spoken to me about the moratorium are

very distressed at the prospect of losing their retirement funds; several are
suffering anxiety, fear and nervous disorders and some | am informed may not
be able to afford their independent living arrangements and medical care.

In the CBC interview of January 23, 2015 (Exhibit 15), Rev Schiemann is
reported as being adamant that anyone who knew about the financial situation
did not make withdrawals. However, the CEF fund statements indicate that in
October 2008, when total CEF deposit obligations stood at $106 miIEioﬁ, Prince
of Peace congregation members were owed deposits of $7,545,300. Great
financial difficulties were beginning to appear in the POP Development at that
time and, those deposit obligations declined to only $2900,000,
notwithstanding that the overall CEF obligations to depositors had risen to
$143,000,000 in September ‘2013. Other congregations were generally
increasing or maintaining their deposits in the CEF as indicated in the Schedule
of CEF & DIL Deposits 2008 to 2014 and a graphical comparison {attached
hereto as EXHIBIT 16 to my affidavit} of the trend of Prince of Peace
congregational holdings in CEF & DIL with the trend in holdings of other
congregations over the same period.

In its Initial Report at page 14, the Monitor notes that the District may have a
conflict of interest as a result of its position as a fiduciary for the DIL
Depositors...[that] may expose the District to additional potential claims, such
as for breach of fiduciary duty.

Mr. Francis Taman, the barrister and solicitor acting for the Applicants in this
matter, has occupied official positions at material times over the years when
actions were taken that were materially adverse to the interests of CEF
depositors and when financial situations arose and were dealt with to the
disadvantage of the CEF and its depositors. In an April 4, 2015 search
(attached hereto as EXHIBIT 16-A to my affidavit) of the Canada Revenue
Agency Charity’s Return Mr. Taman is named in the “List of Directors/Trustees
and Like Officials” without indicating a particular office held, indicating that he is

a trustee of Encharis Management and Support Services (EMSS).
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46.

47,

48.

49,

50.

51.

Mr. Taman has over the years held other official positions in the Applicanis as
indicated by District Officer Kurtis Robinson’s March 19, 2015 affidavit, in
Exhibit “L”, an August 16, 1999 life lease sale agreement of Unit 25 (in the
Prince of Peace Village) which Mr. Taman executed as the authorized signing
officer of District. His involvement in the business affairs and official positions
with the Applicants appear to place him in a conflict of interest with his

representative capacity in this matter.

UNAUTHORIZED BANKING & TRUST OPERATIONS
In my dealings with the District and its management, | believed it to have
authority to solicit and take deposits as a bank, trust company, or credit union:
and in all respects it so operated de facto as a bank, or credit union or other
deposit-taking institution and solicited deposits and investments without any
authority for doing so.
In my dealings with the District and its management, | believed it to have
authority to operate as financial advisors and in all respects it so operated,
using me as a representative without it or me being licensed to do so.
In its initial report at page 14, the Monitor intimates that certain documentation
governing the relationship between the District and DIL and the CEF and DIL
Depositors may disclose that there may be potential ciaims against the District
and DIL and their respective directars and officers arising out of any potential
compliance requireme'nts of the Loan and Trust Corporatiohs Act of Alberta and
the Securities Act of Alberta. |
Though it advertised its financial products and services to be equal to or betier
than those of the "Big Five" banks, in lending the CEF and DIL monies to
Encharis and others, the management of District disregarded the security
interests of me and the other depositors to the CEF and the contributors to the
DIL. For that reason | oppose giving them insurance and security against claims
against them and allowing all such persons who created this acknowledged
financial mess being left in charge of my retirement savings and those of the
many other elderly persons whose trust appears to have been abused as | have

determined mine has been.

By Article 4 of that certain RRSP and RRIF AGENCY TRUSTEE AGREEMENT

(“the 2002 Trust Agreement”) dated April 9, 2002 between DIL and registered
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52.

53.

54.

Trustee, Co-operative Trust Company of Canada (‘the Trustee”), (forming part
of Exhibit K to the January 22, 2015 Affidavit of Kurtis Robinson), the Trustee
appointed DIL as its Agent, with the duties listed Article 5 thereof, including (at
page 8) subparagraph m. requiring DIL to provide on an annual basis a written
confirmation by the external auditors of [DIL] within six months following each
fiscal year end of [DIL] addressed to and supplied to the Trustee to the effect
that they have examined the Contracts [Annuitant accounts] in sufficient detail
to confirm, in their opinion, that:

e all investments issued to Contracts and all Contract cash held under this

agreement are recorded in such a manner so as to adequately identify the

Investments and cash as the property of the Trustee in its capacity as

trustee for the various Annuitants;

«Copy of Errors and Omissions Insurance Policy, or other insurance policy
obtained by the Company in accordance with prudent industry standards,
covering losses incurred by way of theft, fraud or defalcation;

eCopy of insurance policy relating to coverage for employees dishonesty,

depositors forgery and loss of funds; and

eAnnual Audited Financial Statement.

There is nothing in the material disclosed by District to indicate that District's
auditors could or did provide opinions to the Trustee that “adequately identify
the Investments and cash of DIL as property of the Trustee”.

Article 1.01 e. of the 2002 Trust Agreement defines “Investments” as those
“..which are qualified investments for RRSPs and RRIFs in accordance with
the Income Tax Act’. The 2008 unsecured loan related to the Strathmore
property was not such an investment, nor are the $8 miflion in Concentra
mortgages, which District Officer and management representative, Kurtis
Robinson, acknowledges in paragraph 63 of his January 22, 2015 affidavit as
“uncollectible”. | believe Concentra Trust and District were negligent in failing to
apply due diligence to review and implementing of this transaction involving
more than 10% of the then DIL asset base.

In Note 12 at page 12 of the audited financial statements of District made up to
January 31, 2010 (attached hereto as EXHIBIT 17 to my affidavif) the auditors,
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55.

56.

57.

Rolfe, Benson LLP chartered accountants, state, “District holds a mortgage loan
payable to District Investments related to the Strathmore, Alberta property in the
amount of $5,955,625.” The mortgage document in this case was never filed
until December 23, 2014 and it is not credible that it existed before that time.

A further Note 15 at page 14 of the audited financial statements of District made
up to January 31, 2010 {(attached hereto as EXHIBIT 17 to my affidavit)
cryptically indicates in the third paragraph on page 14 that, “In addition, on 1
August 2008, the District acquired the title to the Strathmore, Alberta
property and extinguished the related mortgage loan receivable in Church

Extension Fund. This transaction has been previously measured in these

financial statements at the carrying amount of the mortgage loan receivable

previously recognized in the accounts of the District at the date of title

transfer, which amounts to $5,891,315. The Strathmore land and buildings
have been recorded as other properties in the Plant Fund as of 31 January
2010.” (my emphases)

The meaning of “previously measured” and “previously recognized” in Note 15
by District's auditor, Rolfe, Benson LLP, who ceased to be District’'s auditor
after the 2010 audit, may be explained by an August 16, 2007 news item of the
Strathmore Standard (attached hereto as EXHIBIT 18 to my affidavit) reporting
that, on August 8, 2007, the former Covenant Bible College campus, which is
the Strathmore property, was purchased “...by another Christian' group,
EnCharis, for the sum of $5.85 million.”

| believe the only source of such funds for Encharis was the CEF and that a
mortgage in some form was granted by District or Encharis in favour of the CEF
for the purchase price.

In the January 31, 2010 financial statements of District, the auditors gave no
details concerning how or when the ‘transfer of the Strathmore title from
Encharis to District, other than to say, in Note 12, “The District holds a
mortgage loan payable to District Investments related to the Strathmore, Alberta
property in the amount of $5,955,625.” Presumably that mortgage was ‘held’ in
trust for CEF and related to the $5,891,315 purchase price of the Strathmore
property. . In Note 15 of the same 2010 District financial statements the auditor

says, “In addition, on August 8, 2008, the District acquired title to the
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58.

59.

60.

Strathmore, Alberta property and extinguished the related mortgage loan

receivable in Church Extension Fund.” | believe “extinguished” does not mean

. paid off.

It appears from this that District breached its trust obligation to CEF in order that
it would be in a position to pledge the same property a second time to borrow
$6 million from the DIL. In either case, a loan of that amount would mean
financing of more 100% of the asset value was approved, which is
inappropriately risky for any investment, and especially so for a registered
retirement fund.

The reason for this action on the part of District appears to be explained later in
the same August 2007 news item by Rev Steve Grande, executive director of
Encharis at the time, saying, “We're running out of space in Calgary’. Rev
Grande outlined expansive plans for the project, including moving Encharis’
offices from Calgary to Strathmore, constructing a 5C-apartment affordable
housing project requiring “a further $2.8 million into the Strathmore dormitories”
and a Lutheran congregation site on the property. Rev Grande described other
plans, including “using [Encharis’] transportation expertise ... to prévide group
transportation for those requiring accessible transportation solutions in the
Greater Calgary area.” Money was needed for the move, renovations and
dormitories and | believe the $6 million taken from DIL was applied to these
purposes. | also believe it will be discovered that the CEF's part in supplying
the initial property purchase loan of $5,955,625 was then eliminated by District
simply extinguishing its mortgage.

In the same August 16, 2007 Strathmore Standard news item (Exhibit 18)
executive director of Enchaﬁs, Rev Grande, revealed that, “Another member of
the [Encharis] group is Shepherd’s Village Ministries Ltd., which owns and
operates another facility, The Shepherd’s Village in Valleyview, Alberta.”

In an interview with Gerry Steinke, the site manager of The Shepherd's Village,
the November 13, 2013 Fairview Post (a print of which is attached hereto as
EXHIBIT 19 to my affidavit) describes the Village as consiéting of 43 completed
independent units currently built on a 12-acre site in Valleyview, Alberta owned
and operated by

“The Shepherd’s Village Ministries...a not for profit corporation
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61.

62.

63.

64,

corporation dedicated to providing caring, independent, and affordable

housing to 55-plus residents within a Christian environment. The

. Shepherd’s Village Ministries board of directors is comprised members

(sic) and leaders of the Lutheran Church Canada, a church body of
65,000 members with approximately 300 churches across Canada.
Additionally, Shepherd's Village Ministries are supervised by
EnCharis, a private senior citizens service organization, and oversees
both projects in Valleyview and Prince of Peace in Calgary, Alta.”
The Shepherd’s Village holding is not mentioned by name in the three audited
District financial statements | have seen. However, in a summary of
ENCHARIS COMMUNITY HOQUSING AND SERVICES' unaudited financial
statements at March 31, 2010 (which are not consolidated with, though District
controls and finances Encharis) in Note 9 of District's January 31, 2011 audited
financial statements (Exhibit 20) there appears a $16,984,056 single line asset
described as “Due from Encharis Group”.
The Monitor's FIRST REPORT at page 13 describes Encharis ‘related party
accounts receivable as $2.1 million due from EMSS (Encharis Management
and Support Services) and $2.3 million due from Shepherd’s Village Ministries
Ltd. This agrees with the summary of related party receivables described in
paragraph 44 of District Officer Kurtis Robinson’s January 22, 2015 affidavit.
The conclusion to be drawn is that, at some tirhe between January 31, 2011
and December 31, 2014, $z12,575,685 of the “Encharis Group” debt was repaid
or otherwise disappeared. Since Encharis’ source of funding has been the CEF
and DIL and the loans of the latter have been accounted for, one mfust conclude
that the original source of Shepherd’s Village Ministries was the CEF. Then,
since it is reported that Shepherd's Village Ministries Ltd. built and sold at least
43 independent units on 12 acres and there is no evidence that the sales
proceeds went back to the CEF, one must conclude that a debt reduction of
that magnitude was achieved by the debt being “extinguished” in the manner

District appears to have adopted in dealing with its major CEF debt items.

DISTRICT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS as at January 31, 2011
In its INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT on the District's financial

statements for the year ended January 31, 2011 (a copy of which is attached
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65.

66.

hereto as EXHIBIT 20 to my affidavit) a new firm of auditors, chartered
accountants, Pennock Acheson Nielsen Devaney, offered several revealing and
alarming opinions: _ -

e Under the heading “Basis for Qualified Opinion”, the auditor says,
“Management has not stated the portfolio investments at market value which
constitutes a departure from Canadian generally accepted accouniing
pringiples.” and

e“The District changed its accounting policy during the year to record
amortization on their property, plant and equipment. The change was made
prospectively rather than retroactively which constitutes a departure from
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.”

In Note 4 of the 2011 financial statements (Exhibit 20) under the heading
“Church Extension Fund (“CEF")” the auditor says, “The Church Extension
Fund is used to record funds received by the District at reasonable rates of
interest for the purpose of providing financial support to congregations for
capital purposes.” '

This is an incorrect statement on the part of the auditor, contradicting the
express distinction made by both District and CEF depositors, whether
individuals or congregations, who understand that “support” is intended as a
donation to be used at the discretion of the done without further obligation to
the dono\rs, while “deposits” or “investments” are to be made available to
congregations, not as donations of capital but to be secured to the CEF
depositors as mortgage !oans. District management has ignored the distinction
in its dealings with depositors to the CEF, though it consistently promised the
depositors mortgage security in its many regular advertisements, brochures,

individual communications and interest rate offerings on deposits.

In the second-last paragraph of the INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT of
the 2011 financial statements (Exhibit 20) under the heading “Emphasis of
Matter” the auditor says, “We draw attention fo Note 4 to the financial
statements; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Financial Instruments,
Credit Risk and Measurement Uncertainty which describes the valuation of the

loans to EnCharis Community and Housing Services. Our opinion is not
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67.

qualified in respect of this matter.” (my emphasis)
In Note 4 of the 2011 financial statements (Exhibit 20) the auditor makes a

number of alarming disclosures not generally, or at all, known to CEF and DIL

depositors, namely:

e under the heading “Financial instruments” the auditors state, “The fair value of
the land proceeds assignment...could not practically be determined because [it
has] no fixed repayment terms and lack an available trading market.”

This is in reference to the transaction described in Note 10 of the 2011 financial
statements which describe the District’s agreement with an unnamed mortgage
debtor whereby $6,000,000 of mortgage debt was “extinguished” in exchange
for the District having the right to receive proceeds from future land sales made
by the former mortgage debtor in excess of the mortgage loan receivable
extinguished but will have no recourse if the eventual proceeds are not
sufficient to discharge the receivable in full. |

| believe that the mortgage debt referred to is an $8 million loan to the Prince of
Peace congregation of which several directors and the District’s legal counsel
were members at the material time and that the land in question was originally
purchased with monies borrowed from the CEF. | aiso believe that the form of
disclosure of this transaction in these financial statements was designed to
avoid identifying those involved and to obscure the nature and effect of this
transaction that gives preference to an organization fo or in which insiders of
District were related or financially involved at the expense of the depositors to
the CEF and in breach of the directors’ fiduciary duty to CEF depositors.

¢ under the heading “Financial instruments” the auditor says, "The District is
exposed to credit risk on the loans and mortgages receivable. The District
mitigates its risk by securing the loans with the undetrlying properties however at
this time, they have unsecured loans within the range of $19M and $23M [that
is Million] from EnCharis Community Housing and Services ("ECHS"). 94%
(2010 — 93%) of the balance of loans and mortgages receivable are from
ECHS.”

This is openly in breach of all assurances set out in the Church Extension
Manual (Exhibit 2), and given to CEF representatives for passing on to

depositors of CEF that: (A) Investments in Church Extension are guaranteed by
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ABC District of Lutheran Church — Canada (page M-2); (B) the District Board of
Directors has assigned responsibility for CEF administration to the Department
of Financial Ministries, which “.. establishes policies that ensure the safe and
efficient functioning of Church Extension,” in accordance with Church Extension
Fund Policy that includes (at page 6) requiring, prior to funds being disbursed:
“1. Security documentation appropriate to the size and conditions of the loan.”

e under the heading “Controlled entity” the auditors note that *...RRSP [i.e. DIL]
was incorporated...as trust agent and investment manager of the [RRSP and
RRIF] plans for annuitants” and that "District has the same Board of Directors
and management of RRSP and make all of the key decisions for this group.”
The conflicts of interest are serious and would be obvious to the Directors.

e under the heading “Entity subject to significant influence” the auditors note
that District “is in a position of significant influence over ECHS...”, to whom 94%
of CEF funds were loaned, is not a church but a “...Company [that] provides
residential services to persons above the age of 55 and ... palliative care to
seniors”, that describes itself to Canada Revenue Agency as a "WELFARE
ORGANIZATION" (Exhibit 12) and neither are purposes of which the CEF
depositors were aware and neither of which 1 and other depositors to whom |
have spoken would have approved to receive loans of all or most of my/their
retirement savings.

e Under the heading “Measurement uncertainty” the auditors state that “The
[ECHS] loan is currently undersecured by ... $19,000,000 to $23,000,000. The
valuation of the loan is based on estimates of cash inflows that extend into the
distant future beyond 30 years.... Management is contemplating restructuring
certain terms of the loan. As of the audit date, the restructuring had not been
finalized and approved by the Board of Directors.”

That management of ECHS (controlled by District) was contemplating
restructuring the ECHS loans from CEF in 2010 indicates they were then aware
of ECHS's desperate financial position, as set forth in Exhibit F of the January
22, 2015 Affidavit of District Officer, Kurtis Robinson, revealing that this money-
losing affiliate of District that, over all its term of existence to November 30,
2014 and while being in dereliction of meeting both its interest and principal

payments, has managed to produce nothing but a cumulative retained
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68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

earnings DEFICIT of $50,961,868. (my emphasis)

In the making of restructuring plans under the current CCAA application, it

appears reliance is still being placed on financial projections that continuetobe =~ .

made by the same management person or persons of the Applicants who
produced this frighteningly negative retained earnings record and who enjoy

protection under a stay of proceedings.

The accounting firm of Pennock Acheson Nielsen Devaney, auditors of District’s
January 31, 2011 Financial Statements (Exhibit 20) ceased to be auditors after
that audit, as did the chartered accounting firm of Rolfe Benson LLP after
auditing District’'s January 31, 2012 financial statements.
District management failed to appoint any auditor since January 31, 2012.
The result of this is that for the three fiscal years ending January 31, 2013, 2014
and 2015 District has been in breach of its obligation to provide audited
financial statements to the trustee of the DIL and in breach of its fiduciary
obligation to properly account to the CEF depositors for the deposits held in its
trust,

ENCHARIS MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES (EMSS)
The March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 financial statements of EMSS
(attached hereto as EXHIBIT 21 to my affidavit) were audited by BDO Canada
LLP ("BDO").
Though it had common control with EMSS, one must question why District did
not appoint BDO its auditor for the fiscal years 2013 and 2014, since significant
cost-savings can normally be achieved by using the same auditor for several
affiliated companies.
The answer to why District did not appoint BDO to audit its January 31, 2013
and January 31, 2014 financial statements may well lie in the nature of BDO's
observations in its Report on and Notes to the EMSS financial statements for
the 2012 and 2013 fiscal years..
In its Report on the 2012 and 2013 financial statements of EMSS under the

heading “Basis for Qualified Opinion” is the statement:

“Management advised us that there are two entities with the same Boards of

Directors and are therefore under common control. We have been unable to
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obtain satisfactory evidence as to the accuracy of amounts required for the
disclosures related to entities under common control, as the entities have not

~ been subject to audits.”

The following lists of officials of District and the other Applicants are drawn from
April 4, 2015 Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) Charities Listings searches
(attached hereto as EXHIBITS 16-A and 16-B to my affidavit) and Exhibit C to
the January 22, 2015 affidavit of Kurtis Robinson in this matter.

LCC-ABC
District’ EnCharis EMSS DIL
Name
Schiemann, Pres & VP & Director & VP* & Directer, President
Donald Director Member? & Member®
Ruf, Mark 1st VP & Director Dirsctor Director
Director
Robinson, Treasurer Manager President
Kurtis
Dressler, Director &
David 2" yp
Taman, Mo specific
Francis office’
Lee, Stan Director Director .
Rivet, VP VP & Director
Candace
Giese, Greg Director Director
Haberstock, Directer
Keith
Haberstock, Directer
Don .
Henning, Darla Director
Kentel, Jim Director
Lewis, Brian Director
Morgan, Bill Director Director
Schmidt, Director Director
Harold
Wolgram, Director
Mark
Bode, David ) Director & Director &
Secretary Secretary
Heumann, Director & Pres & Pres, Director
Hans Member? & Membar?
Kental, Jim Director Director & Director &
Member? Member?

Mueller, John Dir & Treasurer Dir & Treasurer
Schoepp, Direttor Director
Dave
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74,

Note 1: Only 9 of 12 District directors are mentioned in this list.
Note 2: | believe "Member” indicates that the person is a trustee-shareholder
of the particular company created by District administration for District fo
carry out financial and other non-ecclesiastical activities, including the
condominium housing developments.
Note 3: Mr. Taman is one of five individuals have no specific office, but are
identified in the CRA Charities Listing only as “Trustees and Like Officials”,
which | believe indicates he is a trustee of the equity and operations of the
organization.
Note 4. In the CRA Charities Listing (Exhibit 16-A) Mr. Schiemann is
described as the “Vice Chairmann (sic)’
In BDO's Notes on the 2012 and 2013 financial statements of EMSS, the
auditor makes the following observations:
¢ Under heading “Accounting for Entities Under Common Control” of Note 1,
the auditor says, “EMSS, EnCharis Community Housing and Services (‘ECHS")
and Shepherd's Village Ministries (“SVM”) are under common control. Under
ASNPO the Organization may either consolidate these organizations or provide
separate note disclosure containing certain financial information about these
organizations. EMSS has not consolidated these organizations and has
not provided the required disclosure as the entities have not been subject
to audits.” (my emphasis)
¢ In the first and third paragraphs under heading “Controll-ed Entities” in Note 12
the auditor says, |
»“‘Encharis Community Housing and Services and Shepherd’'s Village
Ministries Ltd. are both under common control. As noted in Note 1 —
Accounting for Entities under Common Control, these organizations have
not been consolidated in EMSS’s financial statements, nor has the
Organization provided the required note disclosure.” (my emphasis) and
> “SVM builds and owns condominium units under life lease. SVM performs
management functions for the condominium corporation for the purpose of
providing affordable living for seniors in the Valleyview and surrounding area.
SVM does not provide any services to EMSS.” As described in Exhibit 19,

“...Shepherd’s Village  Ministries owns and operates a 12 acre site in
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76.

Valleyview, Alta with 43 independent units currently on site...”

Attached hereto as EXHIBIT 22 to my affidavit is an advertisement titled
“TOWN OF VALLEYVIEW' describes “THE SHEPHERD'S VILLAGE”
describing an offering of bungalow or condo apartment styles units for prices
ranging “from $170,000 to $235,000 no profit mark-up”. These appear to be the
same units described in the November 2013 items hereto attached as Exhibit
19. Assuming that there was no mark-up and the average price of the units
was therefore about $200,000, their sale should have yielded approximately
$8.6 million. Since the source of funding for this development seems to have
been provided by Encharis, which would have received the funds from CEF,
one must ask whether any of the sale proceeds of this development was ever
returned to CEF.

» In Note 4 under the heading “Related Party Balances and Transactions” the
auditor describes a $1,898,699 amount outstanding at March 31, 2013 as: “Due
to Encharis Community Housing and Services (‘ECHS") —~ The amount due is
unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no set terms of repayment. The
organization is related due to being under common control.* (my
emphasis)

»According to paragraph 44 in his January 22, 2015 affidavit in this matter,
District Officer, Kurtis Robinson, says $2,344,481.00 is owing by Shepherd's
Village Ministries Ltd. at November 30, 2014. Robinson also says, “The
receivable from Shepherd’s Village Ministries Lid. is being paid at $5,000.00 per
month and over the last two years has had additional payments made of
approximately $150,000.00 per year.”

| believe that the foregoing indicates that mény more CEF sums converted to
such uses will be discovered if the Court sees fit to open this matter to
independent examination by the CEF and DIL depositors to whom plain, true

and full disclosure is ordered.

NO TIMELY NOTICE OF IMPROPRIETIES
| received no notice from Concentra Trust, the trustee of the DIL, concerning
this state of affairs. Since there has been no auditor for the years 2013, 2014

and 2015, there have been no Audited Financial Statements to deliver to the
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78.

79.

80.

Trustee, which would appear to indicate that District, its directors and officers
and the Trustee are in breach of their fiduciary duty to the Annuitants and
grossly negligent in performance of their respective duties under the 2002 Trust

Agreement.

It appears the Trustee did not question why a loan of $6 million from the DIL in
2008 was not secured by a mortgage and failed to give notice that this
constituted a breach of the trust agreement, as nothing seems to have been
done about it until December 23, 2014, when ineffective mortgage security was

filed by a person or persons unknown to DIL depositors.

There is nothing in the material filed in this matter that indicates which law firm,
if any, carried out the securing of all the Encharis and Prince of Peace
Development loan transactions, nor the name of the law firm that prepared and

filed the possibly unenforceable DIL mortgage on December 23, 2014.

As manager of the CEF, District has consistently preferred the interests of those
involved in the POP Development and others over the interests of the
Depositors and the Annuitants to whom it owed a fiduciary duty. This has been
made apparent in subparagraph 79.1 of the Monitor's SECOND REPORT dated
March 23, 2014 in the staterhent that, “CEF collects monthly lease payments of
approximately $29,000 ($28,000 plus GST) from the Golden Hill School Division

- for a lease on a property in Strathmore, Alberta (the “Golden Hill Property™).

CEF granted a mortgage on the Golden Hill Property in favour of DIL and
makes monthly mortgage payments to DIL in the amount of approximately
$29,000 per month ...." This circular payment of a single sum appears to be an
attempt to create the appearance that both the CEF and the DIL were receiving
payment on two loans of essentially the same amount in respect of the same
property.

For the abovesaid reasons, | believe that an independent forensic audit is the
only way in which the true state of affairs of the CEF and the DIL can be

determined.
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81.  The prospect of this financial loss of my savings is causing me and my family
great emotional distress, fear and humiliation. | also weekly learn that distress
is also being suffered by many of my friends and fellow parishioners who
invested in the CEF and DIL.

SWORN BEFORE ME at Surrey, British Columbia )
BC this 15th day of May, 2015

vy 4

Haunesl

Nothry Public Wovmce of RANDM L SCOTT KELLEN
British Columbia Jacek Januszewski
Notary Public

Suite 107-15850 24th Ave,
Surrey, B.C., V35 031

PRINT NAME OF LAWYER/NOTARY PUBLIC

MY COMMISSION 1S PERMANENT
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FEBRUARY 1995

Front: Samantha and Lawrence D'avidson, Elizabeth Arnst, Imar Juergens. Second row: Diama Davidson,

Gerda and Gus Neumann, Angie and Amanda Todd, Doug Keating. Back row: Mark, Jessica, and Colleen
Putzer, Pastor Rich Brewn, Tim Trita, fudy and Kevint Bruce. Missing from the photo: Michael Grani snd

Etharn Nast

November 27, 1994 was a special day for
the people of Lord of Life Luiheran Church,
Karmloops not because it was Grey Cup
Sunday, but because they wete privileged to
welcome 17 new members.

New members were weloymed in a spe-
cial service by way of iransfer, profession of
faith, and by adult baptism. Colleen and Jessica

Patzer, a mom and daughter were baptized
on the same day! We also celebrated the con-
firmation of Ethan Nast who was instracted
by his mom, Ellen, at his home in Merritt, a
45 minute drive from Kamloops.

Following the service, the congregation
gathered in the foyer for a delicious potluck
Tunch which was prepared and served by

ADVENT, EVANSBURG WELCOMED

On November 13, 1994, Advent utheran Church, Evansburg, AB was formally received as 8 congregation

of Lutheren Church-Canada, Prevident H. Ruf pres
bership af the worship service of “hat

ented Chairman DHeter Schadow a certificate of mem-
day. Advent Lutheran was officially received into Lutheran Church-

Canada a the District Conpenticn on June 4, 1994, Pictured above from left to right: President H. Ruf;
Dieter Schadow; Rev. Heinz Hertivig-Jaksch (EM, Congregational menber); Rev. Jon Estes (pastor).

" Concordia College. The primary

17 NEW MEMBERS WELCOMED AT LORD OF LIFE

some of the

Lord of §
congregatic
Church-Car
agoithasg
members it
piffedand e
Hon has bes
innovative

This is EXHBIT "1* referred 1o
in the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Kelign

from the riviphbashadd were invited boenjoy
stories, songs, games and Christmas crafis
while their parerts were free to shop, or coir-
plete lastminute chores before Chrigtmas. All
participants were given aninvitation to attend
spedal Christmas services. Two famihies came
to the Christmas Eve Candielight service!

Harlier in the year a “Hallehgah Party” was
held as an alternative to Halloween. The con-
gregation even sent its pastor to Clown College
last summer. Pastor Rich Brown is now a cer-
tified clown and has a diploma to prove it.

We are grateful for the Snancial support
from our pariner congregations in the District.
We want you to know that your mission dol-
lars are being used effectively as God continues
to build His kingdom among us.

Lutheran School Prepares For
September Opening.

The charter meeting for the Edmonton
Lutheran School Society was held on
December 6 at the Braemar Campus of
function of
the meeting was o elect a Board of Directors
that will oversee the establishment of a
Lutheran Schoal on the site. The school will
open in September for the 1995/96 school

year.

Although initial planning of the school hag
been ongoing since 1992, the Sodiety was esteb-
lished to conduct, manage, and maintain the
Lartheran school on behalf of Lutheran Chasrch-
Canada,

"The school will build wpon the existing
Lutheran education in the Edracnton area and
will provide a quality Christian education to
students. It will be fully accredited by the
Province of Alberta and will teach the cur-
ricubum required by Alberta Education as well
as have a religious studies component.

More information can be received by call-
ing e Alberta-British Columbia District Office
at (403) 474-0063. ‘
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A sound family financial plan calls for saving. You put
your money in a place where it can grow, so you'll have what
you need for retirement, a college education or an unexpected
emergency.

The Church Extension Pund can help yon realize these
important family savings goals while you help to expand the
kingdom of God.

The Church Extension Fund allows you to choose from a
wide selection of savings plans. Each pays a favorable rate of
interest. Thus you move toward your financial goals.

In tuen, savings dollars in the Church Extension Fund are
loaned to buy sites and to build churches and scheols—places
where the Gospel of Jesus Christ can be shared.

Your savings can be working in the Lord’s service!

ReaChir[g : For information, call:

OUt ' (403) 474-0063
W'm 1? Lutheran Church Extension Fund
l Alberta-British Columbia District
inteTESt 7100 Ada Boulevard,
Edmonton, Alberta T5B 4E4

o L
[

|WAGNER HILLS|

- FARM
New Life C

|| Dedication ¥his is EXHIBIT 1" referred to

il Delicious Roast Beef Dinner including

g in the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Kellen

Sworn before me this

Open House

Monday, March 13,
11:00 am to 3:00pm
Tours, Information, Coffee

Come ta

Friemdls of Farm
inrer

Friday, February 24, 6:30 p.m.

The Rancho
35110 Delair Rd., Abbotsford, B.C.

Musical Entertainment § s
biy Leon Leontairds g
Winner of PNE Youth Talent &
International Youth falent contest

Speaker — Henry Block
Information Display
Recovery Testimonials

Silent Auction
Open for bidding at &:00 pm

blueberry pie (berries frop Farm)
$15.00 per person

Farm Needs

Small dressers & read- l
Y, inglamps for men's |}
bedrooms |

Gym Equipment, |2
weights, etc. (we have |}
stationary bike) [
Linens —
single sheets,
pillow cases, pillows,
bath towels, dish towels e
dish cloths. ;

Skill Saw and Equipment for
new workshop.




- CHURCH EXTEMSION

7100 ADA BOULEVARD, EDMONTON, ALBERTA T5B 4E4  PH (780} 474-0063 FAX {780) 477.9829
EMAIL: finances@liccabe.ca TOLL FREE 1-B88-474-0063

& ”‘Eafé%? the Chkaroh”

November 6, 20011 e

This is EXHIBIT "2" referred 1o
in the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Kellen

Sworn hefore me this ,
Mr. Randy Kellen d%ﬁgls ,
P,

8857 — 15™ Averme tary Public in-guefor the
Burnaby BC VIN 1X4 Irorince of British Columbia
Dear Randy,

Welcome to Church Extension! We give thanks to our Lord for you accepting the position of
Church Extension Representative in your congregation. God has blessed the ministry of Church
Extension over the past 80 years, and has used CEF as an instrument to bless individuals,
congregations within our District, and the Lutheran Church-Canada at large. It is a joy for us to
know that you will be sharing these blessings within your own congregation.

Enclosed are introductory materials to assist you in spreading the good word regarding CEF
savings accounts, the Tracky program for young people in your congregation, and RRSP/RRIF
investments. The enclosed brochure set forth the current CEF rate schedule, which varies from
3.0% on savings accounts to 5.0% for 5-year investments. The Tracky program is an excellent
and fun way for voung folks to learn responsible savings habits. The District is unique in
offering RRSP/RRIF retirement savings plans so that congregational members may receive the
two-fold blessing of tax-deferred saving for their retirement at the same time as helping spread
the Good News of salvation through Jesus Christ our Lord.

Also enclosed is a forms-and-resources histing which you may use to request any CEF or RRSP
materials in the fature. We also distribute newsletters to our CEF representatives on a quarterly
basis, and hold an annual CEF conference in the Spring where many ideas are shared among the
District staff and CEF representatives. This year’s conference is scheduled for April 19-21,
2001 at the Radisson Hotel and Conference Center in Canmore. We hope vou will be able to
join us during this conference. '

Your circuit’s Development Representative, Rev, Jorma Tuomisto, phone 604-945-4115, email
tnojm@hotmail.com, is avatlable to assist you with your CEF campaign. In addition, please
contact the District Office, toll-free at 1-888-474-0063 or by email at finances@lccabe.ca, where
the following individuals are available to assist you:



Mr. Randy Kellen
Page 2 - :
November6 2001

Ellen Fredrick, Receptionist: To request promotional materials

Pam Toole, Accounting Clerk: CEF/RRSP/RRIF Automatic deposits -

Edie Uler, CEF Accounting Clerk: CEF deposits and withdrawals

Janice Ruf, Administrative Assistant Tracky/CEF deposits and withdrawals

Susan Bacon, Administrator RRSP/RRIF mvestments

Ted Ulmer, District Executive Assistant:  Congregational loans and financial
management

May our Lord and Saviour be with you and bless your service to Him and the Church through
your Church Extension ministry.

J oyfully serving our Lord,

e

Susan E. Bacon
Administrator

cel Pastor Lawrence Koehler
Development Committee Member

-y
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This manual is provided to assist you in your role
Church Extension Representative in the Alberta-British
Columbia District of Lutheran Chur‘c!?-Canada. May
God bless you as you share the ministry of Church

This Is EXHIBIT "3 referred to
in the Affidavit of

Randall Scott Kelien
Sworn before me this
day i #lay, 2015

(ﬁnee of British Columbia




CHURCH EXTENSION - A SPECIAL MINISTRY

God has blessed us with the MESSAGE. "For God so loved the world that he gave his one
and only Son, that whoever believes in him shall not perish but have eternal life.” John
3:16.

God has given us the MANDATE: "Therefore go, and make disciples of ail nations,
baptizing them in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit, and teaching
them to cbey everything [ have commanded you. And surely I will be with you always, to
the very end of the age." Matthew 28:19 & 20,

God has provided the MEANS : The WORD and the SACRAMENTS .

Through the ministry of congregations in our District, the Good News of the Gospel is
proclaimed to the people in our neighbourhoods, our country and the whole world. An
important part of this ministry is the facility in which the pastor and members reach out to
others with Christ’s tove. The primary goal of Church Extension is to provide loans with
reasonable interest rates to congregations that need property/buildings in order to carry on
the ministry of reaching souls for Christ.

Church Extension is a team ministry: congregations and CEF working together to extend
God's Kingdom. Church Extension provides opportunities for congregations and individuals
to make invesiments. Church Extension, in turn, uses these funds to provide loans for
capital projects of congregations.

Investments in Church Extension are unique because they provide a two way return to the
investor. Investors receive a spiritual return in knowing that their investments are working
to extend Christ's kingdom and at the same time receive a good financial return.
Investments are safe. Investments are easily accessible - a simple note or phene call to CEF
is all that is needed to withdraw funds.




CHURCH EXTENSION AT WORK

Church Extension consists of capital assets and investments.

Capital assets have increased over the years through gifts, bequests and operating

balances.

Investments are made by individuals, congregations or groups in Term Investments

or Savings Acceunts.

Church Extension pays interest to the investor according to the terms of the investment,
The principal is returned to the investor upon request.

Interest Rates -

Interest Payment -

Savings Accounts:

Term Investments:

~1 Year:

_2,3,4, 5 Year:

See brochure for current rates.

Interest calculated on minimum monthly balance and
compounded semmiannually, June 30 and December 31,
Interest earned annuaily and paid or compounded at maturity.

Interest earned annnally and paid or compounded on December
31 and at maturity.

Part of the Fuad is held in reserve to assure ready cash for withdrawals.

The balance of the Fund provides loans to congregations at rates and terms established
by the managers of the Fund, namely the Department of Financial Ministries.

Investments in Church Extension are gnaranteed by the ABC District of Lutheran
Church - Canada which has in excess of 30 million dollars ¢f assets. Church Extension
has a proven record of security. Since the beginning of its operation in 1921 no one has
ever lost a penny of their investment.




CHURCH EXTENSION STRUCTURE

The Alberta-British Columbia District Board of Directors, as the efected representatives
of the congregations of the District, is responsible for determining policies relative to the
missicn and ministry of the ABC Disirict including Church Extension.

The Board of Directors has assigned the responsibility of the administration of Church
Extension to the Department of Financial Ministries. This Department establishes
policies that ensure the safe and efficient functioning of Church Extension.

In order to facilitate the promotion and growth of Church Extension, the Departmernt of
Financial Ministries has appointed a CEF Development Committee . (The appointment
is for three years with the possibility of ope reappointment.) Each member of the
Development Committee is responsible for working with the Congregational
Representatives in their assigned region.

Alberta-British Columbia District Board of Directors

3
Department of Financial Ministries
:
CEF Development Comunittee
1

Congregational Representative

1
Congregational Members

September, 1599




Department of Financial Ministries

Duties of the Department of Financial Ministries:

10.

11.

12,

To administer Church Extension in the Alberta - British™Columbia District;

To promote and maintain an adequate fund to assist the District and congregations with
loans to provide sites and facilities for expansion;

To assist the District by providing funds for acquisition of advance mission sites for
long-range planning and future use,;

To establish policies with respect to granting loans and obtaining sufficient security;

To establish policies for maintaining, supervising, and enlarging the Church Extension
Fund on a sound financial basis;

To establish policies for maintaining, supervising, and enlarging the Church Extension
Fund on a sound financial basis;

To study and review the monthly financial statement to assure security‘and safety of the
program;

To periodically review financial statements of all Church Extension funds;
To confer with congregations in cooperatively promoting Church Extension;

To provide a complete financial statement in its report to the District, including money
borrowed and received, the total amount of loans outstanding and the amounts
delinquent in each congregation;

To consider and grant loans of less than $100,000 prior to Board of Directors approval,
loans in excess of $100,000 can be granted only after approval by the District Board of

Directors;

Review and set interest rates for investments and loans.

M-4




Church Extension Development Committee

Function of the CEF Development Committee:

1. To serve as liaison between the District and congregations;

2. To be knowledgeable in all aspects of Church Extension and its operation;

3. To recruit and assist in training Church Bxtension Representatives in each
congregation;

4. To regularly contact and encourage each congregational representative;

5. To visit congregations when necessary to heip in the promotion of Church
Extension;

6. To organize a circuit CEF meeting for the purpose.of setting goals, sharing ideas and

promoting the miristry of Church Extension;

7. To share ideas and suggestions with the Department that will further refine and
develop the Church Extension program of the District;

8. To willingly set an example by personally investing in the Church Extension Fund.




Congregational Representatives

Enrolling Congregational Representatives;

Congregational representatives are most often enrolied by a member of the CEF
Development Committee.  This should be done in consultation with the representative's
pastor. [n some cases congregational CEF representatives are appointed by the Church
Council or Voter's Assembly.

Congregational representatives should be individuals who are comfortable in speaking with
others about Church Extension. They should be willing to meet with organizations of the
congregation and talk about the Church Extension ministry. Husband and wife teams can
be very effective as Church Extension representatives.

Responsibilities of CEF Congregational Representatives:

1. Share the good news about the unique ministry of Church Extension with the
congregation membership in any or all of the following ways:

a) Short talks on the CEF ministry after worship services:

b) Sharing the CEF minisiry with groups in the congregation;

c) Placing bulletin clips about CEF in Sunday bulletins;

d) Placing information about CEF in the monthly newsletier;

e) Placing CEF posters and/or brochures or the church bulietin board;

f) Making CEF investment applications and brochures readily available to
congregational members;

gy Ensuring that CEF display materials are current and up-to-date;

h) Visiting congregational members for the purpose of encouraging them to
invest in Church Extension.

2. Serve as liaison between the investor and the ABC District CEF personnel.

3. Be knowledgeable about Church Extension and be familiar with the investment
application forms and other promotional material.

4. Make a concerted effort to keep up~to-date on CEF rates, promotional material and
other CEF information. This would inclade attending Church Extension Conferences

whenever possible.

5. Encourage the congregation to establish the Tracky Program (the CEF investment
program for children).

M- 6
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CHURCH EXTENSION FUND POLICY

1. INVESTMENTS

A. TYPE OF INVESTMENTS
The Alberta - British Columbia District Church Extension Fund will offer;

1. Term Investments

a) 1 Year Term
- Imterest paid or compounded on maturity

- Minimum $200.00
- Early withdrawal possible

b) 2 Year Term *
¢) 3 Year Term *
d) 4 Year Term *
e} 5 Year Term*

* Interest paid or compounded annually

* Minimum $200.00

* Early withdrawal possible - interest reduction to the applicable rate for the term
completed at the time of withdrawal.

* Interest can be paid monthly on investments of $25,000.00 or more, however, the
annual interest rate will be reduced by .25% unless the principal investrment
exceeds $100,000.00.

£y Zero Interest Term

- Will reduce income tax

- Interest will assist the development of Lutheran elementary/ir. high schools
with short term loans for start-up costs, property purchase or capital building
cOosts

- May be withdrawn at anytime with no penaity

- May be converted to an interest-bearing investment at renewal or be renewed
for another zero interest term




2.

3.

RRSP and RRIF

Atthe end of January 1997 the Distriet formed Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British
Columbia District Investments Lid. a not-for-profit corporation, known as ABC District
Investments. RRSP, Registered Retirement Savings Plan and RRIF, Registered Retlrcmcnt
Income Fund investments are now possible through this group plan.

Savings Accounts
- Minimum investment $10.00
.- Interest calcutated monthly on the minimmm monthly balance
- Interest compounded semiannually - on June 30 and December 31
- Deposits and withdrawals can be made at any time and in any amount
- Staternents issued twice a year - after June and December month end

4. Tracky Stamp Savings Account (See Program p. 10)

- Church Extension sells 25¢ Tracky stamps to congrepations who in turn sell them to
members, primarily Sunday Scheol children.

- On surrender of these stamps to Church Extension, the value of the stamps will
be invested in a savings account. Interest is paid from date of receipt in the Church
Extension Office. Investments should equal $10.00 or more,

- Stamps can be surrendered to Church Extension at any time for cash.

B. Inpterest Rates

1.

2,

Interest rates for investments wili be established by the Department Financial Ministries.

Church Extension interest rates wifl be adjusted in accordance with commercial
rates as much as possible.

Current rates are available from Church Extension.

An additional ,25% will be given on investments of $25,000 or more for 3,4 and 5
year terms.




. Investment Owuoership

1.

Sole Owner

a)

.b)

c)

Any individual who is a member of Lutheran Church - Canada or who is affiliated
with Lutheran Church - Canada may invest in Church Extension.

Any business whose owner is affiliated with Lutheran Church - Canada may invest
i Church Extension.

Friends of Church Extension investors may alse invest, however, Church
Extension cannot solicit investors outside of Lutheran Church - Canada,

Joint Owners

a)

b)

Individuals may make investments as joint owners with right of survivorship. As
joint owners, either party may make withdrawals.

As joint owners, both individuals should sign the investment application.

In Trust

Church Extension cannot be respensible for ensuring that trust arrangements are
carried out. Therefore, Church Extension will accept investinents made by parents
or grandparents for juvenile children, either in the name of the parent or grandparent
with the investment identified for the named child or in the name of the juvenile
child/adult, but will not accept responsibility for ensuring withdrawal by anyone
other than the listed owner. If it is listed in the name of the parent or grandparent,
only that listed individual may make withdrawals, If it is listed in the mame of the
child, only the child may make withdrawals. Joint ownership between

parent/grandparent and child allows either to make withdrawals,

Change of investment ownership can be made at anytime with a written request
signed by the listed owner.




D. Withdrawal of Imvestments
.. Withdrawals may be made from savings at any time.

2. Withdrawals may be made from term investments at any time with the interest reduced
to the applicable rate for the term completed at the time of withdrawal. This reduction
of interest 1s applied to the amount withdrawn.

3. There is no interest reduction when investments are donated to Church Extension.

4. Asigned withdrawal requestis the normal method of withdrawing investments. A stmple
written request which is signed by the investor is quite sufficient.

5. Telephone withdrawals. In order to expedite the withdrawal of finds, Church Extension
does allow funds to be withdrawn by telephone. In these instances, a telephone
withdrawal form is sent with the cheque to the owner for signature. This form must then,
be returned to the ABC District Church Extension Office in Edmonton.

&. When the owner or joint owner is deceased the following will be required:

ay Sole Owner
- Certified copy of the death certificate
- Instructions from the execufor or executrix of the estate as to pay out or

reinvestment in an alternate name.

b) Joint Owner
- Certified copy of death certificate
- Instructions by joint owner as to new ownership designation
- 1fjoint owners are both deceased, then the instructions of (a) above will apply.

E. Reserve

The Alberta - British Columbia District Church Extension Fund will maintain a minimum
ofbetween 10% and 15% of all investments on reserve at all times to ensurs that prompt

payment of all withdrawal requests.




.

II. LOANS

A. Loan Eligibility

1." All congregations of the Alberta - British Columbia District, in good standing, are

eligible to apply for a Church Extension loan. Congregations in good standing are
congregations which support the mission and ministry of the District and Synod in a
responsible way, function under a District approved constitution and comply with the
policy and practice established by Lutheran Church - Canada.

Institutions and entities of Lutheran Church - Canada, whose constitutions, policies and
practices are consistent with those of Lutheran Church - Canada are also eligible for
Church Extension loans if funds are avatlable.

T.oans will be made for capital projects only, Capital projects would include acquisition
of land, purchase or construction of building facilities, major renovations to ex1st1ng
facilities or expansion of existing facilities.

B. Loan Criteria

As funds are available, Church Extension will lend money to authorized borrowers based on
the following criteria:

L.

2.

9.

Need for facilities, renovations or property

Need for refinancing of existing debt

Relationship of total loan to property value and/or total assets
Financial history of congregation and financial projections for future
Growth potential of area and membership

Pledge program for building project

Indebtedness per communicant

Ability of congregation to service debt

Percentage of total income for debt service

10. Continuity of support to District and Synod




C. Loan Application

1.

Loan application forms are available from Church Extension at the ABC District Office.

2. A'loan application must be prepared by the borrower as a precondition for loan

consideration.

Application for a loan in an amount less than $500,000 will require financial projections
for three year. Application for a loan of $500,000 or more will require financial
projecticns for five years and an application for a lean of $ 1,000,000 or more will require
financial projections for ten years. CEF may require additional information depending
on individual congregational circumnstances. ’

. Loan Conditions

When a loan is approved by the Department of Financial Ministries and the ABC District
Board of Directors, the following will be required from the bormowing congregation, prior
to funds being disbursed:

L.

2,

Security documentation appropriate to the size and conditions of the loan

Verification of adequate fire and liability insurance coverage with loss payable to
Lutheran Church - Canada, Alberta - British Columbia District in first place

Loan Repayment Agreement signed by officers of the congregation and filed with ABC
District Church Extension within thirty (30) days of receipt

Commitment to promoting Church Extension investments among the members of the
congregation

Agreement by the congregation that it will not ipeur further indebtedness without the
consent of the ABC District

Loan Authorization Form completed and retwned to the Church Extension Office

Loan application approvals expire at the end of six months if funds have not been
withdrawn. New applications may be submitted.

Financial statements submitted annually to Church Extension.

March 2000




E. L.oan Interest Rutes

1.

I.oan interest rates are established by the Department Financial Services.

2. . Rates will be adjusted in accordance-with commercial rates as much as possible.

3. Interest rates will be established on each loan for a three-year term at which time the
repayment agreement will be renegotiated at the current rate in effect at that Hime.

4. The amortization period will be established based on the borrower’s ability to repay to
a maximum of twenty years.

5. Interest will be calculated monthly on the maximur roenthly balance and compounded
monthly.

6. Currentloan interest rates are available from the ABC District Church Extension Office.

7. Special interest rate consideration, 2% below regular rates, may be given to new mission
congregations and Lutheran schools not associated with a specific congregation. (No
rebate is avaiieble on such loans.)

fL.oan Approval

1. Loans not exceeding $100,000.00 may be approved by the ABC District Department
Financial Ministries.

2. Loans in excess of$100,000.00 will be approved by the ABC District Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Department of Financial Ministries.

3. All loans will be reported to the ABC District Board of Directors.

. Loan Renewal

Loans are renewed every three years.

New loan agreements are issued and signed by the congregation and Church Extension
at the time of renewal.

Normally loans are to be renewed within thirty (39) days after the expiration date or full
repayment will be required.

March 2000




H. Loan Rebate Policy
1. Cohgregations

Church Extension offers a 2% rebate on regular loans to congregations. The 2% rebate
is given on that portion of the loan that is covered with investments by members of the
congregation holding the {oan.

Rebate eligibility begins when signed loan agreements are in place in the Church
Extension Office. Rebates are returned to congregations making regular ioan payments,
Rebates may be applied as a principal payment if the congregation making regular [oan
payments prefers. In a situation where a congregation has not been making regular
payments, the rebate will be applied to the payment arrears.

2. Lutheran-Schools, Concordia University College and Seminary

Church Extension does not offer a 2% rebate to Lutheran schools, Concordia University
College or Concordia Lutheran Seminary because investments made by church members
are credited to the individual congregation. However, if the school or institution has
investments of its own or designated Foundation monies invested in Church Extension
it will be given a 2% rebate on the portion of the loan covered by these investments.

3. Payment

Rebates will be paid after the June 30 apd December 31 month end is completed.
Rebates may also be applied directly to the loan as a payment on the loan principal with
written direction from the congregation or instifution.

Signed loan agreements must be in place in the District office before any rebate meney
will be disbursed or applied as a principal loan payment. Rebates will automatically be
applied to the loan if regular paymeénts have not been made. Rebates will be held for one
rebate period (six months) only if a signed loan agreement is not in place and will not
be disbursed or applied after that time.




CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN APPLICATION PROCESS

The following steps are recommended when a congregation is considering 2 building project. This
would include the construction of a new facility or a major addition to an existing facility. Church
Extension is willing to wark with the congreganon throughout the study and planning process, offering
suggestions and insights from the experiences of other congregations that have gone through a similar

project,

1. CONTACT CHURCH EXTENSION - The cangregation is encouraged to contact Church
Lxtension to inform them of the congregation’s desire to build a minisiry facility or to expand
its existing famht}r This will give Church Extension the opportunity to be of assistance to the
congregation in its planning process which should help ensure that all aspects of the building
design and costs are researched, It will also assist Church Extension in planning its cash low

requirements.

2. SET MISSION AND MINISTRY GOALS - The congregation is encouraged to take this
opportunity to examine its mission and ministry goals to determine if it is doing as much as
possible to reach out to the community with Christ’s love and care and to determine if thexe
are opportunities for ministry that the congregation has not been able to prasp zbrough lack of
facilities or resources.

3. DEVELOP A MINISTRY ACTION PLAN — Once the‘congrcgation has cstablished a clear
mission statement and ministry vision that includes three to five year goals, it then needs to
develop an action plan that will enable it to reach the expressed goals.

4, DETERMINE STAFFING AND FACILITY NEEDS — On the basis of the ministry action
pian, the congregation will need to determine staffing requirements necessary to carry out the
action plan. This will include permanent paid staff, contracted services for a specific task or
timne period and volunteer staffing requirements. The congregation will also need to
determine the facility requirements necessary to carry out its acton plan. It will want to -
exarmine its own ministry facilities and also possibly other facilities in the vicinity that it could
utilize to carry out its ministry action plan.

5. DESIGN BUILDING NEEDED TO CARRY QUT THE ¥INISTRY ACTFION PLAN —
Once the facility needs are determined and the availability of rental facilitliss explored, the
congregation should be in 4 position to begin designing & building that will meet its needs.

6. DEVELOP A WORK PROGRAM — Also on the basis of the ministry action plan, a work
program should be developed that will project all related costs, including staffing costs,
facility needs and costs, program resources, operational costs and debt service costs. This
work program sheuld be for a mintmuzn of five years if the building loan is $500,000 or more
and cover the next ten years if the building Toan equals-or exceeds $1,000,000.00. This
process will determine the financial feasibility of the project. The sources of income aeed to
be realistic projections based on historical data and realistic growth projections which fiow

out of the ministry action plan.

7. COMPLETE THE CHURCH EXTENSION LOAN APPLICATION — The Church
Extensicn loan application includes a detatled building project budget which includes zll site
development costs, architect and engineering costs, legal fees, pern'uts canstruction costs,
cost of furnishings, landscaping costs and insurance costs.




Church Extension Program for Children

Tracky Stamps

The Tracky Stamp Program allows children to participate in Church Extension, helps them learn about
stewardship and basic money management, allows them to save for future education, ete. and at the same fime
experience the joy of knowing their money is helping other children learn about Tesus,

Church Extension sells 25- cent stamps to congregations who, in turn, sell them to children, parents and
grandparents. When a child has filled a Tracky Stamp Map or Booklet, it is senf to Church Extension where
a savings account is opened in the child’s name. This account is a regular Church Extension savings account,
A savings account booklet is returned to the child and updated when more maps or booklets are completed.

Interest is paid from the date that the booklet/map is received at the Church Extension Office. A savings
account can be opened with $10.00 or more of stamps. However, completed maps and booklets of $25.00 are
encouraged for office efficiency. Savings accounts opened by starnps are Church Extension savings accounts
and earn the current rate of interest.

Stamps can be surrendered to Church Extension at any time for cash. Withdrawals may be made from savings
accounts at any time without penalty. Withdrawals may be made by the individual or through the Church
Extension representative. A signed withdrawal request is the normal method of withdrawing an investment.,
A simple written request, signed by the investor is sufficient. Church Extension does allow funds to be
withdrawn by telephone. A telephone withdrawal form is sent with the cheque to the owner for signature.
This form must then be returned to the ABC District Office,

Parents and grandparents may wish to be joint owners of the savings account with the child or may wish to
have investments for the child.

It is recommended that joint ownership between juvenile children and parents be considered. As joint owners,
either party may make withdrawals. As joint owners, both individuals should sign the investment application.

Church Extension will accept investments made in trust by parents or grandparents for juvenile children, either
in the name of the parent or grandparent with the investment identified for the named c¢hild or in the name of
the juvenile child, but Church Extension will not accept responsibility for ensuring withdrawal by anvone
other than the listed owner. Ifjt is listed in the name of the parent or grandparent, only that listed individual
may make withdrawals. Ifit s listed in the name of the child, only the child may make withdrawals,

Change in ownership of investments can be made at any time by signature of listed owner,
Church Extension has found that using an imaginary mascot called “Tracky” to be helpful in educating

children in a fun way about Church Extension. Tracky Stamp promotional materials containing songs, skits
and other ideas may be obtained by contacting the Church Extension Office. .
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Church Extension Program for Children

Tracky Stamps

The Tracky Stamp Program allows children to pasticipate in Church Extension, helps them learn about
stewardship and basic moeney management, allows them to save for future education, ete, and at the same time
experience the joy of knowing their money is helping other children leamn abeut Jesus.

Church Extension sells 23- cent stamnps to congregations who, in turn, seli them to children, parents and
grandparents. Whea a child has filled a Tracky Stamp Map or Booklet, it is sent to Church Extension where
a savings account is opened in the child’s name. This account is a regular Church Extension savings account,
A savings account booklet is returned to the child and updated when more maps or booklets are completed.

I[nterest is paid from the date that the booklet/map is received at the Church Extension Office. A savings
account can be opened with $10.00 or more of stamps, However, cotmpleted maps and booldets of $2.5.00 are
encouraged for office effliciency, Savings accounts opened by stamps are Church Exiension savings accounts
and carn the current rate of interest,

Stamps can be surrendered to Church Extension at any time for cash. Withdrawals may be made from savings
accounts at any time without penalty. Withdrawals may be made by the individual or through the Church
Extension representative. A signed withdrawal request is the nommal method of withdrawing an investrnent.
A simple written request, signed by the investor is sufficient. Church Extension does allow funds to be
withdrawn by telephone. A telephone withdrawal form is sent with the cheque to the owner for signature.
This form must then be returmed to the ABC District Office.

Parents and grandparents may wish to be joint cwners of the savings account with the child or may wish to
have investments for the child.

It is recommended that joint ownership between juvenile children and parents be considered. As joint owners,
either party may make withdrawals. As joint owners, both individuals should sign the investment application.

Church Extension will accept investments made in trust by parents or grandparents for juvenile children, either
in the name of the parent or grandparent with the investment identified for the named child or in the name of
the juveaile chiid, but Church Extension will not accept responsibility for ensuring withdrawal by anyone
other than the listed owner. ifitis listed in the name of the parent or grandparent, enly that listed individual
may make withdrawals. Ifitis listed in the name of the child, only the child may make withdrawais.

Change in ownership of investments can be made at any time by signature of listed owner.
Church Extension has found that using an imaginary mascot called “Tracky” to be helpful in educating

children in a fun way about Church Extension. Tracky Stamp promotional materials containing songs, skifs
and other ideas may be obtained by contacting the Church Extension Office.
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CONGREGATIONS, SCHOOLS, DISTRICT OFFICE,
THAT BAVE BEEN HELPED WITH CEF LGANS
(The ones marked with an * have currently active loans)

Abbotsford, Trinity

Aldergrove, Immanuel

Alhambra (1950 & 1968)

Banff Trailer (1953)

Beaveriodge

Beach Corner, St. John

Brocks (1956-1962)

Calgary, Grace

Calgary, St. Matthew

Calgary, Good Shepherd

Calgary, Mount Calvary

Calgary, Prince of Peace (Church & School)
Calgary, Redeemer (1955-1958)
Calgary, Shepherd King (1957-1976)
Calgary, Foothills
Camrose, Grace
Campbell River, Bethany
Canmore, Shepherd of the Valley
Cardston, Faith
Cardston, Trailer (1975)
Castlegar, St. Peter
Chilliwack, St. Paul
Coaldale (1957-1966)
Courtenay, Faith
Cranbrook, Mount Zion
Creston, Redeemer
Dawson Creek, St. Paul
Delta, Saviour

Devon, Victory
Didsbury, Redeemer
Drayton Valley, Emmaus
Drumheller, Grace
Duchess, Duchess
Duncan, Trinity
Bdmonton, All Saints
Edmonton, Bethel

* Edmonton, Bethlehem

Fdmonton, Concordia
Edmonton, Christ the King

Edmonton, Cross of Christ
Edmonton, Glorta Dei (1958-1972)
Edmonton, Grace

Edmonton, Redeemer

Edmonton, Site (1966)

Edmaonton, Riverbend

Edimonton, St. Paul

Edmonton, St, Peter

Edson, Grace

" Elidord, Immanuel

Fairview, Trinity

* Fort MeMurray, Trinity

Yort Saskatchewan, Christ
Fort St. John (1958 & 1964)
Femie, Trinity

Fruitvale, Trinity

Goodfare, Immanuel

* (Grand Forks, Christ

Grande Cache, Mount Carmel
(rande Prairie, Fajth

Golden, Trinity

Hines Creek, St. Paul

Hinton (1967-1968)

Hope, Holy Cross (1980)
Jasper (1953-1967)
Kamloops, Good Shepherd

* Kamloops, Lord of Life

Kelowna, First (Church & Schoeol)
Kimberley, Holy Cross
Lacombe, Trinity
Lavesta (1935 & 1936)
Ledue, St. Peter
Lethbridge, Tmmaniel
Lloydminster, First
Magratk, St. John
Mannville, St. Panl
Markerville/Craig, Chris
Medicine Hat, St, Paul
Mellowdate, Christ
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Installation at Abbotsford, B.C.

S,

Buck Row: Dr. K. Keller, Rev. L. Koehier,

New to Canada, Rev. V. Roy White was
installed a8 a pastor of Trinity Lutheran
Church in Abbotsford, British Columbia on
January 23, 1994 Pastor Paul Phil ips, Circrit
Counselor, was the officiant and e preach-
er was Rev. David Hildermann who is a

Rev. P. Eifert, Rev. A Dutichen, Dr. D. Mueller, Rev. Kwanyg Soo Kim. Fromt
Row: Rev. C. Beideruniedens, Rev. D. Hildermarm, Rev. V.R. White, Rev. P. Pirllips, Reo. N. Eifert and Rev. A. Laurie.

member of Trinity and serves the govern-
ment as Prison Chaplain.

Pastor Roy and his wife Marsha have
three childrer: Brent 22, a baseball player at
Portland State University, Porfland, Oregon,
and a junior year iransfer from Valparaiso

University in Indiana; Tarina 19, is
a freshman soccer and softhall play-

Osusa, Californja; Kirk, 17 is a
wrestler at Curtis High School in
Tacoma, Washington. Marsha, a
native of Tacogna, Washington, has
a Master's ‘degree in Spedial
Education and is finishing out the
school year as a teacher in Sumner,
Washington.

A native of Seattle, Washington,
Pastor Virgil Roy Whité graduated

This is EXETRIT "3-A" )
referred to in the Affidavit of
Randall Seott Kellen

Sworn before me this {

S

Chumch (LC-MS) and was called as their asso-
ciate pastor in 1984.

gt it

A-BC District

LWML Assists

Edmonton Seminary in Recruitment

il

Murdlyn Witte, Vice President Mission Projecis, and Jeannette Lietzau, member of the Mission Projects Committee,

presemted a chaque to President Hempelnann for o seminary recruitment video.

Mrs. Marilyn Witte, LWML Vice
President Mission Projects for the Alberta
British-Columbia District, gave a check from
the ABC District LWML. for $7,500 to
President Hempelmann in a chapel presen-
tation in October. The funds vill provide
resotirces for the production of a recruitment
video for Concordia Lutheran Seminary,
Edmonton.

“The invitafion and chaflenge to prepare
for pastoral miristry needs to be communi-
cated vividly and powerfully to prospective
students,” noted the President in thankful
reception of this challenging mission grant.
More pastors are needed to proclaim Christ
in Canada and thronghout the world. The
LWML is comrnitted fo projects which her-
ald the King, Jesus the Chuist, to peoples of

- all nations.

Church Extension Fund

GOOD INVESTMENTS — In today's
financial climate, everyone with a few dol-
lars to invest is looking for the best

from Highline High School and from

er at Azusa, Pacific University, ,_

investment opportunity. LOOK NO FUR.

THER! The reality is that one of the best
invesiment opportumities Hes within our own
church.: The Alberta-British Coliumbia District
Church Extenston Fund. One would be hard
pressed to find a safe, no tisk, non-locked-
m investment that pays 5% for 1 year, 5 /2%
for 3 years or 6% for 5 years,

O COMING THE "GIFI7 STIGMA
—Many people still have the misconception
that putting money in CEF is making a gﬂ
Investing in CEF is like buying a GIC
{Guaranteed Investment Certificate) or a sim-
ilar no risk iInvestment instrument. The BIG
DIFFERENCE is that CEF investments are
used to make loans to congregations and
agendes of Lutheran Church-Canada in our
District. This investonent in CEF can be with-
drawn whenever you need it. If it is
withdrawn before maturity there will be a
2% per armnm penalty assessed to the por-
tionpoef the inveggnentzbeing W‘ithdrawnp._—

FUTURE NEEDS GREAT — The Church
Extension Fund has had tremendous growth
in the last few years however the projected
needs i the next three years require con-
finued growth in the fund. It is projecied
that we will need between 6 and 8 million
dollars to fund the building projects of our
District congregations and agencies In the
next three years.

PROMOTION IS KEY —Aggressive pro-

-

motion of the Church Extension Fund ;

mingstry is important if CEF is to be able to
meet the eEn‘ovjec.'i:ed needs of congregations.
Please help us promote CEF in your con-

gregation.
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1996 BUDGET
1996 - 1997
1995 - 1996 Financial Statement Budget
Congregation Rerittances 1,278,160 1,306,507
Late Remittances . B,235 17,300
Specialized Mission Gifts 43,853 100,000
Interest Income 20,220 24,000
ABC District News 2,403 6,500
GST Rebate 12,818 15,000
Foundation Grant 20,000 20,000
LCC Mission Grant 47,600 54,000
Beguests 193,680
Joint Ministry Gifts 11714 5,500
Other Grants 3,052 40,000
1995 Surplus B 11,59%
TOTAL INCOME 1,641,735 1,611,406
EXPENDITURES: 1996 - 1997
Missions: Budget
Lutheran Church - Canada 465,000 500,000 {
Subsidy to Congregations 329,500 301,115 o
BEthnic Ministries 196,458 149,000
New Mission Development 43,992 52,000
Singles and Campus & Social Minisxy 3,079 8,200
Special Assistance to Congregations 7,215 5,500
Program Development and Resources 66,542 64,100
Total Missions: T L111,386 1,079,515
Parish Services:
Grants to Schools 50,620 45,000
‘Workshops and Conferences 3578 3,000 2 .
/8 I
Program Resonrces and Developmenit 826 13,400 1 / A / /’:‘ Z . 7
Program Implementation 79,793 85,451 %\@ g’? 1bd ’!; y Lhe { AL
- e
‘Fotal Parish Services 134,817 146,851 b s
CO nta C t your Congregation Church Extension Representative e
1996 - 1997 or
Stewardship and Financial Servici s: Budget Church Exiension Office
ABC District News 35,990 34,600 TH08 Ada Bowlevard, Edmonton, AB TSB 4E4 - (403)474-0063
Program Develop. & Implementation 57,475 58,997
Publicity 286 2,500
ay 7
Totaf Stewardship & - T Od °
Financial Services - 93,751 96,097 Current Rates:
Special Services 1,835 2,400 .
Pastoral Services 87,528 89,840 Savings Accounts - 3 3/4%
General Office Expenses 110,939 119,768 1Y Term 6%
Board and Committees 25447 26,900 3 Yt Term 6.5%
Office Building and Grounds 44,879 49,100 5%t Term 7.0%
Debt Elimination 19,554 -0- -
- Rates will be changing May I, 1996,
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,630,136 1,610,871 \ /
Surplus 11,595 535
POSITIC  Disebtfl e |
. . referred to in the Allaa
TO GIVE AWAY ABC DISTRICT FOUND. ol S e
The ABC District Poundation invites nominat Sworn before me this
TWO GESTETNERS, the Foundation Manager. day #f Way, 2013
Candidates should be committed and active 1 ;
STAND & SUFPPLIES Congregation and have demonstrated proven dym AAGtary Publc in andasse e
I§ vou are intereste] exhibit an attitude of Christian love, care and cone ince of British Cotumbia
¥ contact: ' Qualification should include knowlege and e ooty GEIETTEA
. ifts, charitable Hfe Yusorance and gift annuifies,
Grace Lutheran Church Eitis, ) 1
3610 Sarcee Rd S.V. Please send letter of application with resume to Alberta - British Columbia District —
Calgary, AB T3E 6Y6 Foundation, 7100 Ada Beulevard, Edmonton, AB T5B 4E4 or Fax {(403)-477-9829. For more
(403) 249-8562 information phene the ABC District Foundation Office {(483)-474-0063,
_Application Deadline - Aprit 30, 1996,
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VACATION

BIBL

MOUNT CALVARY, RED DEER, AB

their “flock’ together and on schedule. We

Mount Calvary Lutheran Church, in Red
Deer, Alberta, enjoyed a verv successful
Vacation Bible School this summur. The theme
was “God is our strength” and i ran from
930 aim. to neon, August 11-15, 1997,

Parents and children from our
gation canvassed the area in July. About
1200 registration forms were dropped off at
homes in the area as advertisernent for our
upcoming VBS. This resulted in a great turn
out from the community.

We divided the 117 children that attend-
ed into 10 ‘shepherd groups’. Those groups
then followed a schedule that induded les-
son time, crafts, outdoor activities, snacks,
music and puppets. This allowed us 10 han-
dle this large of a group, in our Hmited
classroom space.

Four teachess taught the Bible story les-
son, each one feaching their lesson to two
ar three groups each day. We had 10
herds who were responsible for keeping

had volunteers, from. teens to grandmas, to
help with crafts, outdoor activities, puppets
and to man the kitchen.

We also adopted the mission project
“Contigo en P " that was sponsored
by Lutheran Hour Ministries. This “By Kids
. . . For Kids” program. involved providing

+ children in Panama with school supplies.

We committed to packing 100 boxes. The
VBS purchased the pens, pencils, pencil
sharpener, scissors, ruler, and a post card of
our area, for each box. Lutheran Hour
Ministries provided a Spanish Bible story
book for each box. The kids were asked to
bring a toy and to make a picture or letter
to put in the box they packed, for the child
in Panama. The kids were excited about a
mission project they could take an active
part in.

God’s Word was spoken, voices were
raised in praise, and hands were offered in
service, all to the Glory of God.

I youz need any further information you
can phone me at Mount Calvary Lutheran
Church at 1-403-346-3798.

Faith, Sylvan Lake, Alberta

At Faith-Sylven Lake, Alberta, we had

35 children come hear the message of Jesus
Christ the week of July 1418, At Trinity-
Lacombe we had 25 children receive the
message the week of July 28 - Aug. 1.

At Trinity-Lacombe we were blessed with
the teaching and musical seivice of the

CREW Ministries group “Unchained.” In addi-
tion fo helping at the VBS they put on a
concert fuly 31 atiended by 55 people These
indeed were weeks in which Jesus Christ
was presented o the 60 children and their
families in the commmunities the churches

serve. Rev. Ken Edel

ABC DISTRICT RETIREMENT FUND RRSP/RRIF

ABC Disfrict Investmends reti ement fund
is a group RRSP plan which provides a safe
investment vehide for individnals and an
opportunity to put savings to work in the
Lord’s service.

Registered Refirement Savings Flan
{RRSP) and Registered Refirement Income
Fund (RRIF) ts are receiver! and mvest-
ed by ABC District Investments.
APPLICATION FORMS

To patticipants in the. A3C District
Investments Group RRSP plan and/or the

Group RRIF fund, you must sign a mem-
bership application form and send it with
your deposit to the ABC District Office, 7100
Ada Blvd., Edmonion, AB T8 454
Application forms are available from your
Church Extension representative or from the
ABC District office. Call toll free 1-888-47.
0043, :
REVENUE CANADA REGISTRATION
Government registration of ABC District
Investments Group RRSP and RRIF funds
is through Montreal Trust as Trustee. The

Trinity,

Lacombe, Alberta

This is ExmBIT "3-C"

referred 1o in the Affidavit of
Randall Scoft Kelle{r\,

Swomn before me this £

Proyince of British Columbia

AN National
AT il
¥ Youth Gathering

July 37,1998 at
W University of Waterloo,

Waterloo, Ontario

= Great events are planned including servant
events in the comimumity

* The cost is $350.00 plus travel & spending
money

* Timne for youth to start 2 saving fund & be able
to attend

» Pastors, counselors and all youth watch for
information and updafes to be ariving in the
il

© T-shirts and baseball hats will be available

SOOTE

funds are utilized by ABC Disirict
Invesiments in serving the needs of our
church in the ABC District,

k=

ez’
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Because You Asked — ruing ministry in the ABC District

The dictionary definition of stewardship
is management of another person's proper-
ty. M we acknowledge that e ing we
have and have achieved has come from God,
then we will want to manage those pos-
sessions as well as possible and give a return
on those assets and talerts to God.
Stewardship of life includes us2 of our time,
our talents or expertise and our income and
wealth to work for our Lord in i
the work of His kingdom in the world. This
arficle deals with the monetary part of
stewardship.

The usual form of monefary stewardship
is by way of our offerings In our con
gations. ‘The congregations, through their
anmual budgets, contribute o the Pistrict’s
anmual budget, or work program. 85% of
the District’s receipts are from congrega-
tional remittances, so the indivichial members
of our congregations are key to the District
being able fo meet its mission obligations.

67% of the District's budget is directly
attributed to missions. These expenditures
include subsidies to congregations in the
District, ethnic ministries, new mmission work,
specialized ministries such as -he deaf con-
gregations and the Alberta and British
Columbia support for LCC Synod and its
nation-wide and world-wide projects. These
expenditures also include the services of
Missions Executive Don Schiemann as he
works with all congregations i the District,
with emphasis on congregations receiving

“District finandial support, new mission areas

and ethnic minisiries,

Synod, District, congregaticns and indi-
viduals all have tasks to perform and goals
to achieve if the work of the kingdom is to
proceed. Congregations need the finandal
cammitments of members to krow that their
budgets can be met; District necds the finan-
cial commitments of all of the congregations
to enable the staff to know that ifs work
program can be fulfilled, and Synod has to
be able to count on the Districts commit-
ments to fulfill its goals. Over the last few
years, there has been a trend that has seen
individual giving in congregations increase
but remittances to the District from con
gations have decreased. This has resulted
in District programs being cut back and in
the last two years, the Distric!: has operat-

ed at a deficit. In a waorld, budgets
would be set after ing commitments
were known. In an i s world, that

really isn't possible, therefore budgets at
both the congregational and District levels
are based on past experience and faith. The
more commitments a congregation receives,
the more it can accurately plan its budget
and its commitment to Disirict, and District,
in turn, can more accurately plan its work

program. )
Two other parts of the Districi’s opera-
tions are the Church Extension Fund and

" the ABC District Foundation. Itis often dif-

ficult for charitable organizations, especially
churches, to obtain bank or mortgage com-
pany financing to acquire land and to build
or enlarge church buildings. Because the

property is used for a special parpose, secu-
rity for the loan is a subjective matter as

market value Is not easily determined. The

" lender also usually asks for a guarantee of

4

{

#
3

the loan, something that church members
may not wish to do. The Charch BExtension
Fund does not have the same problem
because we know our churches have value,
that congregations have almost always met
their financial obligations and guarardees
are not required. The Church Extension
Fund borrows from members of congrega-
tions and some congregations have invested
surplus funds in CEF as well. A reason-
able {market and sometimes a little higher
than market} tate of interest is paid on loans
fo the CBF and funds are only used to enable
our sister congregations to acquire land,
build church binkdmgs and /or sc%ools, pur-
chase major pieces of equipment and make
major emergency repairs, for which funds
are ot on hand. The rate of interest paid
to the CEF by a congregation is generally a
little higher than a conventional mortgage
which reflects the cost of borrowed funds
and the non-requirement of guarantees. A
discounted borrowing rate applies to the
extent that the congregation and/or its mem-
bers have funds on deposit in the CEF There
are few, if any, ations in the District
that have not had a CEF loan at some time
in their history. At the present time, CEF
loans to con tons total twenty million
dollars and. funds on deposit in CEF total
$26,000,000. There is always an amount of
CEF fimds on short-term deposit so that
withdrawal requests can always be prompt-
ly honoured. No one has ever Jost money
by investing m Church Extension Fund.
The ABC District Foundation manages
funds placed on deposit with it in the form
of trusts or estates with the income being
paid to specific beneficiaries, or in some
cases from outright capital contributions that
are made during the lifeime of members
or as a result of bequests that are directed
by the will of a deceased member. The
Foundation operates on the principle of
investing the fimds it has to generate a rea-
sonable return on investment. Where the
income is paid to a beneficiary, the
Foundation a small fee for manag-
ing the funds. When the income is not paid
to a specific beneficiary, the income is used
to fund spedific p within co -
tions or the District. The Foundation
Manager works with congregations and indi-
vidual members to promote financial
planning within the family and to make
members aware of various types of gifts
they can leave to the church. Did you know
that you could purchase a life insurance pal-
icy, naming the District as the beneficiary,
and be able to daim the cost of the premi-
ums as a charitable donatien in year
that the premiums were paid? Upon death,
the Foundation would receive the life instr-
ance proceeds and invest them along with
other Foumdation funds to generabe income
to fund special projects. )
In a changing world, the challenge fac-
ing the world at large is the same as always
to spread the gospel to tell everyone about
the gift of etemal Iife that is received through
faith in Jesus Christ. How the gospel is

¥

spread has caanged. Foreign lands are now
accessed by television, radio, the computer
internet and also the printed word, as well
as by the physical presence of missionaries,
who are assisted in carrying out their mis-
sions by these communication mediums.
Closer to home, our resources are pooled
through District and Synod to give consis-
tent programs that are available fo all, not
subject to the whims and resources on a
time-to-time basis by individuals or con-
gregations, but by evening out the resources,

use our own personal contributions fluc-
tuate, depenling on our drcumstances. We
need trained pastors and other church work-
ers. To actieve this, a congregation has
more resow:xces than an individual and
through regular commitments to District,
even more 3 is created.

The District has helped all of us in the
past, it helps us today and it is looking to
the future to ensure that it can continue to
be effective in serving baby boomers mov-
ing into middle age and refirement, to
support Chistian schools in an atmosphere
of reeping sacularism and fo establish new
con tions to minister to our changi
eﬁl[%i? %:blic. Bre

1 hope that this has helped to answer
any dquestions you may have had about the
work of the Alberta-British Columbia District

amomyg us.
by Greg Lonsbrough

ANYESTMENT
and RETIREMENT
PLANRNING

Honest, Straightforward Advice

Mutual Funds = Bonds
* Stocks = GIC’s and Treasury Bills

Non Registered
Cash Accounts and
No Fee RESP and
ERIF Accounts!

Peter Wolgram, cca
Investment Advisor

CANACCORD CAPITAL CORP.
v B 3108 36th Ave,, Vemnon, B.C,
Call for a free consultation

1-800-665-2505

Member of (Canadian Investor Protection Fund

This is EXHBIT “3-D*

th _referred to in the Affidavit of
This § Randall Scott %{cllcu
seniors. ! Sworp before me this
ing when day i}j\,{z 2015 : ? %r
The ¢
Mile Ho i Nafary Public in miW
have pre; Provinee of British Colimbia
vidual co
a common chali °
If any chirth-Has a chalice they would
like to sell o donafe please phone Joan at
(250) 791-5353, ,




 CHURCH ENSION

7100 ADA BOULEVARD, EDMONTON, ALBERTA ToB 4E4 PH(780) 473-0062 FAX(780) 477-9829
EMAIL: finances@lcecabe.ca TOLL FREE 1-888-474-0063

May 11, 2007

This is EXHIBIT "4" referyed to

Kellen, Fandy COr Debbie in the Affidavit of

8857 - 15 Avenue Randall Scott Kellen
Burnaby, BC Swom before me this ’{ s
ViN 1v4 day pf Way, 2015 r

ofary Public in and
Province of British Colimbia

Re: Inveastment #: 11130-1200-01-02
Dear Randy & Debbie,

Your term investment in Church Extension will mature on JUNE 30, 2007.
Tha value of your investment on that date will be $33,647.83.

Unless wa receive other instructions from you, we will renew this
investment for a 5 year term at 4.4000% interest. This renewed
investment will mature on JUNE 30, 2012.

Your CEF investment is "Making a Differemce® in congregakbtions throughout
Alberta-British Columbia District. Current loans to over 63 congregakions
are posaibe only because of investments such as yours. Thank you for your
continued support of the Church Extension ministry!

wrhis senrvice that you perform is not only supplying the needs of
God's pewuple but is also overflowing in many expressions of thanks
to God.” II Corinthians 9:12.

In Christ:'s service,
Candace Rivet
Church Extengion

"Making a Difference . . . Growing in Geod's Grace”



CHURCH
EXTENSION Buiding HIS church, together.
FUND

ALBERTA | BRITISH COLUNMBIA DISTRICT

February 27, 2015

This is EXHIBIT "5 referred to
in the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Kellen

Sworn before me this /

DEBBIE KELLEN Swvam befre e ,
8857 - 15 AVENUE
BURNARY, BC, V3N 1Y4 tory Public in and B

Prgvince of British Columbia

Church Extension Fund Account Summary
as of lanuary 23, 2015

Total Book Value interest Combined Balance
of all Accountis - thru January 23, 2015
(Savings and / or Terms)

- $ 153.25 % 0.09 $153.34

On January 23, 2015, the Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Columbia District (the
“District”) obtained an Initial Order under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act with the
imtention of presenting a plan of arrangement fo its credifors and restructuring its affairs. The
values on this statement indicate the book value of your claim only. Through issuing this
statement, the District does not represent or warrant the amount that will ultimately be payable to
your pursuant to any plan of arrangementt.

We recognize that the statement provided above may not provide you with the detail that you are
accustomed to receiving regarding your CEF account(s). If you wish to receive a detailed statement of
your account(s) for January 1 — December 31, 2014, please call 780-474-0063 ext. O or email
cef@lccabe.ca.

Lutheran Church—Canada
Tre ALeerra~BamsH CoLumveia DistricT
7100 Ada Bivd Edmonton, AB T5B 4E4
cef@lccabe.ca

St A T e ae S IARE Bt - e o R o ST AT BROS - t B a, R DO, TR S - Bt T




CHURCH

] EXTENSION  Buigng HIS church, together”
- FUND

ALEERTA [ BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

' This is EXHIBIT "¢ referred to
February 27, 2015 : in the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Kelle;

Sworn before me this f§ |

RANDY KELLEN
8857 - 15 AVENUE
BURNABY, BC, V3N 1Y4

fnce of Brifish Columbia

Church Extension Fund Account Summary
as of lanuary 23, 2015

Total Book Value Interest Combined Balance
of all Accounts thrulJanuary 23, 2015
(Savings and / or Terms)

$88,922.12 $1,631.06 $50,553.18

On January 23, 2075, the Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta ~ British Columbia District (the
“District”) obtained as Initial Order under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act with the
intention of presenting a plan of arrangement to its creditors and restructuring its affairs. The
values on this statement indicate the book value of your claim only. Through issuing this
statement, the District does not represent or warrant the amount that will ultimately be payable to
you pursuant to any plan of arrangement.

We recognize that the statement provided above may not provide you with the detail that you are
accustomed to receiving regarding your CEF account(s). if you wish to receive a detailed statement of
your account(s) for January 1 — December 31, 2014, please call 780-474-0063 ext. 0 or email
cef@lccabe.ca.

Lutheran Church—Canada
THE ALserTA-BrmisH Cotumeis DistricT
7100 Ada Bhvd Edmonton, AB TEB 4E4
cef@lccabe.ca
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: Wiﬁ o ;g? ; ‘Building HIS church, together.”

Investments..

February 27, 2015

RANDY KELLEN

8857 - 15 AVENUE

BURMABY, BC, V3N 1Y4

Portfolic Number: Account Type:

111301200 Registered Ret. Savings Plan

ABC District Investments Ltd. Account Summary

Estimated Book Value Estimated Write Down Balance
as of December 31, 2014 as of January 23, 2015
$ 26,105.49 $19,849,54

On January 23, 2015, the Lutheran Church — Canada, the Alberta — British Cofumbia District
Investments Limited {“DIL”) obtained an Initial Order under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act
with the intention of presenting o plan of arrangement to its creditors and restructuring its affairs The
values on this statement indicate the book value of your claim prior to and after a write down of 24%
in its face value {as further described in the Notice to holders of RRIFs issued on February 2,

2015). Through issuing this statement, DIL does not represent or warrant the amount that will
ultimately be payable to you pursuant to any plan of arrangement.

We recognize that the statement provided above may not provide you with the detail that you are
accustomed to receiving regarding your RRSP/ LIRA/ RRIF/ LIF/TFSA account(s). If you wish to receive a
detailed statement of your account(s) for January 1 — December 31, 2014, please cal! 780-474-0063 ext.
0 or email cef@lcecabe.ca.

Lutheran Church—-Canada
The Arserta-BrimsH CoLumaia DistricT

7100 Ada Bivd Edmonton, AB




1=~ CHURCH EXTEMNSION

7700 ADA BOULEVARD, EDMONTON, Al BERTA T58B 4E4 PH (T80) 474-0063 FAX (780} 477-9829
EMAIL: fnances@lccabe.ca TQLL FREE 1-888-474-0063

N Buitlp the Choret”
' July 2, 2002

Dear {_Shurch Extension investor,

Your CEF investments are making 2 differencel Making a difference in the lives of individual investors,
such as yourself . .. Making a difference in District congregations by providing funds for capital
improvement loans . . . Making a difference in the tives of believers and non-believers, as the Gospej is
spread and the Good News of our salvation is shared through communities in Alberta and British
Columbia!

By the overwhelming grace of Ged, the Church Extension Fund is . . .

o Growing is Financiali Resources: Since 1995 total investments have grown over 230%, from $16.81 million .
E in 1995 to $46.14 million in 2001. Much of the recent growth resulted from the 80" Anniversary campaign,
during which over $27.5 million was invested.

©  Growing in the Number of CEF products: CEF currently offers Tracky accounts for young investors,
savings accourts, and term investments (90 or 180 day short-term, and 1 vear to 5 years). Monthly interest
accounts are available for investors who desire disbursement of the eamed interest (special account
conditions apply). In addition, special “interest” accounts provide zero interest investments to suppert zero
intarest {oans to Lutheran schools.

o  Growing in number of investors: During the 86" Anniversary campaign alone, over B0O new investors
ioined the CEF investment family for the first time.

o Growing in services fo all ages: Individuals of all ages - Sunday Schooi children, teenagers, coilege
students, waje earners, retirees - joyfully support the Gospel cutreach ministry through Churscih Extension.

o . Growing in service to congregafions: By sharing its building and project development experience, CEF
partners with congregations to help develop innovative ways o expand ministry and outreach within their
communities By providing loans for new facilities, or for renovation and expansion, CEF assisis

~ congregations to ensure feasibility and quality of their construction projects.

o Growing in ininistry opportunities: ABC District has been blessed with new ministry opportunities in
remote areas, cross-cultural communities, social minisiry, senior's ministry, and Lutheran schoaols.

o Growing in number of congregations being served: Over 95% of congregations within ABC Districl have,
at some time over the past 80 years’ history of Church Extension, benefited from a CEF loan. Since Jaruary
of 2002 alone, over $10 million has been approved for loans to First, Kelowna; Wainut Grove, Langley;
Trinity, Richmond; Zion, Surrey; Peace, Sidney; Redeemer, Didsbury; and St. Matthew, Stony Plain.

Enclosed is a statement of your investment(s) in the Church Extension Fund as of June 30, 2092.
On the reverse side of this letter is an explanation of your statement. If you have any questions regarding
this statement, pleasie contact us toll-free at 1-888-474-0063, or email finances@lccabe.ca.

Thank you for permitting Church Extension to be part of your investment plans, and for your special part in
this unique investment ministry., Without you, Church Extension would not be able to extend the much-

needed foans to congregations within Alberta - British Columbia District, I
; i ; is is EXHIBIT "7 referred to

We pray that our Lord continues to daily guide and bless you, IFL;;SAfﬁ it of

Edie Uliscen Randall Scott Kelle

Swogn hefore me this {
day,

A Nofary Public in m‘}W
Provihce of Brifish Columbia

Church Extension



Ari Explanation of Your CEF'St:iférrﬁent

Column 1 Category Code If you have more than one investment with CEF,
' Of each investment each of your investments is set forth separately.

The first number is the type of investment, such as:
1 = term investment;
3 = savings;
4 = interest paid out monthly;
30 = interest paid out on anmiversary date.
The second number reflects the number of the
investment, such as -01, -02, -03.

Column 2 Maturity Date Special Note re: 7 FOR 7 FOR 7 investments:
of each investment The designated maturity date is pursuant to your
re-imvesiment nstructions.

Column 3 Term (in months) The term 18 expressed in months (e.g. a S-year term is 60
of each investment months. If your account is a savings account, Columns 2
and 3 are blank.

Column 4 Interest Rate (APR) Rate in effect at time of investment,
applied to each investment

Column 3 Interest Paid in Current Year  This column reflects the smount of interest compounded
or added to your investment during the calendar year.

Column 6 Accrued Interest to Date This column reflects the amount of interest earned to
date - but not yet added (compounded) to your
investment.

Column 7 Actual Value This value does not include accrued interest (the value

Without Accrued Interest in Columm 6). This value is your initial investment

amount, plus any compounded interest.

An Explanation Relating to Interest

Interest is calculated monthly, and compounded according to the type of your investment, as
follows:

Interest is compounded:

For 12-month term investments: At matunty.

For nvestments for a term longer than 12 months: On December 31 of each year
and at maturity.

For savings accounts: On June 30 and December 31

of each year.

“All over the world this gospel is producing fruit and growing, just as it has been doing amon 7 You since
the day you heard it and understood God's grace in all its truth.” Colossians 1:6
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This is EXHIBIT *8° referred 1o

| k in the Affidavit of
1 g Randal Scott Kellen
A I ] Swom before me this /
F ,
iISTRICG LLLy
PILC SIS 1o

Prdvince of British Célumbia

“Investing With a Purpose — for the Present and the Future”

In January 1497 the Alberta — British Columbia District formed Lutheran Church—

Canada, The Alberta — British Columbia District Investments Ltd., a not-for-profit

corporation commonly known as “ABC District Investments.” Through ABC District
Investments, Registered Retirement Savings Plan (RRSP) and Registered Retirement

Income Fund (RRIF) investment plans are offered to members and affiliates of Lutheran
Church-Canada. In addition, ABC District Investments is registered through its Trustee, { -
Co-operative Trust Company of Canada, to manage locked-in funds within Atberta,

British Colurnbia, Saskatchewan, Manitoba and federal jurisdictions.

Investing with ABC District Investments provides a threefold blessing to the investor:

o A reasonable retumn on retirement savings

o A reduction in current income tax, by deferring until retirement income

o The joy and satisfaction of investing with a purpose — making funds available for
capitzl improvement mortgage loans to congregations and entities within ABC
District.

An immediate tax break today: RRSP investments reduce the amount of income tax paid
by the investor. Because the investments and the interest income are tax-sheltered until
withdrawn, an RRSP investment can grow faster than a non-registered nvestment.

Receive retirement income as directed by investors: RRIF accounts are responsibly
managed witlin ABC District Investments by providing retirement income in accordance
with the terms directed by the investor. Minimum payments or greater, as the investor
determines, are payable at the time the investor decides — either monthly, quarterly, semi-
anmually or amually. '

Retirement suvings grow as investments are made: RRSP and RRIF funds, invested by
members and affiliates of LCC congregations within ABC District, earn a rate of interest
equal to the earings of the Plan, less a minimal management expense ratio (MER) for
the cost of administering the ﬁ.md.

Assisting congregations in ministry: RRSP or RRIF investments are used to provide
Joans to congregations and entities of LCC for capital projects, thereby enabling them to
be most effective in reaching out with Christ’s Jove and proclaiming the message of
salvation. Through ABC District Investments, mvestors realize the joy and satisfaction
of having the:r retirement savings at work in our Lord’s kingdom!
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Page 9

nghhghts From the Depariment of Financial Ministries
Meeting, May 24-25, 2002

™y The Foundation Comumniitee is undertak-

ing a five-year planning strategy “to help
our people leave a divine l2gacy.”

Church Extension Committee
+ New growth in the Church Extension

fund totaled $1.6 million for the first four
months of the year,

Deparfment of F:mncml Mmastrtes present includes: (L R) Rev Sieg Redenbach Euntice Farmme, Helmuth
Schroeder, Clarence Elle, Dick Lutz, Ted 1lmer, Rev, Mark Beiderwieden, Gene Gabert and Ron Chowme.

Church Extension Contmitiee presen’ were: Greg Lonsbrough, Maro Smith, Doug Hunsley,

and Susan Bacon

This is EXHIBIT "9" referred to
in the Affidavit of

Randall Scott Kc]le}

i bafore me this /

Rewo, Mark Sander

A new Rete Schedule was approved for
mplemer,taﬁon on June 1, 2002, with }
increased rates for 3-year, 4-year, and 5 |..
year term investments. Church Extension <
rates are, on average, 0.25-1.40% higher z
than comunercial Bank rates. b

s A mew position as CEF assistant/data
enfry clerk was recommended to the
Board of irectors for approval.

° Loarns were approved for roof repair at
Redeemer. Didsbury, and for a new roof
at 5t. Matthew, Stony Plain

® The “Share the Light” campaign was
approved to encourage new investors.

Communicalions Comumittee
Congregatons are encouraged to send

articles regarding the congregational activi-

ties to Marj Temple for publication in the

ABC District News and to Rev. Dave Smilek

for publication. in the Canadian Lutheran.

Congregational Projects For CEF

Walmit Grove, Langley, BC; First, Kelowna,

BC; Faith School, Edmonton, AB; Immanue,

Lethbridge, AB; Trinity, Richmond, BC; Zion,

Sumey, BC; Prince of Peace-Manor, Calgary,

AB; Shepherd's Village, Valleyview, AB; St.

Matthew, Stony Plain, AB; Redeemer,

Didsbury, AB.

In a small village in the Chinandenga
Province of Nlcraagua, a Lutheran Church-
Canada pastor is worlang with God’s pecple,
bapt;zmg aned teachmg As a result of God's
love in action in a time of nafional disaster,
people have opened their hearts and their
ears to the message of Jesus!

Now that proclamation is multiplying,.
Several Nicaraguan men have been trained
and ordained to serve as pastors and mis-
sionaries in other communities throughout
the country.

At the same time, in remote comruni-
ties on Vancouver Island and Northem
Alberta and British Columbia, Lutheran
Church-Canada pastors and curchworkers
are telling the Good News of Jesus. Many

There Is No Difference

of these communities have Litfle or no Church
TEsence.

Often beginning with outreach to chil-
dren, our Church is now finding
opporiunities to give instruction to aduits
so that the proclamation of Jesns is mudii-

lies.
P While the trend in Canada is to move to
larger centers, there remain people in tese
more remote commurdties for whom Jesus
died.

" WHAT'S THE CONNECTION?

You are! As you presert your offerings
to your Lord in worship, part of that money
is sent to do work both far and near. Your
elected leaders in the Church have made
decisions to devote financial resources in

Yes, I would like to give a special gift to bring the Good News of Jesus to others!

[J One time gift of

1 Regular, ongoing gift of
11 would like this gift to

Name:

every month/ quarter/year {circle one)
0 Reach Out
(11 would like information in the future as to how my gift is used.

[lReachin [1Both

Reaching Out - Reaching In

these areas so that the peace of Christ could
be shared there. God is opeming doors for
ministry beyond our meager plans, though,
and calls for an ever greater commitment
to Reaching Out/Reaching In.

As a result, God's children are being
asked to consider this need and their abil-
jtes. This is another opportunity for every
member, group and organization within our
Church to get personally involved in the
task of proclaiming Jesus.

For every dollar that is given in this
appeal for Eeaching Out-Reaching In, 75
cents will help fund the existing commit-
menfs made by our Church, and 25 cents
will go to new work in these areas.

Address:

Prov.

Postal Code

City:

Please send this form and your gift to: The Lutheran Church-Canada, ABC District, 7100 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton, AB T5B 4E4
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Church Extension Announces Interest Rate Increase

[
{

An interest rate inczease was. | .

-~ New Interest R;Lt-e Schedule ¢

{
L
approved by the Alberta-British i
Columbia District Board of : (Bffective March 1, 2006)
Directors at a recentt meeting and : Savings —2.35 % !
% became effective March 1, 2006, Minimum $10 Investment
W Bt e £k For purposes of comparison, 90 Days — 2.50°,
N\t the following rates were offered 180 Days D GE%
Does Church Exension ne=d by the “Big Five*” commercial . ¥3 °
new investments? Absolutey!  banks on March 20, 2006: 90 day: For investments of $5,000 or more
CEF wanis tobe able to say “yes”  1.80%;180 day: 1.90%; 1 year term: 1 Year Term ~3.15 %
to those congregations thataskfor ~ 2.75%; 2 year term: 2.95%; 3 year Minimamn $200 Investment
our help. CEF helps finance new term: 2.95%; 4 year term: 3.05%; Interest paid or compunded at maturity
buildings, schools and otherenti-  and 5 year term: 3.25%. (**Big 2 Year Term - 3.40 % :
ties in the Alberta-British  Five” include Bank of Montreal, 3 Year Term™—3.65 %
Colwmbia District. Werejoicew:th  Bank of Nova Scotia, CIRC, TD ear erm.: ’ on
and give thanks to our Lord for ~ Canada Trust and Royal Bank) 4 Year Term'- 3.50 %
each one of the Disirict congrega- For more information about 5Year Term® - 415 %
tions, schools and entities which ~ CEF please see your congrega- 1 Minimum Investment of $200
hasbeen able toexpand their min-  tional CEF Representative or U Interest peid or compovnded on December 31 and at maturity
istries with the assistance of  comtact the CVF office toll free: 1- “Three, Four or Five Year Term Invesimerss of
Clunrch Bxtension loans. 888474-0063. ' ) ,
; $25,000.00 or more receive on Additional Y% interest
Sole Owner
Last Name First Initiat Social Ins rance # Birth Date
Or (YYYY /MM/DD)
Joint Owners
Last Nam:z Farst Initial Social Instirance # Birth Date
QOPYY/MM/DD)
Address
City Provinees Postal Code
Telephane ) Email Home Congregation
Amount § E}Savmgs Dlyear DZyear D.’Syear D&yea: [ijear
Signatuze Date Signature { Date

This is EXHIBIT "10" referred

(Please make cheques payable fo: ABC District Church Extension) to in the Afdavitof

Renewal: Church Extension will automatically renew this investment for the same 1erm Randall Scott Eellen
at the interest rate in effect at maturity unless otherwise instructed. Sworn before me this 7 ,

Lutheran Church-Canada, the Alberta-British Columbia District deyloiiley, 23 -
7100 Ada Boulevard, Edmonton, AB T58 4E4  1-888-474-0063 A Ngtary Public in W
Proyince of British fbia
In compliance with privacy legislation, we need to obtain your consent before collecting, using or disclosing your
We require the information on the application form 5o that we can acconnt fo you and provide you with reports Tespecting to your i
District Investments.

Flease note that we will not disclose any personal infofination fo anyone other than:

- where permitted or required by law or caurt order (for example, we may disclose your Social Insurance Number as requited by the Income Tax Act fo
prepare tax slips);or &

(&3 - -
- to a public authority, to aid in an investigation, or where an inuminent danger could be avoided by disdosing the information.
Rest assured that your personal information will remajn confidential,

You have the right to access, verity and amend fhe personal information with us. To amend your personal informabion, or if you have any questions or -
concerns, please call us at

{780} 471-0063 or 1-885-474-0063.  You may withdraw or vary this consent at any time by giving us notice at the address above, such notice to be effective
on the day following receipt.

By signing this application you ae consenting to the disclosure of your personal information as described above,




to i the Affidavit of
Randalt Scott Kellery

LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Non-Consolidated Financial Statements

January 31, 2012

Pennock Acheson Nielsen Devaney



Pennock Achieson Nielsen Devaney

Pennocik Acheson Nielsen Devaney
Chartered Accountants

2201 Toronto Dominion Tower Telephone: (780} 496-7774
10088 - 102 Avenue Facsimile: (780) 423-0582
Edmonton, Alberta THJ 221

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta-British Columbia District

Report on the Non-consolidated Financial Statemenis

We were engaged to audit the accampanying non-consolidated financial statements of Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta-British Columbia
District, which comprise the statement of financial position as at January 31, 2012, the statement of operations, changes in fund balances and cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Non-consolidated Financial Stalements

Managemen! is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these non-consolidated financial statements in accordance with Canadian
generaily accepted aczounting principles, and for such internal control as management determines is neczssary o eneble the prepatation of non-
consolidated financial statements that are [rec from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility .

Our responsibility is to express an opinfon on thesc non-consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
acocordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and
perform the andit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the non-consolidated financial statements are free from material raisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the non-consolidated financial statements,
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the non-consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contral relevant o the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the non-consolidated financial statercents in order to design audit procedures thal are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the eatity's internzl contral. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accourling policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the non-consolidated financial statements.

Besause of the matter described in the Besis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The District has loans receivable from EnCharis Community Housing Services (“ECHS”) in the amount of $69,737,136 (2011 - $66.686,453}
excluding accrued interest. These funds have been used by ECHS to develop a community for persons above the age of 55 which includes
independent living, assisted living, dementia and pallistive care within (he context of the Latheran faith, There have been significant principal
repayment shortfulls as well as interest payment shartfalls which are indicators of potential impairment of the loan value, Cumulative principal
repayments of $6,000,000 were required 1o be made in 2007 through 2009. Due © a lack of informalion, we were unable to dstermine if an
impairment exists or what the value of that impairment may be.

The District has significant influence over ECHS which reguires cerfain financial information o be disclosed in the financial statements, The
financial information was not availabic as of the audit report date.

The District's portfolic investments are carried on the statement of financial position at cost. Management has not stated the portfolio
investments at market valne which constitutes a departure [rom Canadian generally accepted sccounting principles. Had the portfolio
investiments been stated at market value, an increase in value of $247,221 (2011 - increase of $622,721) would have been required. Accordingly,
unteatized losses and would have been $375,500 (2011 - gain $622,721).

In 2011, the District changed its accounting policy to record amorlization on their property and equipment. The change was made prospectivety
rather than retroactively which constitutes a departure from Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, Had the cosrection been made
retroactively, expenses and apening fund balances in 2011 would have been reduced by $511,114.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide 2 besis for an audit.epinion. Accordingly, we do net express an opinion on these non-consclidated financial statements,

Emphasis of Matter

We draw atiention to Note 3 to the financial statements; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Financiat Instruments, Liquidity Risk,
Credit Risk and Measurement Uncertainty which describes the vaiuation of the loans to EnCharis Comtnunity and Housing Services. Onr
opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

‘/?éfwar_r\ Aesstsons Ararsnm DavaaLl

Chartered Accon n.!ants
November 23, 2012
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LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Non-Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended January 31, 2012

20312 2011
NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED TO THE
FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES:
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from congregations and donors % 1,916,244 $ 2,158,095
Cash paid to Synod, supplicrs and employees (2,699,489) (2.326,200)
Interest received on loans 018,944 3,433,740
interest paid to members - (4,543,992) (4,409,418)
(4,408,293) (1,141,783)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (45,424) (28,141)
Issuance of loans receivable - net {3,151,321) (4,126,449
Net proceeds from (additions to} preperties held for sale {151,627) 227,050
Proceeds (purchases) of investments - net 2,387,466 2,696,515
{960,506) (1,225,625)
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Investor abligations received - net 5,196,641 2,715,826
(DECREASE) INCREASE TN CASH FLOW (178,558) 348,418
CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR - 2,865,077 2,516,659
CASH - END OF YEAR (Note 4) $ 2,686,519 5 2,865,077

Pesmeck Acheson Nisisen Devaney



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended Januvary 31, 20812

I. ORGANIZATION

Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia District {the "District™} was incorporated by an Act
of the Alberta Provincial Legislature on March 24, 1944 and in British Cohnnbia on June 19, June 1955
pursuant to the provisions of the Society Act of British Columbia. As a registered charity, the Districl is
exempt from tax under the Income Tax Act (Canada) provided it maintains its registration.

The Mission Statement 0f the District is:

t. To support public worship, and to unfte the various congregations of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in
the Provinces of Alberta and British Columbia, who as congregations and as individual members of such
congragations accept, and remain true to, the canonical books of the Old and Mew Testaments as the
sole and exclusive rule of Christian doctrine and practice, and acknowledge as a true exhibit of sound
Christian doctrine the Book of Concord;

2. To promote the efficiency and extend the influence of the Lutheran Church - Canada,

3. To hold, own, manage, control, possess, and receive directly and indirectly, by grant, pift, purchase,
donation, devise or bequest, real, personal and mixed property of every name, nature, and description
whatsoever and dispose of the same;

4. To invest monies and other personal property, with or without interest, in such a manner as the Directors
of the District may elect orsee fit 50 10 do, subject to the aevion of the District, with or without securify,
for religious purposes;

5. To promote efficiency, ce-operate b ecclesiastical work in the extension of religion, by educational,
charitable and missionary work;

6. To help establish and maintain parochial schools, cotleges, seminaries and other instituticons of leaning;
7. To properly sducate and prepare persons for the ministry and for teaching in parochial scheols; and

§. To aid in disseminating the knowledge of the Gospel thronghout the world.

2.  FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING FRAMEWORKS

The Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants issued Aceounling Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations
which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after Januvary 1, 2012, The District wili also apply the
standards for private enterprises, where standards addressing their unique transactions and circumstances do nat
exist. The District is currently evaluating the effect of adopling these standards, which it expects to do in fiscal
year 2013,

Permock Acheson Nislsen Devansy



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2012

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and include the following significant accounting policies;

Fund accounting

In order to ensure cbservance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the
District, the accoumts of the District follow the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.
Accordingly, resources are ciassified for accounting and Ginancial purposes into funds, These funds are held in
accordance with efther the objectives specified by the doners or with directives issued by the Board of
Directors. To meat these objectives of financial reporting and stewardship over assets, certain interfund
trapsfers are necessary to ensure the appropriate allocation of assets and liabilides to the respective Funds.
Transfers between the funds are made when appropriate, as authorized by the Board. These interfund transfers
are recorded in the statement of changes in fund balances.

Gains and losses arising from the sale or other disposition of assets are acceunted for in the fund which owned
such assets. Ordinary income derived frem invesiments is accounted for in the fund owning such assets. All
other resources received are accounted for as revenue of the current fund.

‘The separate funds are maintained for the following purposes:

District Operations

District operations includes the Current Fund, the Church Extension Fund and the Plant Fund. The Curent
Fund is used fo account for the budgeted operations of the District. A portion of the administrative expenses
are allocated to the Church Extensien Fund based on a consistent percentage of specified expenses.

The Church Extension Fund is used to record funds received from members at reasonable rates of inferest for
the purpose of providing financial suppert to congregatiens for capital purposes.

The Plani Fund is used to record funds employed for capital purposes and to reflect investment in District
owned property. Additions are recorded at cost or, if donated, at the fair market value on the date of the receipt
of the gift. Equipment purchased by the Current and Church Extension Funds are recorded as a transfer to the

Plant Fund,

In the case of raw land acquired for futire use (included in properties held for sale}, interest on funds borrowed
is capitalized (subject to a fair market value test) in the determination of the cost of the properties. All other
interest expense i5 charged {o operations. :

Restricted Fund

The Restricted Fund is used to vecord funds received by the District which are restricted, either by the donating
party or the Board of Directors, for the specific ministry projects and the disbursements of these funds for the
specified purpose.

Pesnoel Achieson Nietssn Devarney



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended Januvary 31, 2612

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (eontinued)
Financial instruments

The District applies .Sections 3855 “Financial Iustruments - Recogpition and Measurement," and 3861
"Pinancial Instruments - Disclosure and Presentation” of Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principies.
As permitied by these rules, the District has elected not to adopt the standards 3862 and 3863 and continues to
apply Section 3861 on disclosurs and presentation of financial instruments.

Financial instruments include cash, accrued interest, accounts receivable, portfolio investments, land procecds
assignment, loans and mortgages receivable, accounts pavable and accrued liabilities, acerued interest payable,
deposits payable, investor cbligations and mortgage loan. The carrying value of financial assets and financial
liabilities approximate fair value except as otherwise disclosed.

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as either held-for-rading, available-for-sale, leans and receivables,
investments held-to-maturity and other financial liabilities. Financial assets classified as held-for-trading and
availeble-for-sale are required to be measured on the statement of financial position at fair value, The District
measures one such financial instruments at cost. Loans and receivables, investments held-to-maturity and other
financial liabilities are measured on the statement of financial position at amortized cost.

The District has designated cash and portfolio investments as hald-for-trading. The District classified accrued
interest on investor obligations, accrued interest, accounts receivable, mongages and loans receivable and land
proceeds assignment as loans and receivables and its accounts payable and accrued liabilities, deposits payeble,
mortgage loan and investor obligations as other financial liabilities.

Cash is recorded at fair value. Portfolio investments are recorded at cost and fair value is disclosed in Note 5.
The fair value of the land proceeds assighment and foans and mortgages receivable could not practically be
determined because they have no fixed repayment terms and Jack an available trading market. The fair value of
investor obligations can not be determined because the obligations have no fixed repayment terms.  As such,
the fair value and the exposure to relafed risk carnot be determined with any degree of certainty, and the
amounis are therefore reported at their carrying value.

Portfolio investments are subject to market risk, The District manages market risk by investing in Canadian
and foreign equities, fixed income instruments and short-term investments that meet specific investment criteria
established and approved by the District’s Directors and designed to adequately diversify the Districe's
investments to reduce exposure to market risk.

The District is subject to interest tate pricing risk to the extent that The investments contain fixed rate
government and corporate bonds, The District has not entered inle any derivative agreements o mitigate these
risks.

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The Distrigt is
exposed o credit risk on the loans and mortgages receivable. The District mitigates its risk by securing the
leans with the underlying properties however at this time, they have unsecured loans of $19M from EnCharis
Community and Housing Services ("ECHS"). 98% {2011 - 94%) of the balance of loans and mortgiges
receivable are from ECHS. The Company is also exposed Lo credit risk through its investments in corporate
bonds, The District mitigates the risk of its investment in bonds through the overal} quality and mix of its bond
portfolio.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Organization will not be able to mest a demand for cash to fund its obligations
as they come due. Principal repaymenis and interest payment shortfalls on the loan to ECHS of $69,737,136
(2011 - $66,686,457) combined with the amount of the Joan relative to total assets of the District may be an
indicator of future potential liquidity strain. In the event of a severe liquidity strain, the District may not be
able to realize its assets and settle its liabilities and losses may occur.

Pemnock Acheson Mislsen Devaney



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended Januwary 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Controlled entity
Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia District Investments Lid. {("RRSP™);

On December 2, 1996, RRSP was incorporated under the Companiss Act of Albertz as a trust agent and
investment manager of registered retiremenl savings plans and registered retirement income plans for
annuitants. The District has the same Board of [Yrectors and management as RRSP and make all of the key
decisions for this entity. RRSP's financial statements are not consolidated in the District's financial
statements, however summary information of RRSP is provided in Nofe 6.

Entity subject 1o significant influence
EnCharis Community Housing Services ("ECHS"):

ECHS is a non-profit organization as defined under paragraph 149{(1)(1} of the Income Tax Act (Canada)
and is therefore not subject to income taxes. ECHS was incorporated on Nevember 9, 2005 under the
Companies Act of Alberta and commenced operations on February {, 2006. The Company provides
residential services to persons above the age of 55. Through the use of its properties, ECHS provides rental
accommodation, residential units under-life leases and palliative care to saniors. :
‘The District is in a position of significant influence over ECHS due to the following factors:

i) The District's representation on the Board of Directors of ECHS;

i) The District provides a credit facility to ECHS o assist in the temporary settlement of life leases
(MNote 14);

lil) The significance of District's mortgage loan investments in ECHS {Note 7);
iv) The high degree of economic dependence of ECHS on the District,

Revenue recognition

Restricted contributions related to general cperations are recognized as revenue of the District Operations in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred. All other restricted contributions are recopnized as revenue of
the appropriate restricted fund. '

Unrestricted confributions are recognized as revenue of the District Operations in the year received or
recetvable if the amotint to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Contributions for endowment are recognized as revenue in the Restricted Fund,
[nvestment income earned on restricted Fund resources is recognized as revesue of the Restricted Fund.
Unrestricted investment income earnad on Restricted Fund resources is recognized as revenue of the District

Operations. Investment income earned on building campaign resources is recognized as revenue of District
Operations. Cther investment inceme is Tecagnized as revenue of the Drstrict Operations.

Seminar fees are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund when the seminars are held.

Pensoelr Acheson Mislsen Devaney




LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2012

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Measurement uncertainly

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenuss and expenses during the period. Such estimates are periodically reviewed and any
adjustments necessary are reported in earnings in the period in which they become known, Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

A key area of estimation relates to the valuation of the mortgages and loans receivable due 1o the high credit
risk of the customers and the uncertainty of the iming of payments.

Impaired loans and allowance for loan impairinent

The District regularly assesses loan values for loan impairment. The carrying amount of these loans is
campared to the net realized value. Where the net realized value is less than the carrying value, a loan
impairment is recorded te lower the carrying value to the net realized valuc. Where cash flow information is
not available, secured value is used.

Interest impalrment is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of the interest receivable exceeds
its fair value.

Foreign currency fransiation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cunencies are translated into Canadian doilars at the
exchange rate in effect at the year end. Transactions in foreign currencies are transtated into Canadian dollars
at the exchange rate in effect at the date of the transaction. Gains and losses arising from translation of assels
and labilities are included in earnings for the year.

Capital management requirements

Capital is comprised of the Distriet’s fund balances, mortgage loan and investor obligations. The District
manrges its capital primarily through its investments and adhieres to the guidelines of the investment policies.
There have besn no changes to these guidelines during the year.

Cash and term deposits

The District’s policy is to disclose bank balances under cash and cash equivalents, inciuding bank overdrafts
with balances that fluctuate frequently from being positive to overdrawn and temporary investments with a
maturity period of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Term deposits and cash that the enfity
cannot use for current transactions because they are used for portfolia investments are also excluded from cash
and cash equivalents. ’

Pesnoch Actiessn Nielsen Dovansy



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes 1o Non-Congolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2012

4 CASH
2012 2011
Cash ) 3 453391 % 1,103.821
Portfetio cash ) 2,233,128 1,761,256

5 2,686,519 $ 2,863,077

The Overdraft lending facility bas a limit of $8,000,000 payable on demand with interest at the Bank of
Montreal's prime lending rate plus 0.75% (2011 - 0.75%). The amount which may be borrowed under the
arrangement is the lesser of the limit of the Overdraft Lending Facility and the discounted value of the
investments administered by entities of the Bank of Mentreal and assigned to the bank as security for the credit
facility. Security for the Lending Facility is & General Security Agreement being a floating charge over ali of
the assets of the District and a specific assigmment of investments pledged to the bank. Advances may be
converted to & Fixed Rate Operating Loan to a maximum of $3,000,000.

Additional ecomponents of the borrowing facility are as follows:

iy A $1,000,000 {2011 - §1,000,000) Life Lease contingency line of credit (Note 14). The bank
undertakes to loan mortgage funds to potential approved purchasers of Life Lease residences in
senjors' housing projects, 1T any of the individuaf mortgagors default on their mortgage abligation
to the bank, the District is obligated to pay the outstanding balance 10 the hank and recaver that
amount from the subsequent resale of the Life Leased residence. The lifc leases are included in the
financial statements of the District's debtor, EnCharts Community Housing Services.

ii} A $150,000 credit facility for the corporate mastercard.

5. PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

The Company had unrealized gains of $247,221 (2011 - unrealized gains of $622,771) which are not refiected
in the ameunts recorded on the statement of financial position. The change during the year, being a loss of
$375,500 (2011 - gain of $622,771), has not been included in the determination of excess revenues over
expenditures for the year.

Pennock Acheson Nielsen Bevaney



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2012

6. LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta-British Columbia District Investments Ltd, ("RRSP") iz a controlied
entity. The District holds a mortgage loan payable fo RRSP in the amount of $6,089 875 (2011 - $6,011,283).
The mortgage pavable to RRSP is secured by property in Strathmore, Alberta, bears interest at 6.5% per
annum, with interest payments due monthly on the first day of each month. During the year, the District
recorded inferest expense onh this mortgage of $385,455 (2011 - §384,012),

A sumumary of this controlled entity's financial statements al Junuary 31, 2012 is as follows:

2012 2011
Statement of Financial Pasition
Cash $ 658,190 $ 1,203,485
Marlcetable securities and accrued interest 7,222,014 7,255,973
[.oans receivabie 24,212,007 20,654,503
32,092,811 29,113,063
Accounts payable 2,250 7,538
Interest payable : 119,458 121,444
Advance from District 147,220 72,478
Annuitants' obligations 31,823,883 28,912,503

§ 32,092,811 $ 29,113,963

2012 2011
Statement of Revenues over expenses
Revenue 3 1,575,999 § 1,450,041
Expense (1,575,999 (1,450,041)
3 - 5 -
2012 2011
Statement of cash flows
Cash flow from gperating activities & 509,647 hY t41, 149
Cash flow from investing activities (3,561,443) (3,081,116)
Cash flow from financing activities . 2,847,793 3,320,214

b (144,003 % 386,207

During the year, the District reccived management fees of $133,041 (2011 - $67,121) from RRSP, These
transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange value which
represented the amount of consideration estabiished and agreed to by the parties, The amounts due from RRSP
are subject to normal trade termis and as such have been included in accounts receivable.

Fennach Acheson fielsen Devansy



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
. .Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2012

7.  LOANS AND MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

2012 2011

Church Extension Fund
Mortgages receivable from EnCharis Community Housing
Services ("ECHS"), bearing interest at 5.5% to 7.0% payable
monthly on the first day of each month and with principal
repayments of $2,000,000 due annually on February 1. The
mortgage is partially secured by Prince of Peace Village, Manor
properties and the Chestermere property. $ 69,737,130 S 66,686453
Loans receivable with interest rates ranging from 6.0% to 7.0%
per annum and are secured by the individual properties to which
they relate. 2,210,906 2,146,354
Restricted Fund
[nterest-free unsecured automobile loans made to pastors of the
District from funds deposited interest-free by other pastors of the
District,

56,266 42,488

$ 72004308 3 68,875335

There have been significant principal repayment shortfalls and continual interest payment shortfalls. As such,
the loan to BECHS could potentially be impaired. However due to lack of information, it could not be
determined whether an impairment exists. Principal repayments of $2,000,000 each were required to be made
annually in 2007 through 2009 with the remaining lo be negotiated. These principat repayments have not been
made. Management has aliowed forthe unpaid interest of $5,176,000.

Subsequent to year end, the Distriet approved an additional loan to ECHS in the amoum of $7,200,000 for
constructing a pipeline to deliver potable water to the facilities. No amounts have been drawn on this amount
to the date of the audit report.

8. LAND PROCEEDS ASSIGNMENT

In 2009, the District entered into an agreement whereby $6,000,000 of mortgage loans receivable were
exchanged by contract for the rights to proceeds from future land sales made by the former mortgage debtor.
The assignment of land proceeds receivable has been recorded at the net book value of the morigage loan
receivable extinguished in the Plant Fund. Under this agreement, the District is entitled o receive any proceeds
from the land sale in excess of the mortgage loan receivable extinguished but will have no recourse if the
eventual proceeds received are not sufficient fo discharge the receivable in full. The timing of the related Jand
sale i$ unknown and because of this, the eventual proceeds are indeterminable. 1t is management's opinion that
the proceeds received from the eventual land sale will be sufficient to discharge the assignment of the land
proceeds receivable as recorded in the financial statements.

Pennoek Acheson Wielsen Devaney



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA IISTRICT
~ Notes to Non-Cousolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2612

11.

12,

13.

DEFERRED LOAN

In 1996, the District entered inte a Mission Subsidy and Loan Repayment Apreement with Cencordia Lutheran
Church ("Concerdiz™,  Under the terms of the agreement, $300,000 was advanced to Concordia. In each of
January 2002, 2005, 2008 and 2011, Concordia assumed repayment of interest and principal on $10€,000 of
the loan. The remaining $100,000, plus accrued interest, wilt transfer to Concordia on January 1, 2014 and as
such, the amount recorded by the Company reflects the pertien of the loan abligation not yet assumed by
Concordia,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2012 2041
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Building A 862,832 § 495261 % 367,571 % 362,379
Eguipment 136,585 87,441 49,143 44,975

3 999,417 § 582,702 & 416,714 3 407,304

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale include assets that the District took over from congregations that were unable to
continue with the loan arrangements, The Plant Fund took possession of those properties and the
corresponding loans (o CEF at 7.00%. Interest in the amount of 2,811,902 (2011 - $2,043,507} is owed Lo
CEF from the Plant Fund on these properties, The Plant Fund will repay the CEF Fund upon the ultimate
disposal of these properties,

INTERFUND BALANCES

ay Loans

Funds loaned between the CEF and the Plant Fund accrue interest at 7.00% per annum until the carrying value
of the property and accrued interest are in combination equal to the market value of the propetty. The amount
of interest charged during the year was $561,019 (2011 - $1,002,868). The Plant Fund Fund has $14,653,313
(2011 - $14,197,336} owing to the CEF Fund as of January 31, 2012.

b) investments )

The interfund balances represent amounts the Restricted Fund has advanced to the CEF to be invested along
with funds mvested by individual investors yielding interest from 2.25% to 7.00%.

INVESTOR OBLIGATIONS

2012 2011
MNotes payable to investors, due on demand, bearing interest from
1.75% to 5.5% % 101,820,282 5 96,304,246
Balances payable to investors, due on demand, without interest 134,285 259,680

S 101,954,567 § 96,763,926

Fennack Acheson Mislsen Devansy



LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2012

14, CONTINGENCY

The District has entered into an agreement with 4 debtor, EnCharis Community Housing Services ("ECHS™),
that it will provide a credit facility of up to 1,000,000 (2011 - $1,000,000) to assist financing in the temporary
settiement of any life leases held by ECHS. ECHS is required to repay the funds o the District upon the
replacement of the life lease interesl. As at lanuary 31, 2012, The District had guaranteed $422,121 (2031 -
$606,458) related to ECHS life leases.

15. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform 1o the current year's presentation.

Fennock Acheson Nilsen Devanay
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MAKING A DIFFERENCE .o EOR ALL AGES

Don Wharton
- shating at
the Conference,

“Making a Difference. For ALl Ages” was
the theme for the 1999 Church Extension
Conference held April 16-18 a: the Buffalo
Mountain Lodge in Banff, ABerta. About
50 people from all over Alberta and British
Columbia attended the conferince, hoping
tolearnhow&eyboocould“makeadlf—
ference” in their ations.

Throughout the weekend, Church
Extension representatives and their families
weze given the opportumity to learn, share
and grow in their faith. They svere encour-
aged by the Bible Study led by Pastor Don
Schiemanm, o use the Gospel by make a dif-
ference in the lives of all people. Mr. Francis
Taman, a member at Prince of Peace Lutheran
Church in Calgary, then inform ed everyone
of the need and opportunifies. to minister
to seniors.

The business of the conferen e ot under-
way with an informative presetation about
Church Extension, Foundaticn and ABC
District Investments. Participar &s were then
able to expand their knowledge by attend-
ing a couple of the many interest sessions
available. Sessions dealing wita the chang-
ing face of missions, Estate Planning, CEF

promotion ideas and Tracky prcmotion were

_\offered

Conference registrants were given a real

“—~ireat at the banquet on Saturlay evening.

Mr. Don Wharion of Nashville, Tennessee
shared with everyone his gift of music and
humotrr, He also astonished the crowd by
telling of his miraculous rescue from a plane

This is EXHIBIT *1 2" referred
10 in the Affidavit of

Randall Scott Kelien

Some participants at the CEF Conference in Banff.

crash in the Bering Sea. Using memorized
passages from scripture as words of encour-
agement to each other, he and seven other
people survived the frigid weters, cold
enough to kill anyone in under 0 minutes.
Don provided inspiration for everyone at
the conference and served as a lving

reminder that God is with us always,
With the close of the 1999 Church
BExtension Conference, representatives from
all over Alberta and British Columbia were
reminded of the benefits that Church
Extemsion has to offer. They were told of
the many churches who have benefitted,
and who benefit still, with the help from
Church Extension. They were also assured
that no one has ever lost a penny in Church
Extension, and that the Church Extension

. office has been upgraded to be Y2K com-

patible. Most importantly however, everyone
was veminded that Church Extension real-
ly does strive to keep “Making a

Difference. For All Ages”.

Prepare For Action
Fifth Convention of
Latheran Church-Canada
June 10 - 14, 1999
Winnipeg, Manitoba

Special Easter Service in Mission Congregation

Celebration Lutheran Church in Maple
Ridge, B.C,, joyously celebrated their 3rd
Easter Service. (The first service was held
in 1956 on Palm Sunday.) This year’s ser-
vice featured special Easter music by our
worship team of guitar, keyboard, bass, &
drixms. Jenmifer Sobicinski & Nordene Lyon
sang a duet and Pastor Tony played the
trompet.

Fastor Tony Sobicinski’s sermon, “Because

e Lives” (John 14:18-21), was very inspi-
rational, A member, Colin Craig, made a
large cross of balloons, which helped focus
our worship on Christ's death and resur-
recton.

Celebration Latheran Church is a small
but enthusiastic mission station located at
Webster's Corner, meeting in an old Finnish
Hall. We have just finished drafting our con-

Continued on Page 7
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Grand Opening of

Mission Symposium at
Concordia Lutheran
Seminary

. Prince of Peace Village

On June 20, 1998 Prince of 2eace Village

in Calgary, Alberta was dedicated to the

“~— glory of God with a Dedicatior.and Ribbon
Cutting Ceremony which officially opened
Calgary’s first Christian adul living bun-
galow commmumity.

More than 300 people attended the ded-
ication which was held just outside the
showhotne in Prince of Peace Village. This
was the start of week-end festivities that
continued throughout Saturday and Sunday:
Events included a Festival Worship Service
at Prince of Peace on Sunday roming, plus
musical enterfainment and strolling street
entertainment Saturday and Sunday after-
noon, as well as refreshments.

More than 1200 people visited the

-showhome and took part in the ongoing

" for the grand opening event.

On 67 November 1998, Concordia

Lutheran Seminary in Edmonton is hosting
an event that will address one of the key
issues for our churchbody as it enters the
20st thnic
ming  This fs EXBIBIT 13~ referred -The
fitle to in the Affidavit of dian
City Randall Scotf Kelle #ing

fo L Sw fore me this / , lergy
and  dey ay, 2015

A Ndltary Public in and
Proyfince of British mhia

festivifies. Two of Calgary’s radio stations
set up remote locations at Prince of Peace e 5
Henry L. Rowold  Roland E. Miller  Raymond . Balde
The Prince of Peace Village is a phased
160 umit comnnity for the 55 phus crowd.
There are five quality floor plans ranging
from 1,072 o 1,296 square foot homes. The
homes start at $159,000 with all the bene-
fi intenance-free livi d social
a?év?g;fm ving an His topic i Through a Chinese Looking
Prince of Peace Village is a “Lifelease ~ Grass: Ministry Among Chinese in North
Project” vehich means the resident can builq  AArerica. Miller has served 23 years a5 a
ﬁgril:ﬁy ﬁr&\&ehon:; anhrinoctct:lupg bis or professor at various colleges and seminar-

e ang wi £ Dome 15 i P -
vacated, its Iease is mtu;med to the Lutheran g 1Ses ::md 12[1})51'{65;: Sf Itle?achmgt altﬁgutg;z
e o oo ot et 15 Christian Engagenent with Myl and
to o ents estate.  ypo Tosue of Jesws. Bakke is an ordained

Baptist pastor, seminary professor and

Keynote speakers indude Dr. Henry
Rowold, Dr. Roland Miller, and Dr. Ray
Bakke. Rowold spent 20 years as a mis-
sionary in Tatwan and is currently missions
professor at Concordia Seminary, St. Louis,

The national Youth

et Gathering of Lutteran Church-

EEEUD Canada was held July 37,1998

at the University of Waterloo

in Waterloo, Ontario with around 600 in

attendance. Young people anc! youth lead-

ers camie from all across Canade, Connecticat,

Minnesota, Wisconsin, fowa and California.

The Yorkin Borkin Tu Gatt ering includ-

ed a variety of events including Bible Study,

. Worship, singing, servant events and mini-
olympics.

“The CREW”, which was originally called

for the first national ‘vouth gather-

ing in 1989, were the music leaders for the

gathering. Dr. Oswald Hoffirann, the for-

“if{ National Youth Gathering

presently executive director of International
Urban Associates in Chicago, linois. He is
a world-wide and world-tenowned wrban
ministry consultant. His topic is The City
mer Lutheran Herur Speaker, preached at  for God's Sake: An Agenda for Urban
the Worship Service and also led Bible  Ministry.
Studies. Other musie groups included, “Lost The
and Found, “Victory” and “Fear Not™.
During the gathering all of the youth
sigried up for sexvant evenis and parfic-
pated in a variety of activities around the
community in providing service and help

fur runs from 1 pm Friday
November 6 until 530 pm Saturday
November 7. Cost for the symposium is $10
per speaker or $25 for all three. Small group
discussion time is also scheduled. Brochures
and posters were sent o tions this

to people. summer and another mailing is scheduled
The purpose of the five day event was  for early fall. See your pastor for a regis-
o encourage young people in their Christian  tration. form {they may be photocopied) or

faith and let them know there are hundreds
of others who share their beliefs. The nation-
al youth gatherings of Lutheran
Church-Canada are held every three years.

direct your inquiries to Concordia Lutheran
Seminary. Phone: {403) 474-1468, Faxc {403)
479-3067, BE-Maik: clsadmin@connect.ab.ca
‘Written inuities may be sent to CLS at 7040
Ada Bivd., Edmonton, AB T5B 4E3.



DIVINE
CALLS

= R et

1ity, Pincher Creek, AB — Called Rev. Nicholas
‘Wasylowich of Tomington, AB

wce, Camrose, AB ~ Rev. Dan Findesknecht
declined; calling again Nov. 24

teemer, Edmonton, AB — Rev. Brian Amison
dectined; calling Nov. 25

aity, Quesnel, BC — Called Rev. Forest Stroup
of Chilliwack, BC

Joh's, Wilkams Lake, BC — Pre-call meet-
ing set for November 28th

ills Received .
w, Mark Beiderwieden, Victorin, BC — St
James, Winnipeg, MB — Declired
zv. Marty Bronsch, CRM, Canrnore, AB —
Neepawa/McCreary, MB Parish - Reclined
ev. Rod Buck, Osoyoos, BC — Christ,
Langenburg, SK. — Declined
ev. Vance Tech, Fort Saskatchewin, AB — St
Peter/First, Wymore/Summerfield, KS —
Declined
ev. Chff Haberstock, Edmonton, .AB — Grace,
Regina, SK
tev, Wally Hambrock, Cranbrook, BC — First,
Kingsville, ON
ev. Larry McKay, Grace, Edmonton to St
Paul’s, Saskatoon, SK
lev. Rob Mohas, Didsbury,
NeepawaMcCreary, MB

AB to

Fast of Calgary

NEW DESIGN.

NEW PRICE.
$139,900.

Two-bedroom villa style bungalows with
main floor laundry, four appliances, basement
and garage. RV parking available.

Hike our two kilometres of trails, then join us
for hot mullled cider in our show home.

on Highway One near Chestermere

Page5 -

- Grace Upon Grace

_ The year 1999 marks the 75th Anniversary
of Grace Lutheran Church, Edmonton,
Alberta. Pastors Larry MacKay and Wayne
Jensen share the ministry of this central
Edmonton congregation.

Grace Lutheran had its beginming when
Rev. R. Shippanowski was installed on
November 30, 1924. Services were held at
several different locations over the years,

them Howard and McBride Funeral
Home. In 1937 a church was built on 17
St., just south of Jasper Ave. As the com-

gregation grew, a larger church building was
uired

mqln 1954 the new church was built at the
present location, 9907 - 114 St. The dedica-
tion service took place on July 3, 1955, during
Pastor MJ. Bruer’s menistry.

Tnder the theme "Grace Upon Grace"
the anniversary commiitee’s mission state-
ment is “In fhankfulness for 75 years of
God's grace, the mission of the anmiversary

cele™ T T ndant
gra  This IS EXHIBIT ‘:14“ referred ration
and o inthe Affidavit of 1 this,
thet Randall Scott Kellen,
© Swom before me this_{ N,
ser Tth
Yetober

Lake.
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SHOW HOME HOURS

Sat; 10 am - 5 pm, Sun: 1 -6 pm
Tel: 403.508.0125

Faith Lutheran School Building Fund
" Concordia Seminary Library Fund

Church Sigoage

Spedal everts have taken place from May
to October,

On May 2 the Edmonton Swiss Men's
Choir presenied a concert, followed by a
reception. i

The June event was a congregational pic-
nic at Faith School, at which time a monetary
gift was presented.

On July 11 an anniversary brunch was
held at the church at which there was a pre-
sentation nizing the historic relationship
with Concord a College.

The next event was hosting an appreci-
ation dirmer for the Concordia Seminary
community. ;A c¢heque for the Seminary
library fund was presented.

An Education Workshop, drawing over
100 people from the ABC District was held
ont 25. The keynote speaker was
Pastor Jim Gimble, the Senior Editor of Youth,
Family and Sunday School Resources at
Concordia Publishing House.

To condude the anniversary year a ban-
quet was held on October 30 and two services,
of praise and thartks on Reformation Sunday
with guest preacher, former pastor, Rev. Paul

To God be the glory for His grace npon
grace.

Mon-Fri: 11 am - 7 pm

DEVELOPED BY PRINLE GF PEACE CHURCH AND
LUTHERAN CHURCH-UARADA, ALBERTA-8C DISTRICT.
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District Lutheran President says he 'hears responsibility
financial mess, promises review
By Trisha Estabrooks, CBC News Posted: Jan 23, 2015 6:00 AM MT Last Updated: JTan 23, 2015 G: 1AM MT

The president of the Alberta-British Columbia District of the Lutheran Church-Canada says he
takes responsibility for the financial mess the church is now in, a situation that happened under
his leadership.

“It happened on my watch,” Pastor Don Schiemann said during an interview in his Edmonton
office.

He said be realized how serious the financial situation was about a year and a half ago. In March
2014, the investrnent fund at the centre of the problem stopped accepting deposits.

“I personally feel terrible for what’s happened and certainly, as I say, bear responsibility for it,
‘because I'm president of this district.”

In a letter to about two thousand investors sent Jan. 5, Schiemann said the Church Extension
Fund (CEF), an investment fund that has existed since 1921, has been suspended and is not able
to fully pay back the $95 million owed to investors.

"Two staff at the district office have been laid off, though one person left before being given a
layoff notice. Schiemann isn’t ruling out more layoffs, saying “that’s on the table, if need be,
we’re fully prepared to do that,”

In 2012 the Prince of Peace Village development had a loan worth $70 million from the
investiment fund. (CBC)

Sources close to the Alberta-B.C. district say the CEF ran into trouble when money from it was
used 1o build the Prince of Peace Manor and Harbour east of Calgary in the 1990s.

“We made decisions in favour of ministry, and as a result there were some poor financial
decisions,” said Schiemann, who has no regrets over the ministerial work done at the Prince of
Peace development east of Calgary.

"Perfect storm” led to financial erisis

Schiemann said he’s still trying to understand how the district landed in such financial trouble.
The financial crisis was caused by what he describes as a “perfect storm” of factors, including;
investors withdre wing; outstanding loans, including the one to the Prince of Peace that in 2012,
the last audit available, shows it was worth 70 million dollars; and, not having any other
wvestments that could earn money. :

The church must now start selling off assets. Investors are being asked to consider two options:
liquidate the district’s assets immediately; or receive payments from Prince of Peace Manor and



Harbour, while also selling off assets, such as sites purchased for new churches. There is no
timeline for when a final decision will be made. What is clear is that everything, even the
building Schiemann currently works in, could eventually be up for sale.

“We’re not tied to a building," he said. "If this building needs to be sold, it’Hl be sold, but we will
continue to do our work as the Alberta - British Columbia district of Lutheran Church Canada.”
Schiemann couldn’t say exactly how much the church’s assets are worth, but did say if investors
choose the first option, of selling off the assets immediately, a return of up to 65 cents on the
doliar is expected.

From November 2012 to November 2014, almost 13 million dellars was withdrawn from the
CEF. In December, all withdrawals and all accounts were Tozen. ‘Schiemann is adamant that
anyone who knew about the financial situation did not make withdrawals.

“How could we stand in front of investors and say with inside information we took advantage of
that and we saved our dollars but you’re stuck with what you’ve got? There’s no way we could
do that."

Schiemann, who has served as district president for 15 vears, doesn’t shy away from the gravity
of the situation and said the church administration has a moral and ethical obligation to try to
return as much of investors’ money as possible.

A review will happen, says Schiemann
He agrees with the Lutheran Chwrch Canada’s national president, Reverend Robert Bugbee, that

the current precarious financial situation raises the question of whether church’s (sic) should be
i the business of financing. Schiemann said the district intends to review how it has been
running the investment fund with the goal of determining how it ended up in this financial mess,
adding that some churches that have relied on fund may need to look at refinancing with the
banks.

He confirmed the church has hired a public relations firm to help communicate with investors
about what’s happening with their money.

Schiemann intends to retire {rom the position of president in May, a decision he said has nothing
to do with the current financial crisis facing the district.

“I look at our church, and I look at our people and I look at our gracious God and we’1l pull
through this. Our church may look somewhat different, and that may not be bad,” he said
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HOLDINGS IN CEF and DISTRICT INVESTMENTS LTD FUNDS day/tfjm 2010

OF ary Public in an(%
PRINCE OF PEACE CONGREGATION" Proyince of Bitish Cdlumbia

Total Congregational

POP Congregation Deposits

Date Deposits in CEF Amount % of Total Funds

1995 ~ $16,810,000 CEF Only Not Available Not Available

September 1999 $30,000,000 CEF Only Not Available Not Available

2001 $56,140,000 CEF Only Not Available Not Available
October 2008 $106,000,000 $7,545,300 7.12%
December 2008 $108,000,000 $7,515,364 5.96%
June 2009 $109,800,000 $7,489,225 6.82%
«January 2010 $119,700,000 $7,400,000 6.18%
March 2010 $120,000,000 $7,300,000 6.08%
May 2010 $121,300,000 $6,750,000 5.56%
September 2010 $122,400,000 $6,600,000 5.39%
March 2011 $127,200,000 $6,640,000 522%
September 2011 $128,600,000 $6,310,000 4,91%
December 2011 $133,241,000 $6,251,000 4.69%
November 2012 $142,863,323 $5,616,000 3.93%
September 2013 $143,000,000 $5,100,000 3.57%
November 2013 $140,223,522 $4,824,000 3.44%
Februaty 2014 $140,433,737 $3,387,000 2.41%
June 2014 $138,000,000 $3,260,000 2.36%
November 2014 $133,000,000 $2,900,000 2.18%

*Source: CEF monthly reports
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Charify's Return - List of Directors / Trustees and Like Officials
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Charities and Giving > (Charities Listings > Search

Directors / Trustees and Like Officials - ENCHARIS
MANAGEMENT AND SUPPORT SERVICES

i1 Directors/Trustees and Like Officials

Registered charities that notice probiems with their online information should go to Amending the

13010 i

nformation retarn.

KX

Directors/Trustees and Like Officials }

Last name:SCHIEMANN )
First name; DONALD This is EXHIBIT " 16-A"
Initial/Middle name: R mf&;r{ziéz;? ét;ﬁif&d
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2008-05-01
End Date:
Position: VICE CHAIRMANN

At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?; Yes

Piovince of BritisH Columbia

Last name:MCMASTER
First name: GRANT
Initial/Middle name: D
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2006-06-29
End Date:
Position: DIRECTOR
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes

Last name;HEUMANN
First name: HANS
Initial/Middle name: W
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2006-06-29
End Date:
Position: CHAIRMAN
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes

Last name: WERSCHLER
First name: JAMES
Initial/Middle name: K
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2007-06-07
End Date: :‘
Position; SECRETARY '
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes }

hitpzifwww . cra-arc.ge.caiebeihaipisreh3010form23officer s-eng.action?b=803968340RR 001 8fpe=2014- 03-31&r=ENCHARISHMANAGEMENT+AND+SUP...
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Al442015 Charity's Return - List of Directors / Trustees and Like Officials

Last name:RUF
First name: MARK
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2008-08-01
End Date:
Position: DIREZTOR
At arm's length with other Directors, efc.?: Yes

Last name:SCHEQFPP
First name: DAVE
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2011-07-01
End Date: .
Position: DIRECTOR
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes

Last name: TAMAN
First name: FRANCIS
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date:
End Date:
Paosition:
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?:

Last name: KENTEL
First name: JIM
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date:
End Date;
Position:
At arm’s length with other Directors, etc.?:

fast name:MORGAN
First name: BI.L
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:

~ Start Date;

" End Date:

Position:
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?:

Last name:BODE
First name: DAVID
Initial/Middle name:

ntipiwww.cra-are.go.calebelhalp/sreh3010form 23officers-eng.action?h=803568940RR 0001 &fpe=2014-03-318r=ENCHARIStMANAGEMENT+ AND-+SUP...
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4{4f2015 Charity's Refurn - List of Directors / Trustees and Like Officials
1¢ | Director/Trustee/Like Officials Termn:
Start Date:
~. .. End Date:
Position:
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?:

Last name:MUELLER

First name: JOHN

Initiai/Middie name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:

11
Start Date:
End Date:
Position:
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?:
Contact us

Date Modified: 2014-07-30

hitp:fAwwwy.cra-are. ge.calehclhaip/sroh/t301 0form 23officers~eng.action?b=803568840R R 00018fpe=2014-03-318n=ENCHAR IS+ MANAGEMENT+AND+SUP... 43



4/4/2015 ’ Charity’s Refurn - List of Directors / Trustees and Liks Officials

Sangde Revenus A di favenu - "
Agarey AU Gansss Cai}&dﬁi
Charities and Giving > Charities Listirigs > Search

Directors / Trustees and Like Officiais - LUTHERAN
CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA
DISTRICT .

14 Directors/Trustees and Like Officials

Registered charities that notice problems with their online information should go to Amending the
13010 information return.

I # ”7 Directors/Trustees and Like Cfficials j
Last name:Ruf N o
First name: Mark This is EXEIBIT “16-B-

: referred to in the Affidavit of
| Initial/Middle name: D Randall Scott Kellen
L Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term: Swom before me this
Start Date: 2006-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31 Province of British Colambia
Position: 1st Vice President
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Last name:Schiemann
First name: bon
Initial/Middle hame: R
5 Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2006-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Paosition: President
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Last name:Schmidt
First name: Harold
Initial/Middie name: C
3 Director/"i'rusteee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date! 2006-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position: Board Member
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Last name:Robinson
First name: Kurt
Initial/Middie name: F
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term: [
4 Start Date: 2006-06-01
End Date: 2013-05-31 .
Position: Treasurer |

http:ﬂwww.cra-arc.gc.calebcihaiplsr(:wtao‘loform%ofﬁcers-eng.action?b=107649667RR0002&fpe=2014—01—31&n=LUTHERAN+CHURCH+-+CANADA%ZC... 14




44412015 Charity’s Return - List of Diractors / Trustees and Like Officials

At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: %
Last name:Tufts
First name: Craig
Initial/Middie name:
5 Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2012-06-01
End Data: 2015-05-31
Position: 3rd Vice President
Al arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Last name:Buck
First name: Rhonda
Initial/Middle name:
6 Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2012-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position; Secretary
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Last name:Dressier
First name: David
Initial/Middle narme:
5 Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2009-06-01
End Date: 2012-05-31
Position: 2nd Yice President
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Last name:Giese
First name: Greg
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
8 Start Date: 2009-06-01
End Date: 2021-05-31
Position: Boarnd Member
At arm's fength with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
| ast name:Weist
First name: Deloyce
Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
? Start Date: 2009-06-01
End Datw: 2015-05-31
Position: Board Member
At arm's length with other Directors, etc,?: Yes
Last name:Gergens
First name: Lynn

Hitp/iwww.cra- arc.ge.cafebcimaip/srehital Dform23officers-eng action 7b=1 (7649667RRO002&fpe=2014-01-31&n=LUTHERAN+CHURCH+~+CANADA%2C... 24



47412015 Charity's Return - List of Direclors / Trustees ard Like Officials
Initial/Middie name:
10 Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2012-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position: Board Member
At arm’s length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes

Last name:Haberstock
First name: Keith
Initial/Middie name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2009-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position: Board Member
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes

11

tast name:Kental
| First name: Jirn
Initial/Middie name: T
Director/Trustee/like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2006-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position: Chairman
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes

12

Last name:Kuhn

First name: Melanie

Initial/Middle name:
Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:

13 Start Date: 2006-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position: Board Member
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?! Yes
Last name.Esperanza
First name: Vic
Initial/Middle name:
14 Director/Trustee/Like Officials Term:
Start Date: 2012-06-01
End Date: 2015-05-31
Position: Board Member
At arm's length with other Directors, etc.?: Yes
Contact us

Date Modifiad: 2014-07-30

hipcffwwnw cra-arc.ge.calebelhalpsrehi3010form23ofiicers-eng.acifon?h=107640667R RO0028/pe=2014- 01-318r=LUTHERAN+CHURCH+-+CANADA%2C ... 3/4






Thjs is EXHIBIT "1 7" referred

to 1n the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Xellen

Sworn before me this 4
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ROLFE , BENSON LLP CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

1400-~500 Wast Hastings Strest

Vaneouver, B.C. V6C 1E3 .

Telephone: 604-584-1101 Fax; 604-684-7937
E-mail: admin@roliebenson.com -

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors,
The Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia District

We have audited the statement of financial position of The Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta -

" British Columbiit District as at 31 January 2010 and the statements of operations and changes in fund balances

and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian’ generally accepted auditing standards. Those

standards requirc:that we pian and perfortn an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements

" are free of material misstatement, An audit inclndes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

Note 4{b} describes the District's accounting policy with respectto its investrents in marketable securities

(Note 6). Inaccordance with CICA Handbook Section 385 § Financial Instruments Recognitien and Measurement,.

the District is required to measure and repert these investments at fair value. In this respect, the financial

statements are not in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.: I investments were’

carried at fair value, the investments in marketable securities and fund balances at 31 January 2010 would
decrease by $1,810,479, fund balance at 1 February 2009 would decrease by $4,044,965, the excess of revenue
and support over expenses for the year ended 31 January 2010 would increase by $2,234.486..

Note 4(c) describes the amortization policy with respect to the District's capital assets. In this respectthe
financial statements are not in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. The estimated
useful life of similar assets is usually considered to be approximately 40 years. If amortization had been provided
on the basis of an éstimated useful life of 40 years, amortization expense net of capitel asset write-offs for the year
ended 31 January 2010 would have been increased (decreased) by $129,365 (2009 - ($129,369)} and the
cumulative effect of not recording amortization to date is an overstatement of capital assets and fund balance in
the plant fund as of 31 January 2010 of $688,124 (2009 - $538,759).

In our opinion, except for the effests of the failure to record amortization as described in the preceding
paragraph and to record investments in marketable securities at market vaiue as described in the second proceeding
paragraph, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the District
as at 31 January 2010 and the results of its operations, changes in find balances and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, Canada
29 April 2010
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA
THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 31 Jannary 2010

The abcoxﬁpanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement

5

2010 2005
Cash provided by (used in):
_Operating activities )
Excess (deficiency) of support and revenue : : -
over expenses for the year 3 (750,960) $ (L,446,261)
Ttems not mvolving cash -
Write of of capital assets . 23745 9,620
(727,155) (1,436,641)
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accrued interest receivable {1,136) 3,274
Accounts receivable 148,552 21,204
Accrued interest payable (384,492) 1,759,622
Accounts payable (25,706) 31,925
Deposits payable {4,367 31,367
Deferred revenue 2,500 -
) (599,824) 415,751
Investing activities =
Purchases of capital assets (11,278) (9,030)
Nei additions to other properties and land proceeds. assignment (756,675) (11,891,316)
~ Issuance of loans and mortgages receivable - net (948,450) (5,438,515)
(Purchase) proceeds from investments - net __(1,029,570) 3,382,182
: : ' (2,746,013 {13,956.67%9)
Financing activities :
Investor obligations (paid) received - net 4,691,062 10,507,117
Increase in morigage loan payable 1,369,237 4,586,388
. : ' 6,060,299 15,093,503
Net increase in cash 2,314,462 1,552,577
Cash (deficiency) - beginning of year 204,697 (1.347,880)
Cask (deficieniev) - end of vear $  2.519.159 3 204,697
Represented by: _
Cash A $ - $ 417,551
Bank indebtedness {480,841) (212,854)
Term deposits 3.600.000 -
' § 2.519.159 $ 204,697

SROLFE, BENSON LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS



THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA BISTRICT

Notes to the Financial Statements -
For the Year Ended 31 January 2010

1. Organization

(a) The Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbia District (the *“District™) was
incorporated by an Act of the Alberta Provincial Legislature on 24 March 1944 and in British
Columbia on 19 June 1955 pursuant to the provisions of the Society Act of British Columbia.

(b} The Mission Statement of the District is:

- to support public worship, and to unite in a corporate body the various congregations,
organized as corporations, or existing as voluntary organizations, of the Evangelical Lutheran
Church in the Provinces of Alberta and British Columbia, who as congregations and as
individual members of such congregations accept, and remain true to, the canonical books of
the Old and New Testaments as the sole and exclusive rule of Christian doctrine and practice,
and acknowledge as a true exhibit of sound Christian doctrine the Book of Concord;

- to promote the efficiency and extend the influence of the said The Lutheran Church - Canada;

- to hold, own, manage, control, possess, and reecive, directly and indirectly, by grant, gift, -
purchase, donation, devise or bequest, real, personal and mixed property of every name,
nature, and descrlptton whatsoever and dispose of the same;

- to invest monies and other personal property, with or without interest, in such manner as the
directors of said corporation may elect or see fit so to do, subject to the action of the
coyporation, with or without security, for religious purposes;

- to promote efficiency, co-operate in ecclesiastical work in the extension of religion, by
educational, charitable and missionary work;

- to help to establish and maintain parochial schools, colleges, seminaries and other institutions
of leaming;

- toproperly educate and prepare persons for the ministry and for teaching in parochial schoals;
and

- toaidin disseminating the knowledge of the Gospel throughout the world.

2. Fund Accounting
The District follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.

The accounts are maintained on an accrual basis in accordance with the principles of “Fund Accounting”
10 enstre observation of limitations and restrictions placed on the usc of résources available to the District.

Fund accounting is the procedure whereby resources received and the subsequent use of those resources
are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds which are in accordance with the actmt]es
or objectives specified by the source of the TESOUIce.

WROLFE, BENSON LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

Notes to the Financiai Statemenis
For the Year Ended 31 Jannary 20106

Fund Accounting - continued

Within each fund group, fund balances resiricted by outside sources are so indicated and are distinguished .
from funds allocated to specified purposes by the Board of Directors. ’

Gains and losses arising from the sale or other disposition of assets are accounted for in the fund which
owned such assets. Ordinary income derived from investments is accounted for in the fund owning such
assets. All other resources received are-accounted for as revenue of the current fund.

The separate funds are maintained for the following purposes:

" Current Fund

The current fund is used to account for the budgeted operations of the [strict. A portion of the
administrative expenses are allocated to the Church Extension Fund based on a consistent percentage of
specified expenses. '

Restricted Fund

The Restricted Fund is used to record funds received by the District which are restricted for specific
ministry projects and the disbursements of these funds for the specified purpose.

Church Extension Fund

The Church Extension Fund is used to record funds received from members at minimal interest for the
purpose of providing financial support to congregations for capital purposes.

Plant Fund

The Plant Fund is used to record funds employed for capital purposes and to reflzot investment in District -
owned property. Additions are recorded at cost or, if donated, at the fair market value on the date of the
receipt of the gift. No amortization is recorded on the physical plant and equipment; however, individual
picces of equipment are written off after eight years. The cost of items disposed of is written off in the
year as a charge to the net investment in plant. Equipment purchased by the Current and Church Extension -
Funds are recorded as a transfer to the Plant Fund.

In the case of land acquired for future use (included in other oroperties), intesest on funds borrowed is
capitalized (subject to a fair market value test} in the determination of the cost of the properties.

All other interest expense is charged to operations.

The amount of interest capitalized during the year was $Nil (2009 - $Nil} and cumulative interest

capitalized to date totals $8,483,269 (2009 - $8,483,265). -

§ROLFE, BENSON LLP
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THE LUTHERAN CHIJRCIH - CANADA,

THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 Jannary 2010

3.

Changes in Accounting Policies
a. Capital Disclosures

The District adopfed the recommendations of the CICA Handbook Section 1535, Capital
Disclosures. This section establishes standards for disclosing informaticn about an entity's capital
and how it is managed. The District manages its capital primarily through its investments and
adheres to the suidelines of the Disfrict's investtnent policies. There have been no changes to
these guidelines during the year. This new standard only addresses the disclosure in the {financial
staternents and has no impact on the financial results.

() Accounting Standards Not-for-Proftt Organizations

Effective 1 February 2008, the District adopted the CICA Handbook amended Sections 4400 and
the new Section 4470, "Disclosures of Allocated Expenses by Not-for-¥ rofit Organizations”. The
amendments clarified the recognizing of revenues and expenses on a gross basis when the
not-for-profit organization acts as a principal in the transactions and the treatment and disclosure
of internally and externally restricted net assets. The new section requires not-for-profit
organizations that make allocations of general supposrt and fundraising costs to other functions to
disclose the policies adopted for the allocation of expenses among firctions, the nature of the
expenses being allocated, the basis on which such allocations have beei made, and the functions
to which they have been allocated. The adoption of these standards has no impact on the financial
statements.

Summary of Significant -Accounting Policies

The District is a not-for-profit organization. These finantial statements reflect the following accounting
policies:

(a) Revenue Recognition

Restrioted contributions relaled to general operations are recognized as revenue of the Current
Fund in the year in which the related expenses are incurred, Al other resricted contributions are
recognized as revenue of the appropriate restricted fund.

Unrestricted coniributions are recognized as revenue of the Current Fund in the year received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

Contributiens for endowment are recognized as-revenue in the Restricied Fund.

Tnvestment income earned on Restricted Fund resources is recognized as revenue ofthe Restricted
Fund. Unrestricted investment income earmed on Restricted Fund resources is recognized as
revenue of the Current Fund. Investment income earned op building campaign resources is
recogmzcd as revenue of the Plant Fumd. Other investment income is recognized as revenue of the
Church Extension Fund when earned.

Seminar fees are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund when the seminars are held.

K2 OLFE, BENSON LLP
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,

THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to the Financiai Statements

For the Year Ended 31 January 2010

- Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

(3)] Investments
Investments are recorded at cost.

(c) Capital Assets
Advance sites, office building, and other properties are recorded at cost. No amortization is
provided on the office building, equipment and other properties. This policy is a departure from
Canadian generally accepted accounting prmmplcs However, individual pieces of equipment are
written off after eight years.,

{(d) Other Properties

Other properties include land which is recorded at cost plus annual carrying costs not exceeding
the fair value of the underlying property.

(e Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, support and revenues and expenses and disclosure of
contingencies at the date of the statement of ﬁnanclai position. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Loans and Mertgages Receivable

-{a)  Restricted Fund

These loans represent interest-free unsecured automobile loans made to pastors of the District
from funds deposited interest-free by other pastors of the District (Note 7). Maturity dates of these
loans vary.

ROLFE, BENSON LLP
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,

THE ALBERTA -~ BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to ithe Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 Janoary 2010

Loans and Mortgages Receivable - continued

(b) . Church Extension Fund

2010 2009
Maturity Dates of loans receivable vary with interest rates -
ranging from 6.00% to 7.00% per annum and are secured
by the individual properiies to which they relate. § 4,840,398  §° 5,056,211

Mortgage receivable from EnCharis Community Housing
Services {ECHS) (Note 15(b}), bearing interest at 5.5% to
7.00% payable monthly on the first day of each month and
with principal payments of $2,000,000 due annuatly on
1 February. The morigage is secured by Prince of Peace
© Village and Manor properties and the Chestermere property
As at 31 January 2010, interest of $1,283,870
(2009 - $3,219,053) was in arrears on the ECHS loan. A
payment of $1,040,000 was received on 6 Aprii 2010, 61,197,183 60,013.919

£ 66,037,581 365,070,130

Invesiments
2010 2009
Market Market
Vahye Cost Yalue Cost
) 3 b3 3 b3
Stocks and bonds held by L
irvestment hrokers and hanlers 16,417,853 18228332 - 13,153,797 17,198,762

Deposits Payable

(2)  Restricted Fund ) :
Auto replacement deposits represent. non-interest bearing funds deposited with the District.
Church workers with deposits ate eligible for interest-free auto loans. The auto replacement
deposits are repayable upon workers' requests.

{b} Plant Fund ) )
Deposits represent amounts advanced by a congregation toward the purchase of a church and land

currently held in trust by the District.

ROLFE, BENSON LLP
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA. - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

Notes to ihe Financial Smwuwﬁtb
For the Year Ended 31 January 2010

i0.

Investor Gbligations .
2010 2009

Church Extension Fund
Notes payable to investors - due upon demand, beating _
interest from 2.25% to 7.00% © 0§ 93,760,540 - $ 89,072,453

Balances payable to investors, due on demand and without
interest 287,560 284,585
§ 94,048,100 b 89,357,638

Interfund Loans

" Loans

Funds foaned between the Church Extension Fund and the Plant Fund are secured by the underlying
property and accrue interest at 7% per annum until the carrying value of the property and accerued interest
are in combination equal to the market value of the property. The amount oi interest charged during the
year was $977,713 (2009 — §711,927).

Inv&stments
Thesc interfund balanees represent amounts that the Restricted Fund has advanczd to the Cliurch Extension

Tund to be invésted along with funds invested by individual investors yielding interest from 2.25% to
7.00%.

Bank Lending Facility

The Overdraft Lending Facility has a limit of $8,000,000 payable on demand with interest at the Bank of

‘Montreal's pr;mc lending rate plus 1/4 of one percent. The amount which muy be borrowed under the

arrangement is the lesser of the limit of the Overdraft Lending Facility anc the discounted value of
investments administered by entities of the Bank of Montreal and assigned to the bank as security for the
credit facility. Security for the Overdraft Lending Facility is a General Security Agreement being a
floating charge over all of the assets of the District.

An additional component of the borrowing facility is as follows:

A $3,000,000 Life Lease contingency line of credit. The bank undertakes t> loan mortgage funds t¢
potential approved purchasers of Life Lease residences in senjors’ housing projects. If any of the
individual mortgagors default on their mortgage obligation to the bank, the Disirict is obligated fo pay the
ontstanding balance to the bank and recover that amount from the subsequent resale of the Life Leased
residence. The life leases are included in the financial statements of the District’s debtor, EnCharis
Community Housing Services (Note 5, Note 15(b) and Note 16).

11 ) i]] ROLFE, BENSON LLP
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

Notes to the Finanecial Statements
For the Year Ended 31 January 2010

11.

12.

13.

14.

Land Proceeds Assignment

During the prior year, the District entered infe an agreement whereby $6,003,000 of mortgage loans
receivable were exchanged by contract for the rights to proceeds from future land sales made by the former
mortgage debtor. The assignment of land proceeds receivable has been recorded atthe net book value of
the mortgage loan receivable extinguished in the Plant Fund. Under this agreemsnt, the District Is entitled
to receive any proceeds from the land sale in excess of the mortgage loan recetvable extingnished but will
have no recourse if the eventual proceeds received are not sufficient to discharge the reccivable in full.
The timing of the related land sale is unknown and because of this, the evenhial proceeds are
indeterminable.” It is management’s opinion that the proceeds received from the eventual land sale will
be sufficient to discharge the assignment of land proceeds receivable as recorded in the financial
statements.

Mortgage Loan ‘Payable

The District holds & mortgage loan payable to District Investments related ic the Strathmore, Alberta
property in the amount of $5,955,625.

The mortgage loan payable to District Investments is secured by property in Strathmore, Alberta, bears
interest at 6.50% per annum, with inferest payments due monthly on the first day of each month. During
the year, the District recorded interest expense on this mortgage of $379,412 (2009 -$131,712).

Defined Benefit Plan

The District participates in the Worker Benefit Plan of The Lutheran Church ~ Canada. Full-time
employees are covered by this retirement and survivor program. The District contributes a fixed
percentage of each participant’s satary to the plan. Retirement and survivor program expenses for the
period ended 31 January 2010 amounted to $107,727 (2009 - 578;884).

" Financial Instroments and Interest Rate Risk

The District has elected to use the exemption provided by the CICA permitting nct-for-profit organizations
not to apply the CICA Handbook Section 3862 “Financial Instruments ~ Disclosure” and Section 3863
“Einancial Instriiments - Presentation which would otherwise have applied to the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2010. The District applies the requirements of Section 3861 of the CICA
Handbook.

2 Fair Value

The following policies and assumptions were used to determine the fair value of sach class of
finencial assets and financial Babilities.’

i, Cash, accrued interest and accounis receivable, interfund balances, land proceeds
assignment, bank indebtedness, acerued interest, accounts payabli and deposits payable are
classified as held for trading and are measured at their canying amount since it is
comparable to their fair value due fo the approaching maturity of these financial
insfruments, ‘ '

: .
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,

THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COCLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes io the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 31 January 2010

14, Financial Instruments and Interest Rate Risk - continued
(2) Fair Value - continued
ii.  Investments are classified as held-for-trading financial assets. They are measared at cost
{Note 3(b)).
ili.  Loansand mortgages receivable are classified as loans and}ecei\-ables. They are measured

at amortized cost.
iv.  Investor obligations are classified as other liabilities and are measured at amortized cost.
b Interest Rate Risk

The District is exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed rate investments and debt due fo
fluctuations in market interest rates. Because the District’s loans and mortgages receivable are
renewed every three years, and the investor obligation returns are determined from the investment
returns, it is management’s opinion that the District is not exposed to significant interest risk.

c, Credit Risk

The District’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations ol ‘credit tisk consist of cash
and term deposits, and loans and mortgages receivable. Cash and term deposits are in place with
major financial institutions. The District is exposed to credit risk with respect to loans and
mortgages receivable as 93% of this balance is due from ECHS (Note 5(b) and 15(b)). The
District has evaluation and monitoring processes in place and records impairment losses when
leans and mortgages receivable are determined to not be fully recoverable.

15. Related Party Transactions
a. Lutheran Church, Canada - The Alberia - British Columbia District Investments Lid.

During the year, the District received management fees of $112,920 {2009 - $234,899) from
Lutheran Church, Canada - The Alberta-British Columbia District Investments Ltd. (“District
Investments™), a company for which four members of the Board of Directers are also members
of District's Board of Directors. These transactions were in the norma. course of operatiohs and
were measured at the exchange value which represented the amount of consideration established
and agreed to by the related parties.

B. EnCharis Community Housing and Services

The District has a position of sigrificant influence over EnCharis Community Housing and
“Services {RCHS). The factors leading to this determination are as follows:

i. . The District’s representation on the Board of Directors of BCHS, A
ii. The District provides a credit facility to ECHS to assist in the temporary settlement of life
leases (Note 16), ‘

fROLFE, BENSON LLP
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA,
THE ALBERTA - BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT

Noties io the Finauncial Statemenis
For the Year Bnded 31 January 2010

i5.

16.

17.

Related Party Transactions - continued
) EnCharis Community Housing and Services - continned

Hi. The significance of District’s mortgage loan investments in ECHS,

iv. The District’s ability to influence management decisions of BCHS,

v. The high degree of ecopomic dependence of ECHS on the District, and
vi.- The District’s guarantee (Note 17) of ECHS morigage loans payable,

The financial relationship the District has with ECHS, represented by mortgages receivable 0£$61,197,183
(2009 - $60,013919), is detailed in Note 5. During the year, the District recordad interest income in the
Church Extension Fund on these mortgages of $3,345,011 (2009 - $3,075,0854).

In addition, on 1 August 2008, the District acquired title fo the Strathmors, Alberta property and
extinguished the related morigage loan receivable in Church Extension fimd, This transaction has been
measured in these financial statements at the carrying amount of the mortgage [can receivable previously
recognized in the accounts of the District at the date of title transfer, which amounts to $5,891,315. The
Strathmore land and bmldmgs have been recorded as other properties in the Plant Fund as of 31 January
2010. : , -

EnCharis Community Housing and Services was incorporated on 9 November 2005 under the Companies
Actof Alberta and commenced operations on t February 2006. The Company is a now-profit organization
that provides residential services to persons above the age of 55. Through the use of its Manor property,
ECHS provides rental accommodation to sentors. Through the use of the Vllage properties, ECHS
provides residential units under life leases to seniors. :

" ECHS is a non-profit organization as defined under paragraph 149(1}(t) of the Income Tax Act and

therefore is not subject fo income taxes.

Contingent Liability

The District has entered intc an agreement with its debtor, EnCharis Community Housing Services (ECHS)
{Note 13(b)), that it will provide a credit facility (Note 10) of up to $3,000,000 -0 assist financing in the
temporary settlement of any life leases held by ECHS. EBCHS is required to repay these funds to the
District upon the replacement of the life lease interest. As of 31 January 2019, the district had extended
$1,143,574 (2009 - $2,941,330) related to the ECHS life leases.

Guarantee

In the prior year, the District guaranteed a commercial mertgage Joan of up to $9,000,000 to ECHS (Note
12(b)). The District is liable to pay any balance owing on demand to the c:ommercnal fender in the case
of default by ECHS.
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Building sold for $5.85 million 0

Thursday, August 16, 2007 10:00:00 MDT AM

7 the
ovince of British Columbia

Strathmore comrnercial realtor Bill Andrews was all smiles last week after he brought to a
successful conclusion the acquisition of the former Covenant Bible College campus by another
Christian group, EnCharis, for the sum of § 5.85 million.

We lost CBC, we got back EnCharis and its a positive development for the community, Andrews
<said of this deal that will be followed by news services being offered for the benefit of local
residents.

'The EnCharis group has links to the Prince of Peace Lutheran Church, 2a member of the Lutheran
Church Missouri Synod. Founder and executive director of EnCharis Rev. Steve Grande said his
group is already very active in providing affordable housing and specialized transportation to
seniors. Encharis will consult with the local community starting in September to see how it can
help address various needs including such services as daycare, in addition to an affordable
housing proposal of 50 apartments.

Grande said his organization will host next month, at its new Strathmore location, a meeting of
local organizations that are actively engaged in commumity service to discuss various options. He
said EnCharis wants to offer services in light of those discussions.

Grande also announced that the headquarters of his organization will be transferred from the east
side of Calgary, ‘where it is currently located, to Strathmore. The staff of 17, he said, will have
also to be increased.

For his part, Covenant Bible College President Paul Lessard expressed sadness at having had to
close the Strathmore campus, but said he and his governing board were happy that another
Christian organization has stepped in and will propose new services to the community.

He added the closing down of the campus does not affect the Evangelical Covenant Church
which continues its mission as usual through a total of 23 churches in Canada, including the local
Hope Covenant Church.

EnCharis took possession of the former CBC property on August 8 and brought a group of staff
members to town for a first on site inspection the next day, in anticipation of the transfer of the
main office from Calgary from next month.



No rezoning will be needed as the objectives of the new owners are in line with the current P'1
status of the zone where the property is located.

Its definitely exciting and challenging, Grande said during an interview at the Strathmore
Standard the day after the deal was conchuded.

Its been incredibly exciting for us because our organization really focuses in or. seniors housiﬂg
in smaller communities, so we don’t particularly want to go in the City of Calgary. It makes
more sense for us to have our head office in a smaller community rather than ir. a city, said
Grande.

A mayor driving force behind the EnCharis bid for the CBC property was an ac xte lack of space
at the Prince of Peace campus on Calgary’s east side.

So, with five buildings totalling 52,544 sq. ft. inclusive 0f 25,000 sq. fi. of office space in the
main building, all set on 4.85 acres, the Strathmore property looked more attractive than any
other EnCharis could have obtained in Calgary. The four other buildings were dormitories
containing single and double rooms where a total of 22 students could be accommodated per
building.

Each dorm has plenty of space to lounge about, a games room, laundry room and kitchen. All
five buildings are connected for convenience during winter months. The admin.stration or main
building had classrooms, a library, cafeteria and a full size gym with hardwood floor.

Grande said there’s little modifications envisaged by EnCharis in the main building where his
staff will relocate and some services set up for the community.,

The asking price was $ 6.3 million and the organization, according to Lessard, mmade the least
complicated offer for the property that is, he added, no strings attached, we’ll jast pay for it.

He added, “Their offer was a good offer, was a fair offer.”

Lessard was also full of praise for Andrews for his crucial role in the negotiations. Bill did a
great job for us.

Before EnCharis came into the picture, there had been other interested parties. We talked to
about 10 different groups, Andrews said in a separate interview.

We’re running out of space (in Calgary) and we are just building a new Alzheiraer’s facility at
Prince of Peace and a new assisted living facility. Because of the growth of our organization,
we’re running out of space, Grande said.

We originally planned our'(new) building on site at the Prince of Peace campus, but changed our
building plans. We then started looking into Calgary and couldn’t find the 7,000 sq. ft. Then the
CBC was up for sale. We looked at it and put in an offer.




 What they looked at was what Grande describes as a épeciah‘y building, with over three tilﬁes”the-
office space they needed, a gym and four buildings formerly used as dormitoriss.

The actual bid was made by EnCharis Community Housing and Services (ECHS), an arm of the
EnCharis group which currently owns and operates the Prince of Peace Village: and the Prince of
Peace Manor in the Calgary location.

Another member of the group is Shepherd’s Village Ministries Ltd., which owzs and operates
another facility, The Shepherd’s Village in Valleyview, Alberta.

He also spoke of his organization’s involvement with the Calgary Regional Partnership, an
association of Calgary and surrounding municipalities, including Strathmore.

We’re looking after the project with the CRP for specialized transportation, and so, we will be
hiring somebody on for that. That’s part of our work as well, Grande said.

With all the space they now have in their new Strathmore complex, Grande said a Christian
daycare and other community services, including getting the Food Bank on bosrd, are in the
pipeline as regards the main building. There’s a room that’s beautifully set up for daycare,
Grande said.

An architect has already visited the dormitories and given the nod to a 50-apartment affordable
housing project down the road, he added. Grande will provide also for a Lutheran congregation
site on the property, with its services to the community. The project already interests the Calgary
congregation’s leadership, he stated.

The affordable housing project, though, needs the approval of the Town through which any
government funding has to be channelled, Grande pointed out. For that purpose, he has already
met Justin Rebello, chair of the Town’s Affordable Housing Committee. He said that the
investment will be approximately a further $2.8 million into the Strathmore dormitories.

1 know the committee is looking at another option and if that is the best option, then that’s
fantastic. Then we will have to figure out another plan for those dormitories. We do have some
ideas and options that we could pursue with that, Grande said.

Grande also revealed that his organization is looking at development in five more communities.

He said that people in small communities want to age in place, they don’t want to move into the
city and the options we are bringing allow them to stay in their own communities, with their
grand-kids, their friends they have known for a lifetime.

He explained that where the regional public health authorities cannot provide facilities within a
small commumity, EnCharis can look at using its transportation expertise acquired with the
Calgary Regional Transportation Services Society (CARTSS), an organization he has formed to
provide group transportation for those requiring accessible transportation solutions in the Greater
Calgary area.?



" EnCharis was formed two and a half years ago by Grande. Since then, it bas purchased Prince of
Peace, the church and school excepted. The Prince of Peace Lutheran Church has been in
ministry since QOctober 1, 1961.

@ 2015 Strathmore Standard. All rights reserved. The Strathmore Standard are members of
Canoe Sun Media Commnunity Newspapers.
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Fatrview looking at seniors housing AR

Randall Scott Kellen

By Daniele Alcinii, Fairview Post
Wednesday, November 13, 2013 11:31:04 MST AM

The Shepherd's Village Senlors Housing Community in Valleyview, Alta. (Town of Valleyview's government website)

The Town of Fairview recenfly heard one of an estimated three propesals that could bring the town closer o the development
of seniors community housing.

During its Tuesday, November 5 meeting, a proposal siifl in its discussion phase was put forth by Shepherd’s Village
Ministries site manager Gerry Steinke in which suggestions that the Town of Fairview was in the best posifon possible 1o
mave forth on bullding a complex that would affordabiy house those 55 years of age and over.

It appears as if there Is some need for 55-plus housing in Fairview,” Sleinke said in regards to the interest his organization
has within the town's limits. "l does seem that this cammunity is needing some sort of housing as people are taking a look at
coming off of their farms and oul of their mere independent homes in the community, and looking at something that isn’t so
institutionalized.”

Currently, the Shepherd's Village Ministries owns and operates a 12-acre sife in Valleyview, Alia. with 43 independent units
currently built on site available in four different bungalow floor plans with units ranging in size from 900 to 1,100 square feet.
Additionally, the organizatian is associated with an additional projectlocated outside of Calgary, Alta, within the Prince of
Peace, housing 174 units with attached garages, a large manor with an esfimated 250 units of assisted living, two units for
dementia care, one school, and one church.

“Our site in Valleyview is a long ways from Calgary. and itwould make a lot of sense for us to get another site in the Peace
area. We could begin to build something we would cal! ‘clusier communities’ where we would have a grouping of these
kinds of communities within the Peace Country.”

The proposed complex, cuTenty dubbed the Fairview Aging-in-Place Complex, will showcase a wrap around U-shaped
village with a “very tightly knif” community of fourplexes, as well as a community center that could potentially double as a
worship centre, according 1o Steinke.

“We are seting aside land for the concept of an assisted living wing,” Steinke fold those in aftendance during last Tuasday's
meeting, noting Fairview’s current assisted living facilities. “Perhaps as time goes cn, there may be a need io look at
supportive living level 3 or supportive living levet 4 units {dementia care units).

“Perhaps at some pointthere will be a need to have more of a specialized dementia care facility that could be placed in this
community. That of course requires significant provinciat government funding.”



“It's when communily baszd organizations begin to work together that these things can happen. No developer comes in and
develops 55-plus housing in small towns, it doesn’t happen because they’re not going to take that risk. When we start fo work
togetherfrom a community base, we're going to share that risk and make ithappen in a more logical way " Steinke said in his
address, while indicating that now is the fime for the community to come forward and provide conditiornal supportin principle
for the project.

That community support, he says, is valuable in allowing Steinke to move forward i seeking loans frem the Canada
Marigage and Housing Corparation, as well as any available grants from the provincial government for community initiatives.

While neither the Town of Fairview nor Shepherd’s Village Ministrias have presently conducted a needs dassessment, CAQ of
Fairview Larry Davidson Fas put the estimated costin the $10,000 to $20,000 range.

“Quite honestly, if you don’t have a needs assessment the chances of getting government monies, provincial or federal, |
would say is almost nonexistent,” Davidson told couricil members.

‘I wotld suggest maybe that that's something councit would wish to fund ourselves. lfwe do just that it becomas available -
its a public document - and we have some coniral over the terms of reference and anything else that's an issue.”

Asked Row this development for the aging paputation could be jusiified as something Fairview particularly needs, Davidson
toyed with the idea that g community of this nature could be part of the town’s economic development strategy lo stimulate
the focal economy. Citing Camrose as a prime example, Davidson explained that the onece dwindiing Albertan city targeted
the seniors market, buitding a number of private manors similar to Fairview’s own Harvest Lodge facility. In tum., those

the [ast 30 years,

“We want to keep the young people in our community, we've heard that loud and clear and | support that, butthere's also an
oppaortunity here [...] When we bring in the services, our goalwould be to develop and [bring in that workforee], That's whare
[ see the opportunity to partner to reduce their costs, but as far as paying for their internal gevelopment casts I'm not
recommending that to council,

“We can tender projects together so we can work together and things tike that, bui we don't have encugh reserves to cover
their costs for any foreseeahie future atthe jeopardy of cur own work and hope that we recoup itright back when they make

)

The Shepherd's Village Ministries is a not for profit corporation dedicated to providing caring, independent, and affordable
housing 16 55-plus residents within a Christian environment. The Shepherd’s Village Ministries board of directors is
comprised members and Jeaders of the Lutheran Church Canada, a church body 0f 65,000 members with approximately 300
churches across Canada.

Additionally, Shepherd’s Vi lage Ministries are supervised by EnCharis, a private senior citizens service organization, and
oversees both projects in Valleyview and Prince of Peace in Calgary, Alta,

While acknowledging that while Shepherd's Village Ministries is “absolutely” a faith-based corporation, Stelnke says thatitig
notthe goal the Lutheran e!ganization fo proselytize, but to rather assist those 55 years of age and over by allowing them to
five within a compact and comfortable cotnmunity. Should members ofthat community require assistance In ministry areas,
Steinke says only then wil his organization step in to lend an ear.

Discusslons are on going.

daniete.alcinii@sunmedia.ca
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOKT

To the Members of The Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta-British Columbia District

Report on the Norn-vonsolidated Financial Statensents

We have mdied the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements of The Lutheran Church - Crnada, ‘Ihe Albarte-British Columibia
District, which comprise the non-consolidated stalement of financial position as at January 31, 201 I, and the statement of operations, changes in
fund belences and cash flows for the year ther ended, and a surmmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Non-consolidated Finoncial Statements

Menagement is responsible for the preparation end fair presentation of these non—consolicated financial siatements in accordance with Canadlan
gonerally secepted accounting pritciples, and for such intemal conirol as management determineg is necessary fo enable the preparation of nos-
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error,

Auditor's Responsibitity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these non-consolidated financial statements based on our andit. We condueted our audit i
accordance with Canadian gencrally accepted anditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-consolidated financial statements are free from materisl
misstatement.

An audit fnvelves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the amaounts and disclosures in the non-consofidated financial
statements, The procedures selected dopond on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstgtement of the non-
cansolidated fiuancial statements, whether dus to fraud or erraz. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers interngl confra] relevant
to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the non-consolidated financial steternents in order to desipn adit procedurss that are
appropriate in the circumstences, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal contral, An audit
alsv includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of accounting estmates meds by management, as
woll as evalunting the oversll presentation of the non-consolidated financial staiements,

We belleve that the sudit evidence we have obtained ls sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our guatificd audit opinion.

Basis for Qualiffed Opinion

The District's partfolio investments are carried on the non-consolidated statement of financial position at $17,497,781 (2010 - $13,228,332}.
Management has not stated the portfolio invasiments at marker value which constitutes a departure from Canagian generally acceptad ACCOLATNG
principles. Had the portfolic investments been stated &t market velug, an increase in yelue of $622,721 {2010 - decrease in value of $1,810,479)
would have been required.  Accordingly, unrealized pains and fund balances would have increased by $622,721 (2010 - decreased by
$1L810,479).

The District changed it accounting policy during the year to record muortization on theiy property, plaot and equipment. The change was made
prospectively rather than retroactively which constitutes a dopariure from Cansdian generally accepted acconnting principles. Had the
correstion been made retroactively, expenses and opening fund balanoes would have been reduced by $51L 116,

Chealified Opinfon

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matfer deseribed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraphs, the non-consolidated financial
statemnents present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta-British Columbia District
as at January 31, 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the yeaz then ended in aceordance with Canadian genorally accepted
ageounting principles,

Emphasis of Maiter A

We draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements; Summery of Significant Accounting Policles, Financial Instruments, Credit Risk and
Measurement Uncertainty whick describes the valuation of the loans to EnCharie Communily and Housing Services, Our opinion is not
qualified n respect of this matter,

Other Matter

The prior year financial statements were audited by a predecossor auditor who issued & qualified opinjon on April 29, 2010. Certain of the
comparative figures have beex restated to conform to the current presentation,

/'%JM:I—K pf,\*\—isau }Jp&s@@m-au

Chartered Aceountants
June 17, 2011
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITI SH C(}LU\{BIA D¥STRICT

Non-Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ™ 7
Year Ended January 31, 2011

NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED 10 THE
FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES:

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from congregations and donaors
Cash paid 1o Symod, suppliers and employees
Interest received
Interest paid

INVESTING ACTIVETIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Issuance of loans receivable - net
Met proceeds from (additions o) properties held for sale
Proceeds (purchases) of invesrments - net

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Investor obligations received - net
Mortgage proceeds

{DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH FLOW
CASH - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH - END OF YEAR (Notc 5)

2011 2010
3LI58,0905  § 2,504,585
(1.326,200) (2,847,713)
3,438,744 3,684,718
(4,409,418) (4,840,925)
{1,141,783) {1,499,335)

(28,741) (11,278)
{4,120,449) 1948,490)
227,056 (756,675)
932,759 (532,559)
{2,989,381) (2,249,002)
2,715,826 4,691,062
- 1,369,237
2,715,826 6,060,299
(1,415,338) 2,311,962
2,519,159 204,697
1,103,821 S 2,516,659

Ponek Pelimasn sl

Ba

e

L]




THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Cossolidated Financial Statements.
Year Ended January 31, 2011

1. ORGANIZATION

The Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberta - British Columbix Distrier (the "Distriet") was incorperated by an
Act of the Alberta Provincial Legislature on March 24, 1944 and in British Celumbia on June 19, June 1935
pursuant to the provisions of the Society Act of Brifish Columnbia.  As a registered charity, the District is
exempt from tax under its income under the Income Tax Act (Canada) provided it meintains its registration,

The Mission Statement of the District is:

1, To support public worship, and to unife the various congregations of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in
the Provinces of Alberia and British Columbia, who as congragations and as individual members of such
congregations accept, and remain true to, the canonical books of the Old and New Testaments as the
sole and exclusive rule of Christian doctrine and practice, snd acknowledgs as a tue exhibit of sound
Christian doctrine the Book of Concord;

2. To promote the efficiency and extend the influence of the said The Lutheran Church - Canada;

3. Te hold, vwn, manage, control, possess, and receive directly and indirectly, by grant, gift, purchase,
donation, devise or bequest, real, personal and mixed property of every name, naiure, and description
whatsoever and dispose of the same;

4, To invest monies and other personal property, with or without interest, in such 2 manner as the directors
of the said corporation may elect or see fit 50 to do, subject to the action of the corporation, with or
without security, for religious purposes;

5. To promote efficiency, co-operate i ecrlesiastical work in the extension of religion, by educational,
charitable and missionary work;

6. To help establish and maintain parochial schools, colleges, seminaries and other institutions of leaning;
7. To properly educate and prepare persons for the ministry and for teaching in parochizl schools; and

8. To aid in disseminating the kmowledge of the Gospel throughout the world.

2. FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING FRAMEWORKS

The Canadian nstitute of Chartered Accountants Issued Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit Organizations
which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after Ianuary 1, 2012, The Disirict will also apply the
standdards for private enterprises, where standards addressing their unique transactions and cireumstances do not
exist. The District is currently evaluating the effect of adopting these standards, which it expscts to do in fiscal
year 2012,

3, CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

Duripg the year, the District bepan o wuortize its building and equipment. Previously, the building and
equipment Were capitalized but no amortization had been caleulated. Equipment was previously written off
after seven years. The building is amortized straight line over 40 years and the equipment {5 amortized on a
declining basis of 20% per year. This change in accounting policy was applied prospectively rather than
retroactively which is a departurs from Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,

Pranesh Arboonn Winkes devmsmy




THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANABA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes fo Non-Consolidated Financial-Statements - -
Year Ended Janoary 31, 2011

4. SUMWMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and include the following significant accounting policies:

Fund accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the
District, the accounts of the District foliow the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions.
Accordingly, resourses are classified for accounting and financial purposes info finds. These finds are held in
accordance with either the objectives specified by the donors or with directives issued by the Board of
Directors, To meet these objectives of financial reporting and stewardship over assets, certaln imerfimd
transfers are necessary to ensure the appropriate allocation of assets and lHabiliies to the respective Funds.
Tranisfers between the furrds are made when appropriate, as authorized by the Board. These inferfund transfors
are recorded in the staternent of changes in fund balances,

Gains and iosses arising from the sale or other disposition of assets are accounied for in the fund which owned
such agsets. Ordinary income derived from investments is accounted for in the imd owning such assets, All
other resources received are accounted for as revenue of the current fund.

‘The separate funds are maintained for the following purposes:

Current Fund

The Curreni Fund is used to aceount for the budgeled operations of the District. A portion of the administrative
expenses are allocated to the Church Extension Fund based on a consistent percentage of specified expenses.

Restricted Fund

The Restricled Fund is used to record funds received by the District which are resiricted, either by the donating
party or the Board of Direciors, for the specific ministry projects and the disbursements of these funds for the
specified purpose.

Church Bxtension Pund ("CEF")

The Church Extension Fund is used 1o record funds received from mermbers at reasonable rates of interest for
the purpose of providing financial support to congregations for capital purpeses.

Plant Fund

The Plant Fund is used to record funds employed for capital purposes and to reflect investment in District
owned property. Additions are recorded at cost or, if donated, af the fair market value on the dute of the receipt
of the gift. Equipment purchased by the Current and Clwreh Extension Funds are recorded as a transfer 1o the
Plaut Fund.

In the case of raw land acquired for future nse (insluded in properties held for sale), interest on funds borrowed
is capitalized (subject to a fair market value test) in the determination of the cost of the properties. All other
interest expense iz charged to operations.

Sepauek Brizsny Walum Devsrey



THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consclidated Financial Statements
Year Ended Jamuary 31, 2031

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POQLICIES (coniinued)

Financial insiruments

The District applies Sections 3855 "Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement," and 3861
"Financiel Instruments - Disclosure and Presentaion” of Canadian Generally Accepted Principies.  As
pexmitted by these rules, the District has elected not to adopt the standards 3862 and 3863 and confinues to
apply Section 3861 on disclosure and presentation of finencial instuments,

Financial instruments include cash and tenn deposlt, accrued interest, accounis receivable, portfolio
investments, land proceeds assignment, loans and moortgages receivable, accounts payable and acerued
liabilities, acorued interest payable, deposits payable, investor obligations and mortgape lean, The carrying
valie of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate fair value except as otherwise disclosed.

Financial assets and Habilities are classified as either held-for-trading, available-for-sale, loans and receivables,
investments held-to-meturity and other financial liabilities, Financis] assets classified as held-for-trading and
available-for-sale are required to be measured on the statement of financial position at fair vaiue, The District
measures one such financial instruments at cosz. Loans and receivables, investments hald-to-maturity and other
fimancial liabilities are measured on the statement of financial position at amortized cost,

Thé Distriet has desipnated cash and portfolio investments s held-for-trading. The District elassified accrued
intexest on investor obligations, accrued interest, accounts receivable, mortgages and loans receivable and land
procesds assignment as loans and receivables and its ancounts payable and accrued liabilities, deposits payable,
mortgage loan and investor obligations as other financial Habilities,

Cash is recorded at fair value, Portfolio investments are recorded at cost and fair value is disclosed i Note 6,
The fair value of the land proceeds assipmment and loans and morigages receivable conld not practically be
determined because they have no fixed repayment terms and lack an available trading market. The fair vatus of
investor obligations can not be determined because the obligations have no fixed repayment terms, As such,

the fair value and the exposure to related risk cannot be detormined with any degree of certainty, and the
amounts aré therefore reported at their carrying value,

Investments in porifolia invesimenis are subject to market risk. The District managss market risk by investing
in Canadian and foreign equities, fixed mcome mstraments and short-term investments that meet specific
investment criterin established and approved by the District's Directors and designed to adequately diversify the
District’s investments to reduce exposure to market risk.

The District iz subject to Interest rate pricing risk to the extent that the their mvestments contain fixed rats
government and corporate bonds. The District has not entered iuto any derivative agreements o mitigate these
risks.

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The District is
expased to credit risk on the loans and morigages receivable, The District mitigates its risk by securing the
loans with the underlying properties however at this time, they have unsecured loans within the range of $19M
and $23M from EnCharis Community and Housing Services ("BCHS"). 24% (2010 - 93%) of the balence of
loars and motigages receiveble are from BCHS. The Distriet is alse exposed to credit risk through its
investments in corporate honds. The District mitigates the risk of its investment in bords through the overall
quality and mix of its bond portfolie.

Peawnch Azhioemn Blstecn Bovnem



THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2011

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (coniinmed)
Controlled entity
Lutheran Church - Canada, The Alberts - British Columbia District Investments Ltd. ("RB5P").

Or December 2, 1996, RRSP was incorporated under the Companies Act of Albertz as a trust agent and
investment manager of registered refirement savings plans and registered retirement income plans for
smppitants. The District has the same Board of Directors and management as RRSP and make all of the key
decisions for this entity. RRSP's financial stalements are noi consolidated in the Districi’s financial
statements, however summary information of RRSP is provided in Note 7.

Entity subject (o significant influence
Encheris Community Housing Services ("ECHS"):

FCES is a non-profit organization as defined wnder paragreph 149(1)(1) of the Income Tax Act (Canada)
and is therefore not subject to- income taxes. ECHS was incorporated on Nevember 9, 2005 under the
Corppanies Act of Alberta and commenced operations on Februery 1, 2006. The Comapany provides
residential services fo persons above the age of 55. Through the use of its properties, ECHS provides rental
accommodation, residential wnits under life leases and palliative care to seniors. Swmmary information of
ECHS is provided in Note 9.

The District s in a position of significant influence over BCHS dus fo the following factors:

i} The Disirict’s representation on the Board of Directors of ECHS;

iy The Tstrict provides a cred# facility (v ECHS fo assist in the temporary setilement of life eases
(Note 16);
#ii) The significance of District's mortgage loan investments in ECHS (Note 8};

#v) The high degree of economic dependence of ECHS on the District; and
¥} The District's gnarantee (Nate 15} of ECHS mortgage loans payable.

Revenue recogrittion

Restricted contributions related to general operations ate recognized as revenue of the Cerrent Fund in the year
in which the related expenses are incured. All other resiricted contributions are recognized s revenue of the
appropriate restricted fund.

Tinrestricted contributions are recognized as revenie of the Current Fund in the year received or receivable if
the amount o be received can be reasonably estimates and callecton is reasonably assured.

Contributions for endowment are recognized as revenue in the Restricted Fund,

Investment income earmed on restricted Fund rescurces is recognized as tevenue of the Restricted Fund,
Threstricted invesiment Income earned on Restricted Fund resources is recognized as revenus of the Current
TFund. Tnvestment income eamed on bullding campalgn resources iz recognized s revenue of Plant Fund.
Other investment income s recognized as revenue of the Church Extension Fund.

Seminar fees are recognized as revenne of the Restricted Fund when the seminarg are held.

fosenh s R ooy



THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended January 31, 2011

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptons that affect the reporfed amount of assets and
ligbilities, disclosure of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Such estimates sre periodically reviewed and any
adjusiments necessary are reported in eamnings in the period in which they become known, Actuzl results conld
differ from these estimates,

A key area of estimation relates to the valuation of the morigages and loans roceivable, specifically the loan to
ECHS. Sumumary fipancial information is included in Note 9, The loan is currently wndersecured by
approximately $19,000,000 to $23,000,000. The valuation of the joan is based on estimates of cash fiows
that extend into the distant foture beyond 30 years which may resull in a change in estimate. Management is
contemplating restructwing certain terms of the loan. As of the audit report date, the restruciuring had not been
finalized and approved by the Board of Directors.

Impaired foans and allowance for loan fmpairment

The Company reguletly assesses loan values for loan impairment. The carrying amount of these loans is
compared to the discounted future cash flows at the effective interest rate inherent in the leans. Where the
discounied future cash flows are less than the carrying value, a loan impairment is recorded to lower the
carrying value to the discountad future cash flow amount, Currently , no allowaice for loan impairment exists,

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreipn currencies are translated into Canadisn dollars at the
exchange rate in offect af the year end. Transactions in foreign cwrrencies are translated nto Canadian dollars
at the exchange rate in effoct at the date of the fransaction. Gains and losses arising from manslation of gssets
and lisbilities are included in camings for the year.

Capital management requirements

Capiial iz comprised_of the Distriet’s fund balances, mortgage loan and investor obligations. The District
manages ifs capital primarily through its investments and adheres to the guidelines of the Distriet's investment
pohcies. There have been ne changes to these guidelines during the year.

Cash and term deposits

The District’s policy is to disclose bank balances under cash and cash equivatents, including bank overdrafts
with balances that fluctnate frequently from being positive to overdrawn and temporary investments with o
maturity period of three months or less from the daie of acquisition. Term doposits and cash that the entity
cannot use for current transactions because they are wsed for portfolio investments are alzo excluded from cash
and cash equivalents.

Fouzeel Nedssn Salam Devmnsy




THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMRTA DISTRICT
Notes ta Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended Japuary 31, 2011

& CASH AND TERM DEPOSIT

2011 2010
Cash (bank indebtedness) § 1303821 % (483,341
Term deposit with maturity of 90 days or less - 3,000,000

&

1,103,821 S§ 2516659

The Owverdraft lending facility has a limit of $8,000,000 payable on demand with interest at the Bank of
Montreal's prime lending rate plus 0.75% (2010 - 0.25%), The amount which may be borrowed under the
arrangement is the lesser of the Hmit of the Overdraft Lending Facility and the discounted value of the
Investrnents administered by entities of the Bank of Montresl and assigned to the bank as security for the credit
facility. Security for the Lending Facility is a General Security Apreement being a floating charge over alf of
the assets of the District.

Advences may be converted to a Fixed Rate Operating Loan to a maximum of $3,600,080.
Additional components of the borrowing facility is as follows:

i) A $1,000,000 (2010 - $3,000,000) Life Lease contingensy Hne of credit. The bank andertakes to
loan meortgage funds to potential approved porchasers of Life Lease residences in senjors' housing
projects.  If any of the individual morigagors default on their mortgage obligation to the bank, the
District is obligated fo pay the outstanding balance to the bank and recover thut amount from the
subsequent resale of the Life Leased residence. The life leases are included in the finencial
statements of the District's debtor, EnCharis Community Housing Services.

iy A $150,000 credit facility for the corperate mastercard.

&  PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS

2011 2010
Cash 3 1,573,085 % 312,091
Rpsiricted cash 188,201 -
Bonds, equities and funds {marker valve $710,359,296, 2010 -
$16,705,762) 15,736,525 17,916,241

3 17,497,781  § 18,228,332

The District had unrealized gains of $622,771 (2010 - unrealized losses of $1,810,479). These have act been
included in the determination of excess revenues over expenditizes in the vear.

Restricted cash is for fiuture capital commitments required under two investment funds.

Ponmaeh Rebosen Miatean Meomng



THE FUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Non~-Consolidated Financial Statemenis -
Year Ended Jannary 31, 2011

7. LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA - BRITISII COLUMBIA DISTRICT
INVESTMENTS LTD.

A summary of RRSP's financial stateraents at January 31,2011 is as follows:

2011 2010
Sfatement of Financial Position
Cash F 1203485 % 380,602
Marketable securities and accroed inferest 7,255,973 4,273,555
Loans receivable 20,654,505 20,845,797
29,113,963 25,699.954
Accounts payable 7,538 -
Inferest payable 121,444 108,308
Advance from District T, 478 81,677
Annuitanis’ obligations 28,912,503 25,309,960
3 29113963 § 25699954
2011 2010
Statement of Reyenues over expenses
Eevenue $ 1,450,041 $ 1,520,402
Expense (1,456,041 (1,520,402)
5 - § -
2911 2010
Statement of eash flows
Cash flow from operating activities 5 141,108 % 231,237
Cash flow from investing activitics {3,081,118) (1,711,691}
Cash flow from financing activities 3,326,214 2,123,579

% 386207 % 643,125

During the year, the Distict received management fees of $67,121 (2010 - $112,920) from RRSP. These
transactions were in the normal course of operstions and were measured at the cxchange value which
represented the amount of consideration established and agreed to by the parties. The amonnts due from RRSP
ars suhject fo normal trade terms and as such have been inchuded in accounts receivable,

The District holds 2 mortgage loan payable to RRSP in the amount of $6,011,283 (2010 - §5,955,625). The
mortgage payable to RRSP is securad by property in Strathmore, Alberts, bears interest &t 6.50% per amiuum,
with, interest payments due monthly on the first day of each month, During the year, the District recorded
interest expense on this mortgage of $384,012 (2010 - $379,412).
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THE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISE COLUMBIA DISTRICT
" Notes to Non-Censolidated Financial Statements h T
Year Ended Jannary 31, 2011

8. LOANS AND MORTGAGES RECEIVABLE

2011 2010

Restricted Fund

Interest-free unsecured automobile loans made to pastors of the
District from funds deposited interest-free by other pasters of the
District.
g 42,488 % 44,335
Church Extension Fund

Mortgage receivable from ECHS, bearing interest at 5.5% to 7.0%
payable monthly on the first day of each month and with principal
repayments of $2,000,000 duwe annnally on February 1. The
morigage is partially secured by Prince of Peace Village and
Manor properties and fhe Chestermere property. As at January
31, 2011, interest of ¥1,936,000 (2010 - $1,283,870) was in
arrears on the ECHS loan, 4,289,957 3,491,020

Maturity dates of loans receivable vary with interest rates ranging
from 6.0% to 7.0% per amm and are secured by the individual
properties to which they relate. £4,520,542 61,197,183

$ HBE52087 & 64,732,538

During the year, the District recorded interest income in the amotmt of $3,707,000 (2010 - $3,345,000) on the
ECHS mortgages.

Prmsl Melvow el Uome



THE FUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, THE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
" NMotes to Non-Consolidated Financial Sfatements
YVear Earded January 31, 2611

9. ERNCHARIS COMMUMNITY HOUSING AND SERVICES

A summary of BCHS's unaudited financial statements at March 31, 2010 is 2 follows:

2010

Statement of Financial Position
Cash 5 244,951
Accounts receivable 1,419,727
Property, plant aod equipment 94,273,772
Due from Encharis Group 16,984,056
Accounts payable and other 3 508,877
Designated funds 33,570,313
Long-term debt £9,732,586
Net assets {11,287 260)

$ 112,924,516
Statement of Operations
Revenne &  4,87523%
Expenses 6,303,446
Deficit h 1,428,208

10. LAND PROCEEDS ASSIGNMENT

[n 2009, the District sntered into an agreement whersby 36,000,000 of mortgage loans receivable were
sxchanged by contract for the rights to proceeds from future land sales made by the former morigage debtor.
The sssignment of land proceeds receivable has been recorded at the net book value of the mortgage ioan
receivable extinguished in the Plant Fund, Under this agreement, the District is entitled to recelve any proceeds
from the land sale in excess of the mortgage loan receivable extinguished but will have no recourse if the
eventual proceeds received are not sufficjent to discharge the receivable in full. The timing of the related land
sale is unkmown and because of this, the eventual proceeds are indeterminable, It is management's epinion that
the proceeds received from the eventnal land sale will be sufficient to discharge the assignment of the land
proceeds receivable as recorded in the financial statements. ’

11, DEFERRED LOAR
2011 2010

Deferred loan to Concordia Lutheran Church 3 151,193 § 251,144

In 1996, the District entered jmo o Mission Subsidy and Loan Repayment Agreement with Concordia Lutheran
Chureh (*Concordia™). Under the terms of the agreement, $500,000 was advimoed to Concordia. On each of
Fapuary 2002, 2008, 2008 and 2011, Concordia assumed repayment of inferest and principal on 100,060 of
fhe loan, The remaining $100,000, plus sccrued interest, will tramsfer to Concordia on Janwary 1, 2014 and as
such, the amount above reflects the portion of the lean obligation not yet assumed by Concordia.

Fousnsh Aehiean Hdlesn Gaveney



THEE LUTHERAN CHURCH - CANADA, TEE ALBERTA-BRITISH COLUMBIA DISTRICT
Notes to Nor-Consolidated Financial Statements :
Year Bnded Jannary 31, 2011

12, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2011 2010

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amoriization vaine value
Building 5 833,892 % 471,513 § 362,379 & 804,823
Equipment 120,100 75,175 44,015 118,427

5 953,992 3 545,688 & 407,304 & 925,250

13, PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale include assefs that the Distriet took over frem congregations that were unable to
continue with the loan arrengements. The Plant Fund fook possession of those properties and {he
corresponding loans to CEF at 7.00%. Interest in the amount of $2,043,507 (2010 - $1,143,207) is owed to
CEF from the Plant Fund on these properties. The Plant Fund will repay the CEF Fund upon the uitimate
disposal of these properties.

14, INTERFUND LOANS

a) Loans

Funds Ioaved between the CEF and the Plant Fund acerue interest at 7.00% per annum undl the carrying value
of the property and accrusd interest are in combination equal to the market valie of the properfy. The amount
of interest charged during the year was $1,002,868 (2010 - §977,713).

b) Investments

The interfimd balaneces represent amounts the the Resiricted Fund has advanced to the CEF to be invested along
with furds invested by individual investors vielding interest from 2.25% to 7.00%.

15, INVESTOR OBLIGATIONS

2011 2010
Notes payable to investors dus on demand, hearing interest from
1,75% to 5.5% & 96,504,246 % 93,760,540
Balances payable to investers, due on demand, without interest 259680 287,560

§ 94,763,926 & 94048100

16, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has enfered into an agreement with its debtor, EnCharis Conmumity Housing Services (ECHS),
that it will provide & eredit facility of up to $1,000,000 (2010 - $3,000,000} to assist financing in the temporazy
settlement of any life leases held by ECHS. ECHS is requived fo repay the funds to the District upon the
replacement of the lifs lease interest. As af January 31, 2011, The District had guatsnteed $606,45% (2010 -
$1,143,574) related to ECHS life leases.

The District guaranteed a commercial loan of up to $5,000,000 to ECHS, The District is lable to pay any
balance owing on demand to the commercial lender in the case of default by ECHS.

Pemany Drbmsss Niausn Bovnm



This is EXAIRIT 2 1r referred
{o m the Atfidavit of
Randali Scott Kelien

Encharis Management and Support Services

Financial Statements
For the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

Contents

Independent Auditor's Report . 2-3
Financial Statements

Statement of Financial Position 4

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 5

Statement of Changes in Net Liabilities &

Statement of Cash Flows 7

Notes to the Financial Statements 8-17

Schedule of Expenses 18




TRl 4 268 5608
ax; 403 233 7333
wevw, biio oy

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Encharis Hanagement and Support Services

We have audited the accompanying ftnancial statements of Fncharis Management and Support. Services,
which comprise the statements of financiat position as at March 31 » 2013, March 31, 2012 and April 1, 2011,
and the statements of revenues and expenditures, changss in net \fabilities and cash flows for the years
ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2042, and = surmmary of significant accounting policles and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial ttatements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not<for-profit orgarizations, and for such intersal
cantrol as management deternmnes is necassary to enable the preparation of financial staterr ents that are
free from material misstatenmnt, whether due to fraud or efror.

Auditor's Rasponsibilfity

Our responsibility s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. \We conducted
our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perforn the audit to obtain reasona sle assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounts and disc osares in the
finandial statements. The procedures selected depend cn the auditor's judgment, including tf e assessment
of the sisks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal contrel relevant to the entity's preparution and fair
presentation of the finandal statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinfon an the =ffectiveness of the entity's internal
control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonaplensss of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financiat statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i cur audits ts sufficient and approprizte to provide
a basis for our qualified audit opinjon. '

Basis for Qualified Opindon

Management. advised us that there are two entities with the same Boards of Difectors and are therefore
under commaon control. We have been unable to obtain satisfactory evidence as to the accuracy of amounts
requirad for the disclosures retated to entities under common control, as the entities have not been subject
to audits, There are no requirements for these entities to be audited, As 3 result, managemerit was unable
to present the balances as at March 31, 2013, March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2011 or the results of operations
for the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2042 with respect to the disclosure of eash controlled
organization’s financial information as required in accordance with Canadian accounting stanc ards for not-
for-profit organizations and these have consequently been excluded from the financisl statemerts.

N
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Qualified Opinioni

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Quaiified O sinion paragraph,
the financial statememts present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Encharis
Managernent and Support Services as at March 31, 2013, March 31, 2012 and April 1, 2014, nd the results of
its operations, changes in pet liabilities, and its cash flows for the years ended March 31, 2643 and March
31, 2012 in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Emphasis of Matter

in fortming our qualified opinfon on the financial statements, we draw attention 1o Note 2 in the firancial
statements which indicates that the organization has a $1,920,85% working capital deficit t March 31, 2013
(52,314,668 at March 31, 2012), recopgnized cumulative losses of $1,851,065 (2012 - $2,227,088) and is
dependent upon the support of Fncharts Community Housing Services ("ECHS}, a party related by virtue af
common control. These conditions along with other matters as set forth ia Note 2, indicate the existence of
meterial uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the eptity’s ability to comdnue as a gaing
CONCErn.

06 el

Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Alberta
December 9, 2013
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Encharis Management and Support Services
Statement. of Finarcial Position

March 31, March 31, Aprit 1,
2013 2012 2011
Assets
Current
Cash $ 469,570 § 284,415 5 1,850
Cash held by related party (Note 4) - - 133,305
Restricted cash {Note 5} ' 260,002 249,638 246,185
Accounts receiyable (Note 6) 146,092 84 430 34,309
Inventory 17,954 13,838 -
893,613 601,841 415,649
Restricted investment (Mote 7) 5,000 5,000 5,080
Property and equipment (Note 8) 64,794 82,530 79,654

$ 963,412 § 689 471 5 500,303

Liabilities and Net Liabilities

Current
Bank indebtedness $ - § -5 117,653
Accounts payable atd accrued liabilities (Note 6 &

Note 9) 641,940 523,265 459,285
Deferred revenue (Note 9) - 116,282 -
Due to related parties {Note 4) 1,898,699 2,025,378 1,995,723
Customer deposits 7,133 1,516 -
Security deposits payable (Note 5) 266,705 249,058 246,185

2,814,477 2,916,5(9 2,818,848
Unrestricted net liabilities {1,851,065) (2,227,088) {2,318,543)

S 963412 § 689,421 % 500,303

Commitments (Note 17)

Approved on behalf of the Board:

, Director

, Director .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Encharis Management and Support Services
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

For the Years Fnded March 31 2013 2012

Revenue
Alberta health services funding (Note 9) $ 4,992,047 § 4,192,722
Cormmunity centre rental and catering 54,474 49,600
Donations 5,608 13,769
Guest services 9,412 13,152
Recognition of deferred revenue (Mote 9) 91,086 45,718
Resident services 115,630 60,045
Suite rental 4,871,193 4,787,674

10,139,450 9,162,630

Expenditures
Administration {see schedule of expenses) 503,022 676,080
Advertising and promotion 1,297 3,923
Amortization 23,987 23,486
Bad debt recovery (14,820} {5,085}
(&> Building lease (Note 4) 1,253,640 1,253,640 (7

Cabte 43,876 40,401
Computers and software 54,624 50,431
Consulting fees 280,160 100,594
Contract staff 433,815 994,347
Food services (see schedule of expenses) 1,484,692 1,488,730
Health services (see schedule of expenses) 3,608,289 2,549,220
Housekeoping (see schedule of expenses) 416,313 417,172
insurance 91.245 72,667
interast and bank charges 3.594 3,920
Maintenance (see schedule of expenses) 446 345 390,588
Memberships and licenses 790 4,272
Office stationery and supplies i 17 340 17,815
Pastoral care 28 955 28,526
Professfonal fees 58.155 45,634
Property taxes 76 318 80,989
Recreatipnal therapy (see schedule of expenses) 276,851 219,248
Resident achivities 35 023 25,625
Telephone and internet 53,083 55,299
Utitities (Mote 4} 520,774 519,038
Vehicle 170 598
Workers compensation 30,889 64,271
D,763.427 9,071,225

Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year 5 376023 § 91,455
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The accompanying notes are an intsgral part of these finandal statemants. N
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Encharis Management and Support Services
Statement of Changes in Met Liabilities

March 31 . 2013 2012
Batance, beginning of year $(2,227,088) § (2,318,543)
Excess of revenue over expenditures 376,023 91,455
peficit, end of vear % (1,851,065) $ (2,227 088)
P )
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The accompanying notes are an intepral part of these financial statements.



Encharis Management and Suppert Services
Statemment of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended March 31 2013 2012

Cash from operating activities;

£xcess of revenue over expenditures for the year $ 376,023 5§ 91,455
Hern net involving cash:
Amortization 23,987 23,486

400,010 114,941

Changes in non-cash working capital balances

Accounts receivable {91,612} (28,171)
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities 105,202 63,981
Customer deposits - 4,607 2,526
Security deposits payable 17,647 2,873
Due to related parties {126,679) 52,235
Inventory (4,096} {13,858)
Deferred revenue {102,30%) 116,282

202,270 318,809

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (6,201) {26,413
Restricted cash . (10,914) {2,903)

{(17,115) _ (29,316)

Cash flows used in investing activities:

Advances to related parties - (22,580)

- (22,580)

Met increase in cash 185,155 266,913
Cash and eash equivalents, beginning of year 784,415 17,502
Cash.and cash equivalents, end of year § 469570 $ 284 415

The accompanying notes are an inkegral part of these financial statements.



Encharis Management and Support Services

Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

1. Sumrmary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Basis of Accounting

Encharis Management and Suppert Services, O/A Prince of
Peate Manor and Harbour (‘EMSS” - or the "Organization™)
was incorporated in 2005 as a not-for-prafit corporation
under the Societles Act of Alberta. The Qrganization is a
Registered Charity under section 149 of vhe Income Tax
Act.

The purpose of the Organization i to previde affordable
senfors  housing, regardless of faith or race, in an
envirenment which promotes health, weltness and an active
lifestyle for all its residents. EMSS continvously strives to be
the provider of choice for its residents and employer of
choice for jts staff. EMSS also provides subsidized housing
as prescribed under the Alberta Health Services Designated
Assisted Living Program which applies to cver 50% of the
total residents at the Prince of Peace Manor and Harbour.

EMSS provides integrated Supportive Living Services which
incorporates the following components:

i) The provision of Alberta Health Services Region
funded care for the assessed carz needs of all
residents in the facility. The Faciity must meet
Level 4 requirements in the tevels of Supportive
Living; and

it} The fundamentai goal of the Integrated Supportive
Living Service Model is to provide housing,
hospitality, care and care-related services in
accordance with the agreement with Alberta Health
Services.

The financial statements of the Organization have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian
accounting  standards for not-for-profit  organizations
("ASHPO"). The financial statements have, in managament's

>

opinion, been properly prepared wusing ca-eful judsment o

with reasonable limits of materiality and within the
frameworlc of the significant accounting policies. These are
the Organization's first fimancial statements prepared in
accordance with ASNPO. An explanation of how the
transition to ASNPO has affected the openirg statement of
financial position is describad in Note 3,

iy



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policias {continued)

Use of Estimates

Cash

Property and Equipment

The preparation of finandal statements in conformity with
Canadian ASNPO requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported in the Tinancial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuits could
differ from those estimates,

Accounts  specifically affecied by such estimates are
accounts receivable, property and equipment and accounts
payable and accrued tizbiljties,

By their nature, these estimates are subject to
measurement uncertainty and the effect cn the financial
statements of changes in such estimates in future periods
could be significant. Changes in estimates are recognized in
the peried of determination.

Cash consists of cash on hand and bardc balances finciuding
temporary overdrafts).

Property and equipment is recorded at the fower of cost less
accumulated  amortization or  net reitizable  valye,
Amorifzation is recorded using rates and ma=thods designed
to amortize the cost of the assets over their estimated
useful Bves, as follows:

Methnd  Rate

Furniture and fixtures Declining balance 20%
Computer equipment Declining balance 45%
Medical equipment Straight line 20%
Vehicles Straight line 0%

in the year of acquisition, half of the nomz| annual rate is
recorded for amaortization.

When an item of property and equipment ne longer has any
tong-term service potential to the organization, the excess
of its pet carrying amount over any residual value s
recognized as an expense in the statement of revenue and
expenditures, Write-downs are not reversed,



Encharis Management and Support Services
Motes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Poficies {continued)

tnventory inventory comprises food supplies. lnventory is stated at the
- tower of cost and net reabizable value, Cust is determined
on a weighted average Dbasis. Total inventory  expensed
during the year included in food sarvices (see schedule of
expenses) was $410,759 ($389,689).

Revenue Recoznition EMS5 follows the deferral method of accounting  for
contributions. Revenues are recognized when the amount is
estimable, collection is feasonably assured and when the
following criteria are met:

1} Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in
the period received or receivable if the amount to be
received can be reasonzbly estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

fi) Restricted contributions are deferred and recognized in
the period in which the related eXpenses are incurred.

#i} Contributions externally restricted for the purchase of
property and equipment are deferred and recognized on the
same basis as the amortization expense of the related asset.,

iv} Sulte rental revenue is recorded on an accrual basis when
earned and uvitimate collection js reasonably assurad,

v} Community centre rental and catering revenue, guest
services revenue and resident services revenue are
recognized when food and beverages and services have been
provided to the consumer and coliection is reasonably
assured.

vi} Donations are recognized upon receipt. Amounts pledged
as future contyibutions are not recognized urdess the amount
to be recelved can be reasonably estimated and ultimate
cottection is reasonably assured,

Contributed Materiats

and Services EMSS recognizes contributed materials and services only
when the fair value can be reascnably deterinined and when
the matertals and services are wsed in the normal cotrse of
operations and would otherwise have been purchased.



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2813 and March 31, 2012

1. Summéry of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Financial Instruments EM35's financial instruments consist of cash, cash held by

related party, restricted cash, accounts receivable,
restricted investment, bank indebtedness, accounts payable
and accrued Habitities, due to related rarties, customer
deposits and security  deposits payablz. Al financial
instruments are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, except for
equities guoted in an active market, which are requited to
be measured at fair value, and financial instruments which
are designated at faijr value.

Financial assets are tested for impairment when changes in
drcumstances indicate an asset could pe impaired.

Accounting For Eitities '
Under Commeon Centrot EMSS, EnCharis Community Housing and Services {("ECHS"}

and Shepherd's Village Ministries {"SWM"} ar= under common
cantrol.  Under ASNPQ  the Orwanization may either
consolidate these organizations or providz separate note
disclosure containing certain financial information about
these organizations, FMSS has nat corsolidated these
organizations and has not provided the required disclosure
as the entities have not been subject ta audits.

z.

Going Cancern

These financiat statements have been prepared on a guing concern basis that assumes the
reatization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities and commitments in the normal course
of operations. The Crganization has a working capital deficit of $1,920,859 (2072 -
$2,314,668) at March 31, 2013, which includes 91,898,699 (2012 - $1,941,827) payable to
ECHS, & party related by virtue of common control, and recognized cunudative losses of
51,851,065 (2012 - $2,227,088). The continuation of the Organization is dependent upon its
ability to secure funding from ECHS and Alberta Healtii Senvices. These matters indicate a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Organizetion's ability to
continue as a going contern. These financial statements do not reflect the adjustments that
would be necessary to the carrying amount and presentation of assets and liabilities if the
going concetn assumption were not appropriate and such adjustments may be: significant.

b



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

3.

First-time Adoption of Canadian ASNPD

Fffective Aprit 1, 2012, the Organization adopted the requirements of the new accounting
framework, Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO) or Part |]l
of the requirements of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Aceountants {C1CA) Handbook -
Accounting. These are the Organization’s first finandial statements prepared in accordance
with this framework and the transitional provisions of Section 1501, First-time Adoption have
been applied. Section 1501 requires retiospeciive application of the accounting standards
with certain elective exemptions and mandatory exceptions. The accounting policies set out
in Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies have been applied in preparing the
financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2013, the comparative information
presented in these financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 1012 and in the
preparation of an opening ASNPO statement of financial position at the date of transition of
Aprit 1, 2011,

The Organization issued financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 using
generally accepted accounting principles prescribed by the CICA Handbook - Accounting Part
¥ - Pre-changeover Accounting Standards. The adoption of ASNPO resulted in no adjustments
to the previously reported assets, liabilities, net Habilities, excess of revenue over expenses
and cash flows of the Organization.

The following exemption was used at the date of transition to Canadian accounting standards
for not-for-profit organizations:

Business combinations

The Organization elected not to apply Section 1582 - Business combinatiors refrospectively
to past business combinations prior to the date of transition.

12




Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

4,

Related Party Balances and Transactions

2613 2012

Due to Encharls Community Housing and Services {("ECHS"} - The

amount, due is unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no set

terms of repayment. The organization is related due to being

under cormman control. . 5 1,898,699 § ,941.877

Due to Shepherd's Yitlage Ministries Lid. {"SVM"} - The amount

due 75 unsecured, non-interest bearing and has no set terms of

repayment. The organization is related due to betng under

commorn control. - 83,551

$ 1,898,699 $ 2 025378

These fransactions are in the normal cotrse of operations and have been recorded at the
agreed to exchange amounts that have been negotiated between the parties.

Related party balances arose due to advances by ECHS and SYM to EMSS to cover operating
experiditures, and payments by ECHS on behalf of EMSS tn cover certain of EMsSs
expenditures.

Cash held by refated party consisted of a bank account held in the name of ECHS, utilived for
EMSS's operations, During 2012, funds in this account were transferred to an operating
account in the name of EMSS.

The Organization was involved in the following related party transactions with enfities under
common controf:

ECHS provides water and sewer services to EMSS. buring the year, ECHS charged EMSS
5225,301 (2012 - ¥223,301) for these services which is included in utilities expenses for the
year. This charge will be included as a fixed annual charge in an agreement to be drawn up
between ECHS and EMSS.

ECHS owns tand and the buitdings that £MSS is responsible for managing and from which EMSS
derives suite rental revenue and other related revenues. ECHS charged EMSS §1,235,640
{2012 - §1,235,640) in rent for the buildings. At year end $Nil (2012 - 552,235 of this amount
is included in due to related parties at year end,

At year end, ENSS had an outstanding balance owing to ECHS of $13,908 (2012 - SNil} for
reimbursément of expenses incurred.by ECHS on behalf of EMSS.



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

4,

Related Party Balances and Transactions {continued)

EMS5 made a repayment of $83,551 {2012 - SNil) Lo SVM in settlement of the related party
balance outstanding at March 31, 212,

At year end EMSS had an, outstanding balance owing to senior personnet of $20,814 (2012 -
$11,636).

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of security deposits collected from tenants and held in a separate
bank account until refunded upon the tenant's departure.

Government Remittances and Receivables

The government remittances payable at the year end are $329 (2012 - $3513. Included in
accounts receivable at year end is GST receivable of 56,879 {2012 - 564,385).

Restricted Investment

The restricted investment consists of a guarantead investment certificate restricted as
collateral for the use of a corporate credit card. This amount will be re-urned upon the
cancellation of the deposit. The interest rate for this investment ic 1 LB% (2012 - 1.8%) and
matures in July 2013,

14



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

8. Property and Equipment

Property and eguipment consists of the following:

2013 2012

Accumulated Accumuilated

Cost  Amortization Cost  Amortization

Furniture and fixtures $ 24,406 $ {4,917) % 24,406 § {2,658)
Computer equipment 18,018 {10,606) 11,816 (8,093)
Medical equipment 58,068 (39,175) 58,068 (27,561}
Vehicles 38,000 (19,000} 33,000 {11,400

$ 138492 S C(73698) § 132,200 §  (49.710)

Net Book Valuye § 64,794 5 82 5801

9. Revenue and Deferred Revenue

A total grant of $4,992,047 (2017 - $4,192,722) was provided by AHS to EMSS for the purpose
of the supportive living program, received in monthly fnstallments at the beginning of each
month commencing April 2011 and EMSS is aftowed to employ resources at their discretion
provided that EMSS shatl be responsible to ensure that vequired outcomes are achieved and
accountability criteita are met (Note 11}

Should any of the conditions not be complied with, the funding may be repayable to Alberta
Health Services, EMSS was in compliance with the financial conditions of the funding up to
the end of the 2012 period and believes they are in compliance to date.

During 2012, AHS provided an additional $162,000 to EMSS, to cover the costs of an
experienced contfuing care managemaent consultant, for a one year period cormmencing
November 1, 2011. The Organization utilized 591,086 {2012 - $45,718) of these funds for the
purpose stipulated, Unused funds of $25,1%6 as at March 31 » 2013 were reclassified to
accounts payable and actrued liabilities in anticipation of repayment to AHS.

During 2013, the Organization received $13,373 of restricted contributions for the purposes
of bus repairs, employee functions, garden improvements and foundation donations, These
funds have not been used at vear end for their intended purpose and a-e presented in
deferred revenue.

15



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

10. Financial Instrumients

As disclosed in the summary of significant accounting palicies, EMSS holds various forms of
financial instruments. The nature of these instruments and EMSS's operations expose EMSS to
eredit risk and Hquidity risk.

a} Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that EMSS witl fncur a financial loss betause a client has Tailed to
discharge an obligation. EMSS is exposed to credit risk on its cash, restricted cash and
accounts receivable. This risk #5 mitigated by the fact that accounts recefvable s primarily
comprised of GST rebates from the Government of Canada, and small amounts due from 1
large population of tenants. To further mitigate this risk, EMSS regutarly reviews its aceounts
recelvable list and follows up on collections in a Umely manner. At March 31, 2013,
signiffcantly all of EMSS's cash and restricted cash was held at a recopnized Canadian
Financial Institution. As a result, EMSS is exposed to all of the risks associated with that
institution.

b} Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that EMSS will mot be able to meet its financial obiigations as they
‘become due. EMSS's approach to managing liguidity risk is to secure support from its related
entities. Both actual and forecasted cash flows and operating results are carsfully monitored
in order to enisure adequate cash flows. EMSS continues to generate revenues in excess of
expenditures with a focus on decreasing costs when possible, as well as generating positive
cash flows from operations. Albertz Health Services continues te support EMSS's operations
with monthly casly advances, due to the need for seniors housing in Alberta.

11. Commitments

a) EMSS entered into a service agfeement with Alberta Health Services - Calgary Health
Region. In order to receive funding as described in Note 3, EMSS has to comply with certain
objectives for the integrated Supportive Living Service as outlined in Note 1.

b} EMSS entered into a lease agreement with ECHS to rent building space for the period Aprit
1, 2013 - March 31, 2014 (Note 4). Rent for the year is set at $1,397,640.

15



Encharis Management and Support Services
Notes to the Financial Statements

March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012

12. Controlled Entities

Encharis Community Housing and Services and Shepherd’s Village Ministriss Ltd. are both
under common control, As noted in Note 1 - Atcounting for Entities Under Common Control,
these organizations have not been consolidated in EMSS's financial statements, nor has the
Organization provided the reguired note disctosure.

ECHS #s a not-for-profit organization under the Canada Corporations Act and is exempt from
income taxes. ECHS awns a retirement facility and condominium units under tife lease. ECHS
performs management functions and leases its facilities to EMSS for the purpose of providing
affordable living for seniors in Calgary and surrounding areas.

5VM is a not-for-profit organization under the Canada Comorations Act anc is exempt from
income taxes. 5VM builds and ewns condorinium units under life lease. SVM performs
management functions for the condominium corporation for the purpose of providing
affordable fiving for seniars in the Valleyview and surrounding area. SYM does not provide
any services to EMSS,

i7




Encharis Management and Support Services

For the Years Ended March 31

Schedule of Expenses

2013 2012
Administration
Equipmient lease $ 10,890 § 7,364
General and administration 70,642 77,632
Sataries and benefits 421,490 541,084
§ 503,022 S 626,080
Food Services
food costs $ 368,237 § 347372
General and administration 63,811 51,854
Saltaries and benefits 1,052,594 1,089,004
3 1,484,692 % 1,488,230

Heaith Services
Salaries and benefits
General and administrative

Housekeeping
Salaries and benefits
General and administrative

Maintenance

General and administrative

Repairs and maintenance - building
Repairs and maintenance - equipment
Repairs and maintenance - property
Salaries and benefits

Recreatjonal Therapy
Salaries and bepefits

The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statem ents.

$ 3,568,644 § 2,532,575
39,645 16,645

$ 3,608,289 $ 2,549,270
3356405 & 345010
59,9{8 72,162

S 416,313 & 417,172
3 89,972 § 106,124
56,013 19,724
44,239 27,084
11,033 11,804
245,088 226,150

$ 446,345 S 390,888
§ 276,851 § 219,748
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Shepherd's Vitlage - TOWN OF VALLEYVIEW

to in the Affidavit of
Randall Scott Kelien

Sworn before me this {

It's Within Your Reach ~ 55 + Living in the Peace /
iy A Yotary Public i T the
Prpvince of B olumbia

A Christian Independent Adult 55+ Living Community

Al B THE SHEPHERD'S VILLAGE

. 52 (A% i
IR I AR e

55+ living

AFFORDABILITY

- Purchase: Range from $170,000 to $235,000 no profit mark-up;

- Save up to 50% on energy costs (based on study of comparably-
sized home in Valleyview regarding natural gas consumption,
Shepherd’'s Village units size range from 936 to 1096 sq f+ used on
average 10 - 15 gj in December 2009);

- Maintenance-free living:
- Rental and Life Lease options available.
LOCATION
Ideally located in Valleyview on newly twinned Highway 43.

Convenient access to Edmonton, Grande Prairie and Paace Country.
Attractive 1i-acre site with park, pend, and walking paths.

A SENSE OF COMMUNITY

Caring, secure, and committed to meeting needs of independent
adults. Opportunities for social and recreational activities. Sunroom,
exercise recom, games and craft room.

Loak at the other features of the Shepherd’s Village

- 8 exciting floor plans in bungalow or condo apartment styles

- 800 to 1096 sq. ft., choice of single or double attached garages on
some homes

- energy-efficient design, insulated styrofoam
block basements

Beautifid Setting

- main floor washer/dryer location, choice of
interior finishes, covered patios

- 43 of 75 units now built

- many optional extra services available -- calf for more details. 780-
524-4987

"Nothing iike it in Albarta”

hitp:hveww valleyview.govoffice.com/i vdex. asp?SEC=SBCED036-C 244-444E-8654- A1 7ADB20DC93&Type=B_BASIC 12
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Shepherd's Village - TOWN OF VALLEYVIEW

Operated as a not-for-profit organization, the Shepherd's Village is
commited to providing a caring and secure environment fo peopie
over 55,

The Shepherd's Village is 5 one-of-a-kind develapment in Alberta,

Affordable prices, a guaranteed buy-back, a beautiful setting, weil-
designed housing, and common gatheving and recreation areas inake i
the Village an important addition to the Peace Cousntry. Designed o 1
ensuie independent adult living, additional services such as mes! and :
home care are availabie as neadad, :

The Shepherd's Village is open fo people of alf faith backgrounds,

You will find that a visit to the Shepherd's Viifage is 2 welcoming,
informing, and comfortabie axperience. Give us a call or stop by af
your convenience. 780-524-4587

The Shepherd's Village is located in the northeast area of Valleyview,
visible from Highway 49. To drive to the Shepherd's Village, enter
Valleyview on Main Street, turn north at 4-way stop, go to end of
pavement, turn right, and go 7 blocks. Follow signs to Shepherd's
Village.

Project Overview - The Beginnings

Th ve lan

Housing Styles

Services

osts

Tripiex - Features

Fanvant v {alomeatdyvisvos

;o1

powerad by GovOifice.com

hitprfwww.valleyview.govoflice.com/ ndax.asp?SEC=5BC5D036-C244-444E- 8654-A17AD B20DCE9&Type=B _BASIC 20



